
 

 

 
FINANCE COMMITTEE AGENDA – Regular Meeting 

A Committee of the Chico City Council: Councilmember Bennett, Mayor Coolidge, and Chair Morgan  

Meeting of Wednesday, December 22, 2021 – 8:30 a.m. to 10:30 a.m. 
Meeting Location: This meeting is being held virtually via Zoom

 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION: Due to the recent universal masking indoors mandate issued by the California 
Department of Public Health and to protect the health of its citizens, the Finance Committee meeting is being 
held virtually via Zoom. The public is invited to participate in the meeting using the information below to login 
into the meeting.  If you need guidance on participation via Zoom, please contact the City Clerk’s office at 530-
896-7250, 24 hours prior to the start of the meeting. 
 

Please click the link below to join the webinar: 
 
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/84314195398?pwd=WG1uK0FFWEFDRkJ4SlByK0FhV05pZz09 
Passcode: Finance 
 
Using your telephone: Dial toll free 877 853 5247 or 888 788 0099 or 833 548 0276 or 833 548 0282  
 
Webinar ID: 843 1419 5398 
Passcode: 4290309 
 
REGULAR AGENDA 

  
A.  REVIEW OF ANNUAL AUDITED FINANCIAL REPORTS 
 
 The certified public accounting firm of CliftonLarsonAllen LLP (CLA) was engaged by the City Council to 

perform an audit of the financial statements and perform compliance testing of the City of Chico, Chico 
Passenger Facility Charges and Chico Urban Area Joint Powers Financing Authority for the fiscal year 
ended June 30, 2021.  CLA issued unmodified (clean) audit opinions on all financial statements.  CLA 
management will present the results of the audit to Finance Committee. Upon Finance Committee 
recommendation, these reports will be forwarded to City Council for acknowledgement and receipt.  

 
 Recommendation:  The Administrative Services Director recommends the Finance Committee review 

and forward to Council the 2021 Audit Financial Reports for final approval. 
 
B. BUDGET MODIFICATION APPROVAL/AUTHORITY REVIEW 
 
 The goal of the budget approval process is to establish the programs, projects, personnel, and funding 

levels for the coming fiscal year. Industry-wide, the common authority level of city councils/governing 
bodies is at the Fund level. (Report – Barbara Martin, Deputy Director – Finance) 

 
 Recommendation:  The Deputy Director - Finance recommends the Finance Committee forward a 

recommendation to Council to consider changing from category level approval to Fund level by 
Department approval for budget modifications. 

 
C. BUSINESS FROM THE FLOOR - Members of the public may address the Committee at this time on any 

matter not already listed on the agenda, with comments being limited to three minutes.  The Committee 
cannot take any action at this meeting on requests made under this section of the agenda. 

 
D. ADJOURNMENT - The meeting will adjourn no later than 10:30 a.m. to the next regular Finance 

Committee Meeting on January 26, 2022 at 8:30 a.m. in Conference Room 1 at 421 Main St.   
 

 
 
 
 

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/84314195398?pwd=WG1uK0FFWEFDRkJ4SlByK0FhV05pZz09


 

 

 
 
 
 

SPEAKER ANNOUNCEMENT 
 

NOTE: Citizens and other interested parties are encouraged to participate in the public process and will be invited to 
address the Committee regarding each item on the agenda using Zoom.  
 
Instructions for using Zoom 

•  Join the meeting using the link above. 

•  You must have audio and microphone capabilities on the device you are using to join the meeting.   

•  When you join the meeting make sure that you join the meeting with audio and follow the prompts to test your 
speaker & microphone prior to joining the meeting.   

 
To speak on an item using Zoom 

•  The Chair will call the item and staff will begin the staff report. 

•  Click on the Raise Hand icon if you would like to speak on the item. The City Clerk will call your name when it’s 
your turn to speak. 

•  When your name is called, you will be prompted to unmute yourself.  

•  When your time is up, you will be muted. 

•  You will repeat this process for each item you want to speak on. 
 

Distribution available in the office of the City Clerk 
 
Posted: 12/17/21 prior to 5:00 p.m. at 421 Main St. Chico, CA 95928 and www.ci.chico.ca.us 
Copies of the agenda packet are available for review at: City Clerk’s Office, 411 Main St. Chico, CA.  

  
Please contact the City Clerk at 896-7250 should you require an agenda in an alternative format or if you need to 
request a disability-related modification or accommodation in order to participate in a meeting.  This request should 
be received at least three working days prior to the meeting in order to accommodate your request.  

 

http://www.ci.chico.ca.us/
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Finance Committee Agenda Report Meeting Date: 12/22/21

TO: Finance Committee

FROM: Kathryn Mathes, Accounting Manager

RE: Review of June 30, 2021 Audited Financial Reports

REPORT IN BRIEF:

The certified public accounting firm of CliftonLarsonAllen LLP (CLA) was engaged by the City Council to perform an audit
of the financial statements and perform compliance testing of the City of Chico, Chico Passenger Facility Charges and Chico
Urban Area Joint Powers Financing Authority for the fiscal year ended June 30,2021. CLA issued unmodified (clean) audit
opinions on all financial statements. CLA management will present the results of the audit to Finance Committee. Upon
Finance Committee recommendation, these reports will be forwarded to City Council for acknowledgement and receipt.

Recommendation: The Administrative Services Director recommends the Finance Committee review and forward to

Council the following reports for final approval:
• City of Chico Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR)
• Single Audit Report
• Report to Management - "Auditors' Communication With Those Charged With Governance"
• City of Chico Passenger Facility Charges Report
• Chico Urban Area Joint Powers Financing Authority Report
• Appropriations Limit Report

FISCAL IMPACT:

N/A

BACKGROUND:

Pursuant to the provisions of Sections 908 and 1109 of the City's Charter, an independent auditor, hired by the Council to
perform an annual audit of the books, financial records and related documents of the City in accordance with generally
accepted auditing standards, shall submit to the Council a report on the audit for the preceding fiscal year on or before the
first regular meeting in February, unless an extension is granted by the Council. Staff is pleased to report that no extension
is required this year.

DISCUSSION:

In addition to the unmodified (clean) audit opinions noted above, Staff is happy to state that CLA had no management
findings, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies to report during the audit of the CAFR.

Prepared by: Approved and recommended by:
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Approved by:
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ATTACHMENTS:

• City of Chico Annual Comprehensive Financial Report, Single Audit Report, Report to Management, City of Chico
Passenger Facility Charges Report, Chico Urban Area Joint Powers Financing Authority Report and Appropriations
Limit Report

DISTRIBUTION:

City Clerk (3), City Manager, City Attorney
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REVIEW OF ANNUAL AUDITED FINANCIAL REPORTS

The certified public accounting firm of CliftonLarsonAllen LLP (CLA) was engaged by the City
Council to perform an audit of the financial statements and perform compliance testing of the City
of Chico, Chico Passenger Facility Charges and Chico Urban Area Joint Powers Financing
Authority for the fiscal year ended June 30,2021. CLA issued unmodified (clean) audit opinions
on all financial statements. CLA management will present the results of the audit to Finance
Committee. Upon Finance Committee recommendation, these reports will be forwarded to City
Council for acknowledgement and receipt.

Recommendation: The Administrative Services Director recommends the Finance Committee

review and forward to Council the 2021 Audit Financial Reports for final approval.
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411 Main Street - 1" Floor (530) 879-7300

CITY(,1 CHICO P.O. Box 3420 Fax (530) 895-4656
IN<. 187/ Ctlico, CA 95927 http://www.ci.chico.ca.us

December 1,202 I

To the Honorable Mayor, Members of the City Council, and Citizens of the City of ('hico:

The City of Chico (City) submits lo you its Annual Financial Report (Al*) for the year ended June 30,
202[, The Administrative Services Department publishes the Al·'R to provide information about the City
to its citizens, the investment community, the general public, and others who may have an interest in the
financial well-being of the City. 1710 data presented is designed to help readers assess our financial
condition and understand the services we provide to the citizens of' the City of Chico. This letter of
transmittal is designed to be read with and complement the Management's Discussion and Analysis
(MD&A). The MI)&A can be t'ound immediately following the report of the independent auditor.

Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data and the completeness and fairness of the presentation,
including all disclosures, rests with the City of Chico. To the best o 'our knowledge and belief. the enclosed
data is accurate in all material respects and fairly represent the financial position and changes in financial
position of the City. Disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an understanding of the City's
financial affairs have been included.

The City hus a comprehensive internal control framework that is designed to protect the ('ity's assets from
loss, theft, or misuse and compile sufficient reliable information for the preparation of the ('ity'x financial
stalements. Because the cost of internal ccintrols should not outweigh their benefits, tile Cily's internal
controls have been designed to provide reasinable rather than absolute assurance thal tile financial
statements will be free from material misstatements.

The Charter of the City of Chico requires an annual audit to be conducted by ati independent auditor
employed by the City Counci L The audit report is to be prepared in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United Stated of America (GAAP) and submitted to the City Council on or before
the first regular City Council meeting in February. Cliftonl.arsonAllen LLP, a firm of licensed certified
public accountants, has audited the attached financial statements. Based on the results of the audit. the City
of Chico's financial statements [or the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021, received an unmodified ("clean")
opinion in the independent auditor's report (which is presented as the first component of the financial
section 01' this report).

Profile of Chico

The City of Chieo was fou nded in 1860 by General John Hidwell, and incorporated on February 5,1872,
with a population of approximately 1,000 persons in an area of 6.6 square miles. 01'he incorporated area of
the City of Chico has grown to over 30 square miles, with a population of 110.364.

Chico is the largest city in Butte County, located in the Northern Sacramento Valley approximately 90
miles north of Sacramento, and serves as the commercial center ('or a three-county regional market area,
Chico supports a diverse range of industries including agriculture, recreation, tourism, education, medical,



and manufacturing. Chico is also the hoine of the second oldest institution in the California State lJniversity
systein, enrolling over 16,000 students annin·lily.

Residents and visitors alike can saniple locally grown almotils, bicycle in Ilidwel] Park (ime ofthe largest
municipally owned parks in the United States), tour the historic Bidwell Mansion, and take in the beauty of
the California State University, Chien campus without having to stray too far from Chico's quaint and
thriving downtown business district. A municipal airport and industrial park are sititated in northern Chico.

The City is governed by a charter and operates under a Council-Manager formof government. Thc City
Council consists of seven members representing seven separate geographical districts, elected to staggered
tour-year terms. An election held each November in even numbered years chooses either three or fuur
council members. The Council selects a mayor und vice mayor from m·nongits members to serve two ,year
terms. The mayor presides over the Council meetings, which are held on the first and third Tuesdays of
each nionth, The City Council appoints a City Manager to implement its policies and directives, a City
('lei·k to maintain public records and manage tile elections process, and a City Attorney to serve as itx legal
counsel.

The City provides a broad range of services including: police and fire protection; construction and
maintenance of streets and infrastructure; community development, including planning and zoning,
building and safely. and housing activities; park and recreational activities; municipal airport; and gencral
administrative services,

The budget serves as the foundation for financial planning and cont,·01 for the City 01' Chico, Budgetary
control is maintained to enxin·e compliance with legal provisions of the annial appropriated budget as
approved and modified by the City Council. Tile City Charter requires the City Manager to present a
proposed budget to the City Council by June I o feach year. Budgetary control is at the department category
level.

COVID-19

The outbreak of coronavirus disease (COVID- 19) was declared a pandemic by Lhe World Health
Organization in early 2020. Governor Newsom declared a state of emergency in the Slate on March 4,
2020 and the Chico eity Council declared a state ofemergency in the City on March 25,2020. On March
19, 2020 the (kivernor the (;overnor signed an lixecutive Order ordering the shut-down ofall non-essential
business and mandated that all employees, olher than essential workers, remain at houle. The pandemic
has continued to effect the global, national, regional and local economies

COVID- 1 9 has had a major impact on City operations in terms of service delivery. Like many cities, Chico
transitioned to largely a virtual environment for meetings, Based on the City's experience iii providing
services through this new model the City has improved its online capabilities and provided staff with
technology that allows them to be productive oulside of thc omcc. Going forward, the City understands
that much of the technology improvements that were forced on the City in reacting lo the pandemic (virtual
meetings, working from home. etc.) will be incorporated into how service will be provided in the future,
The City will continue lo evaluate opportunities to incorporate technology advancements into delivering
services to the public.

Chico's Economic Conditioq

Local Economy

Aside from t·he COVII)-1 9 effect·s, Chico's local economy continues to make steady pcisitive progress and
growth in the areas ofeconomic development, housing marke[ and employment.

One indicator of the local economy is the rate of unemployment. Tile unemployment rate for Chico
increased from 5% as of June 2020 to 9% at .line 202] despite a rate of 1 1.6% statewide.
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Another indicator of the local economy is community development. During the fiscal year, residential
building permits were issued along with commercial building permits. This continues the strong building
market that occurred during the year ended June 2012, when 346 residential building and 13 commercial
building permits were issued.

The inlluences of the local economy impacts, including COVID-19, are evidenced by the following key
City revenue smirces, which increased during the fiscal year ended June 30,2021 as follows:

• Sales Tax increased 7%

• Transient Occupancy Tax increased 2%

Sales Tax

Sales tax revenue, which accounts for over 40% ofall (leneral Fund revenue, experienced COVII)-19
related tosses in nearly ai[ major indiistry groups except for building and construction, and food and drugs.
Major industry groups changed as follows:

INDUSTRY PERCENTAGE INCREASE

AUTOS AND TRANSPORTATION 21°//0

BUILDING AND CONTRUCTION 37%

BUSINESS AND INDUSTRY -2%

FOOD AND DRIGS 4%

GENERAL CONSUMER GOODS 7%

RESTAURANTS AND HOTELS -5%

Propert¥ Tax

Properly tax revenue, which accounts fin· almost 21% o ['all General Fund revenue, increased 7% from the
prior year. Property tax reventic is compo=tof numerous properly related tax categories. Current secured
property taxes increased [%,. The local housing market is experiencing increased growth in construction
of new homes and increased growth in the resale of existing homes, Indications are that the current level
of growth will continue into the next year, Residual property tax revenue came into place following the
dissolution of the City's Redevelopment Agency. As the former Redevelopment Agency's obligations are
liquidated, the City receives a larger share ofthis property tax source. This year, the growth in residual
property tax increased 13%.

Long-term Financiat Planning

The City contracts with Call'ERS to provide retirement benefits to retirees. The Unfunded Accrued
1.inbility (l JAI.) associated with the retirement platt exceeds $140,000,000 at June 30,2021 and is reported
on the attached fitiancial statements. CalPERS has provided an estimated repayment schedule fur over
thirty years. City management has placed emphasis on planning toi· future repayments ofthe annual UAL.
In fuel, the annual UAL payment is paid in lump sum in July each year to reduce int·crest costs. These
annital prepayments have resulted in over a $1,500,000 interest savings overthe last fiveyears. 117 addition
to prepayments, the City has created a Pension Stabilization I'rust to help pay [kir future retirement
payments. The City contracts with CaIPERS to provide

Roads

The City's roads are itt disrepair. As such, lhis has caused an unrecorded liability for future road repair und
replacement. l'he City continues to review options to fund these repairs including a potential general sales
tail Lo go before the electorate in November 2022.
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City management will continue to present Council with conservative budgets that provide consideration of
City cash Ilows, and applicable fiscal controls that will ensure the City continues to improve financially,

Relevant Financial Policies

Tlie City Council has adopted a number offiscal policies (See Appendix ('-10 of the City's Annual Budget
for the complete set of fiscal policies) designed to preserve lhe [iscal integrity of the City's resources, sonic
of which are listed below,

. Operating Reserve-The City Manager shall endeavor to present a Proposed Budget for the ensuing
fiscal year which provides a balance in the (leneral Fiind to serve as an operating reserve in the amount
of seven and one- ha[fpercerit oflhe General Fund operating expenditures, or which the City Manager
expects will reach seven and one-half percent by the time the books arc closed at the end of the current
fiscal year. These funds are available for allocation to cover unanticipated expenditures or major
declines in revenue. This reserve is fully funded at June 30,2021.

• Emergency Reserve - An Emergency Reserve has been established to help buffer the City from issues
such as large fluctuations in revemies or catastrophic events. l'he dexired level of this reserve is
established at 20% of the General Fund operating expenditures. The reserve is fully funded ot June
30,2021,

• Compensated Absence Reserve - Compensated absences are delined its paid time off, such as
vacation, sick leave and compensatory time off which becomes a City liability when tic employee earns
their right to the paid litne off. This reserve is intended to accumulate funds to cover the City's liability
with the intended target of reaching and maintaining u funding level of 50% of the City-wide liability.
'1'he balance in this reserve as of June 30,2021 is $ 1,500,000,

• Replacement Funds The City maintains a number of internal replacement funds including a
Technology Replacement Fund to accumulate funds for the replacement oftechnological equipment, a
Fleet Replacement Fund for the replacement of the City's vehicle tleet, and a Facilitiex Maintenance
Fui·id for the repair und maintenance of ('ity-owned facilities, Annual contributions :re made from the
funds owning such equipment or vehicles, based on the estimated cost to replace the item at the end of
its useful life, Although the replacement funds are underfunded, the net fund balances of all
replacement funds were $2,736,5951% of June 30, 2021.

The Future

The future [s hopeful! Despite the challenges of COVID-19, pension costs, capital infrastnicturc and
resident sheltering challenges; the City is poised to grow and excel. The City is currently exploring the
following:

• Sales '1'ax - A tax measure will be presented to the general public in November 2022, The purpose
of the general stiles tax is to provide resources to meet the City's financial needs over the next
several years. Proceeds could bc utilized to fund fire und police services, jund capitalinfrastructure
include roads and maintain parks.

• Broadband - The City is working on a broadband master plan to address issues like the digital
divide and provide fast, reliable andinexpensive internet services. The goal o f theplanis to provide
the City a roadmap to provide reliable fiber technology throughout the City that can be used for
education, commerce. medical and safety over the next 40 years.

• Capital Infrastructure-the City continues to seck grants and possible snles tax revenue torepair or
replace the existing aging niadway.

In addition to tliewe projects. the City Council and City Staffeontinue to explore all opportunities to create
the best Chico possible!

Awards und Acknowledgements
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l'he Government Finance Officers Association of the United Stutes and Canada (GFOA) awarded a
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence iii Financial Reporting to the City of Chico for its Annual
Financial Report for the fiscal year ended .lunc 30,2020. This was the seventeenth consecutive year that
the City has achieved this prestigious award. In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a
government must publish an easily readable and efficiently organized comprehensive annual financial
report. This report must Natisfy both GAAP and applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of' Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our current
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report continues lo meet the Certificate of Achievement Program's
requirements and we are submitting it to the (Il·'OA to determine its eligibility for another certificate.

rhis Ilnancial Report is the result of the cooperative effort of many people. We wish to convey our
appreciation to the members of the Finance team who contributed to and assisted with the SUCCessful
completion of the audit. We would also like to express our appreciation to all the City departments. who
provided assistance and support, and to the City Council for their support in planning and conducting the
financial operations ofthe City in a responsible and progressive manner.

Respectfully submitted, j - . /7
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Cit Manager Administrative Services Director
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Chico, California

Report on the FInancial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, the discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information
of the City of Chico, California (City), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2021, and the related notes to the
financial statements, which collectively comprise tile City' s basic financial statements as listed in the table of
contents.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of Internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on out·audit. We conducted ouraudit
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in tile United States of America and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of
the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 1

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements In order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no
such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that tile audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinions

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the discretely presented component
unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City, as of June 30, 2021, and the
respective changes in financial position, and where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
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Other Matters

Required Stipplemontary Information
Accounting principles generally accepted In the United States of America require that the management's
discussion and analysis, schedule of changes in the net pension liability and related ratios, schedules of pension
plan contributions. schedule of changes in the total OPEB liability and related ratios, and budgetary comparison
Information, as listed in the table of contents. be presented to supplement tile basic financial statements. Such
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial
statenients iii an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited
pr·ocedures to tile required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the
information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the
basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements
We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not
provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise
the City of Chico's basic financial statements The introductory section, combining and individual nonmajor fund
financial statements and schedules, and statistical section are presented for purposes of additional analysis and
are not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The combjning and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and schedules are the responsibility of
management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied
ill the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic
financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the
Information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

The introductor·y and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit
of tile basic financial statements, and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on
them

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Audilitlg Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 7, 2021 on
our consideration of the City's Internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that
report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's Internal control over
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards iii considering the City's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

8:4/4*- 1 "5r'LAtu.u L-lP
Cliftor,LarsonAllen LLP

Roseville, California

December 7, 2021
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Management's Discussion and Analysis

As management of the City of Chico (City), we offer readers of the City's financial statements this narrative
overview and analysis orthe financial activities of the City fur the fiscal year ended June 30,2021. We encourage
readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction with additional information that we have furnished!
in our letter of transmittal, which can be found on pages i-v of this report.

FINANCIAL IIIGIILIGHTS

• The City had anet positional.june 30,2021 of $536,067,533 Cnet poNition). OF this amount, $438,209,363

is the net investment in capital ax.vets.

• As of June 30, 2021, the City's governmental funds reported combined fund balances of $ 1 58,968,764 an
increase of $16,729,092 in comparison with flie prior year. Amounts available for spending include
restricted committed, assigned and unassigned /und balance. Restricted fund balances totaled
$116,669,087. Committed fund balances totaled $12,328,685. Assigned fund balances totaled $15,439,335
while unassigned fund balance reported a fund balance of $14,356,997

• At June 30,2021, the General Fund had a fund balance of $39,432,758, an increase of $9,535,425 from
June 30,2020.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City's basic financial statements. The
City's basic financial statements comprise three components; 0) government-wide financial statements; (2) fund
financial statements; and (3) notes to the basic financial statements. In addition to the basic financial statements.

this report also includes required supplementary information and other supplementary information.

Government-wide Financial Statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of City finances
in a manner similar to a private-sector business.

\'he statement of net positic,n presents information on all City assets, deferred outtlows of resources, liabilities and
de ferred in flows o f resources with the difference reported as net position. Overtime, increases or decreases in net
position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the City is improving or deteriorating.

l'he statement ofactivities presents in formation showing how net position changed during the most recent fiscal
year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs.
regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some
items that will result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g.. uncollected revenues and unused vacation leave
that has been earned).

Both of these government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City that are principally supported
by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are intended to recover
all or a portion oftheir costs through user fees and charges Chusine.is-type activities). The governmental activities
of the City include general government, public safety, public works, parks and recreation, community development
and community agencies. The business-typeactivities ofthe City include tlie sewer, parking, private development
and airport.

One component unit is included in our basic financial statements and consists of a legally separate entity for
which the City is financially accountable or receives a financial benefit- the Chico Urban Area Joint Powers
Financing Authority, Based on the criteria of' generally accepted accounting principles. the Chico Urban Areal
Joint Powers Financing Authority's governing board is composed of two members of the
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Management's Discussion and Analysis

City of Chico Council and two members of tile Butte County Board of Supervisors but is reported as a discretely
presented component unit due to the significance of the economic resources the City receives from it.

Complete financial statements of the Chico Urban Area Joint Powers Financing Authority may be obtained from
the I·'inance Ikpartment of the City of Chico at 411 Main Street, Chico, California 95928.

Fund Financial Statements are groupings of related accounts that are used to maintain control over resources that
have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City, like other state and local governments, uses
fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate finance-related legal compliance. All of the funds of the City can be
divided into three categories: governmental/unds, proprietarp/unds and/iduciary.fimds.

Governmenta/*nds :re used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental activities in
the government-wide financial statements. However·, unlike the government-wide financial statements,
governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and out/lows r?/ expendable resources, as well
as on balances ofexpendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in
evaluating the City's near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that ofthe government-wide financial statements, it is
useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar infurmation presented for
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. Hy doing so, readers may better understand
the long-term impact of the City's near-term financing decisions. Both the governinental funds balance sheet and
the governmental funds statement of revenues, expenditures and changes iii fund balances provide a reconciliation
to facilitate this comparison between governmental/}inds and governmental activities.

The City maintained several individual governmental funds at June 30,2021. Information is presented separately
in the governmental fund!3 balance sheet and in the governmental funds statement of revenues, expenditures and
changes in fund balances for the General Fund, CDBG and HOMB Housing Fund, Public Facilities Impact Fees,
Capital Grants Fund, and the I.ow and Moderate Income I Iousing Asset Fund. 1)ala from the other governmental
funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation, Individual fund data for each of these non-major
governmental funds is provided in the fortn o f combining statements found elsewhere in this report,

Proprietary funds are generally used to account for activities for which the City charges a fee to either its external
or internal customers. Proprietary funds provide the same type of in formation as the government-wide financial
statements, only in more detail. The City maintains the following two types of proprietary funds:

Enterprise holds arc used to report the same functions presented as business-type activmes in the government-wide
financial statements. The City uses enterprise funds to account for its sewer, parking, private development and
airport operations, which are considered to be major funds of the City,

Internal servicefunds are used to report activities that provide goods and services for cenain City programs and
activities. The City uses internal service funds to account for its self-insurance, central garage. municipal building
maintenance, retirement funding and information services functions. Because these services benefit primarily
governmental functions, they have been included within governmental activities in the government-wide
financial statements. The City's five internal service funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation
in the proprietary funds financial statements. Individual fund data for the internal service funds is provided in
the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report.

Fiduciary J• nix me used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the government. Fiduciary
funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements because the resources of those funds are not
available to support the City's own programs. These .statements include one Private-purpose Trust Fund that
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Management's Discussion and Analysis

includes the activity of the Successor Agency to the Chico Redevelopment Agency and three Custodial Funds
that account for the assets held by the City as an agent for bonded assessment districts.

Notes to Maisie Financial Statements provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the
data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.

Required Supplementary Information is presented in addition tothe basic financial statements and accompanying
notes. A Schedule of Changes in Net Pension Mability and Related Ratios is included along with a Schedule of
Contributions relating to the CalPERS Retirement Plans. Budget Schedules for the General Fund and Major Special
Revenue funds are also presented as required supplementary information.

Other Information includes the combining and individual fund statements and schedules referred to earlier.
Specifically included is information for the Capital Grants Fund budget, nonmajor governmental funds
and internal service funds and Custodial Funds. These statements and schedules are presented immediately
following the required supplementary information.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's financial position. In
the case ot the City, assets and deferred outflows exceeded liabilities and deferred inflows by $536.067,533 at the
close of the most recent fiscal year,

The largest portion of the City's net position, $438,209,363. or 82%, rellects its investment in capital assets (e.g.
land, buildings, improvements, equipment, and infrastructure), less any related debt used to acquire those assets
that is still outstanding. These capital assets are used by the City to provide services to the citizens. Although the
City's investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to
repay this debt must be provided from other sources. since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate
these liabilities.
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Management's Discussion and Analysis

Governmental and Business-type Activities assets, deferred outllows of resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of
resources and net position as of June 30, are presented in the fol lowing table:

Condensed Statement of Net Position

(;ve..ilemi,I BuneNNIYPe

Acl,VitieN Activities 1.lilli 1)011: r
1020 2021 2021) 20ll 2020 2021 C h.,ge

c urre,11 1.,I.Iher RiscIA $ 177,1 l.7 $ 201.4,16.276 $ 41.013.695 $ fl,149.954 $ 210.!67.682 1 2ff,790.24 $ U.628.449

£4 ili!,& 125,728,270 121.62:.722 132,869,t30 110,1.9,84.1 ·AR.917.400 464,818,966 221168

10(,1 "Ne'li 102,862,257 529874.goli I 7 902.821 191,339,799 6711.763,(M2 720.614.7')7 ,It,849,715

1®14,ka {laullo# 04 tisiumv

I)©ID,ied#Hw8 reli,leI lo Iie,Is,iliN Iii.706.996 14¢}66,5/1, 1,9711.1·11 111•14,100 If¢,685.1 14 19.110.fit)6 425,452

/ /11/111 .1//10(11er 114/billl/N 120.070.338 141.484.019 No,61.418 29.002»1 I 4).01 I,7/6 :72..c?(i,f70 21'44814

|01!0 19111'11:%bl|I(Les U,4.1,1. 136 1.1082.11M 27.722.No 16,883.724 40,416.976 ..966.05,) 110,4909171

1 01'llinbilille, lAi,76,1.574 136.566.34 018,684,1,0 45.976.271 190.448,732 20 1.342,624 12.00.1.807

I)efurred I,illm. or Refi..M

Defurred milmu felated 14, pe,™le. 3.062,31 5 949.905 360,644 163,246 1.422.959 1,115,241 (2,1()7,7 IM)

Nil I.91,0,1

Nol "vo'Imen!

. e./1/|/1 114,5//N 12 14202.6 I 4 321,610.8.11 11}£602 919 11,1578, 4 428.80'.161 418.209,161 9,40.800

Res!/,ele,I . 121,=1.1" 116.f)7.64 (12,1.11.7)111.198,602 116.h37.658 17.212.53

l]:,ie.,i'!ed (60.038,8511 (St,64.1,3St) t,910,679 32,901,863 (34,t 01.1711 (18.679.488) 33428,685

101111"ell,111.11 $ 'RIA,fli.Ii' 5 388,921,155 $ 121.816.1.1 $ 147.3-12.378 $ 503,478.f44 $ %16.9}67.511 $ 2,488,988

Governmental Activities. Primary changes in governmental activities are summarized below:

Assets. rl'otai assets increased by $41,849,715. l'he primary causes of the increase was an increase in restricted
and unrestricted cash of approximately $22 million. Increased revenue in the taxes and proceeds from the
American Rescue Plan account for most of the change.

Deferred Outjlows of Resources. This classification balance, although similar to "assets," is set apart because these
items do not meet the technical definition of being a City asset on the date of these financial statements, In other
words, these amounts are not available to pay liabilities in the way assets are available, Wlien all Uic recognition
criteria are met, the deferred outtlow of resources will become an expense.

l'he most significant deferred outtlows of resources reported are related to the implementation of GASH Statement
No. 68 and GASH No. 71 for net pension liabi lily reporting, GASB No. 68 requires that contributions made to the
retirement system subsequent to the measurement date be reported as deferred out flows o f resources, Differences
between projected and actual earnings on pension plan investments are also reported as deferred outflows and
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Management's Discussion and Analysis

amortized over several years. The City has reported deferred outflows of resources for pension contributions and
differences between actual and estimated earnings of pension plan investments totaling $16,966,506 for
governmental activities at June 30,2021. The deferred outflows of resources will be reflected in the change in the
net pension liability in the next fiscal year,

Liabilifies. Governmental activities liabilities increased by $5,520,027 primarily due to a increase in the net
pension liability of $6,930,759.

/*Arred /«flows efResources. Deferred in flows of resources are the counterpart to de ferred out flows of resources
on the Statement of Net Position. Deferred inflows of resources are not technically liabilities of the City as of the
date of the financial statements, When all the recognition criteria are met, the defurred inflows of resources will
become revenue or an increase to net position.

Deferred in flows of resources related to pensions represent a net amount attributable to the various components that
impact pension changes and can include the differences between actual and expected experience and changes in
assumptions. The City has reported deferred in flows of resources for pensions totaling $949,995 for government
activities at June 30,202 I.

Net Porition. Governmental activities net position increased $32,488,988 due primarily to decrease in Grants
and contributions not restricted to specific programs.

Business-type Activities. Primary changes in business-type activities are summarized below:

Assets, Total assels increased by $ 15,636.973 due to an increase in restricted cash related to construction contracts.

Deferred outjlows of Resources. GAS[3 Statement No. 68 requires that contributions made subsequent to the
measurement date be reported as deferred outflows of resources. Differences between projected and actual earnings
on pension plan investments are also reported as deferred outtlows and amorti·zed over several years, The City has
reported deferred inflows of resources for pensions totaling $2,144,100 for government activities at June 30.
2021.

I.labilifies. Business-type activities liabilities decreased by $2,107,883 primarily due to the payment of long-
term debt related to the Sewer Fund.

Deferred Inpows q/'Resources. As discussed above, de fet·red inflows of resources are the counterpart to de fet·red
outilows of resources on the Statement o<Net Position. Deferred intlows of resources related to pensions represent
a net amount attributable to the various components that impact pension changes and can include the
di fferences between actual and expected experience and changes in assumptions. The City has reported
defurred inflows of resources for defurred pensions totaling $165,246 for business-type activities at June 30,
2021.

Net Position. Business-type activities net position increase of $ 18,706,197 primarily due to an increase in cash
of approximately $3,668,392 that occurred to reflect the City's overall fiscal recovery operating procedures and
an increase in donated sewer infrastructure.

l'he following table indicates the changes in net position for governmental and business-type activities for the
year ended June 30:
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Management's Discussion and Analysis

Revenues. Total revenues for governmental activities increased 21% ft·om 1[te prior year:

• Taxes increased $6,093,851 due to increases in sales tax revenue and property tax revenue its the economy
and housing market are moving in a modestly positive direction.

• Capital grants and contributions increased by $(2,634,287) due primarily to completion of a large
infrastructure project.

• Intergovernmental Revenue increased $3.550,752 due primarily to CARES funding.

Expenses. Total expenses fur governmental activities increased $5,224.937 from the prior year:

• The increase in expenses is due to the City's new agreement with CARD to transfer Community Park
Development Impact Fee funds collected by the City to CARD twice a year for the development of future
community park facilities.

Business-type Activities. Business-type activities increased the City's net position by $18,706,197. Charges for
service revenues combined with expenses reductions also increased net position. The operations of individual
enterprise funds are presented more thoroughly in the Proprietary Funds section.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF '1'HE CITY'S FUNDS

As noted earlier. the City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal
requirements.

Governmental funds. The general government functions are contained in the Gener·al, Special Revenue and Capital
Projects Funds, The focus of the City's governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows,
outflows, and balances of expendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the City's financing
requirements. In particular, restricted, committed, assigned and unassigned fund balance may serve as it useful
measure of a government's net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

At Julie 30, 2021, the City's governmental flunds reported combined fund balances of $158,968,764 an increase of
$ 16,729,092 compared to the prior year. The City reported $ 116,669,087 0 f restrieted fund balance, $63.748,813
is composed of long-term loans receivable. By nature, restricted resources are restricted For specific purposes.

Nonspendable fund balance is composed of: $174,660 in prepaid iteins.

Committed fund balance is composed of: $ 1,513,524 for compensated absences, $429,788 in donations ;ind
$10,385,373 for emergency contingencies.

'Total assigned fuiid balance is $15,439,335. It is specifically assigned for equipment replacement of $2.736,595
assigned for capital projects or $8,615,075 remediation of $501,024 and subsequent year's budget of $3,586,641.
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Management's Discussion and Analysis

Ille changes in fund balance as of June 30, is presented in the following table:

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
Governmental Funds

Major Funds

ILow & Moderate

[kneral C[ )11(; and 1 K)M I : I'tilitic Fae,Imes ('ilpilal Income Ilousing

1,·.Ind looming Impact [·ees 01111,11 AsNet

Revenues $

1·\penditure,

(/thol 111TilCIng kiufee) (l,s).110,

Change m ftind balances

1·und bilance• (dille,Ix). begint,ing ol'year

1·und Indances (delkils), endol'year $

68,630,271 $ 983.731 $ 8.124,538 $ 4.499,166 $ 434.7.53

(55.452,372) (932.403) (7.602.570) (3.943.708) (384,1{51)

(3,642.474) 16.158 (78.058) . 01,491)

9.535,425 (67.486) 443,910 (553.458) 38,41[

29.897333 7.578.919 31,951.578 ( 1.387,792) 56.063,997

39.432.758 $ 7.646,405 $ 32395,488 $ (834.314) $ 56,102.408

Noninaiur funds 2(12 1 202 t)

Special Revenue Capital l'rejects
1:unds 1:unds

1010 '1 in al

(;overninentil (inverninental

1·linds I illdS

Revenues $

1·pel,ditu,rs

f ther finalicing Millices (Lises), iici

Chor¥ in fund bulwke

Fund balances (deficits). beginning 01'year

I·und balalwes (delle,lg. end ul've,ir $

Il.329.514 $ 1,793,726 $ 96.795.699 $ 89,163,913

(6.749.769) (3.637,866} (78.705.539) (69.174,692)

(1,924,409) 4,276,206 (1.364.068) 570,750

3,655.336 2.432,066 16.726.092 20.559.971

lib)55,719 6.182.918 142,242,672 121,682,699

15,61 1,055 $ 8.6 14.984 $ 158.968,764 $ 142,242.670

Revemies lor governmental funds overall totaled $ 96.795.699 an increase of 5.36% from the prior fiscal year,
and expenditures forgovernmental fundstotaled $ 78,705,539 a negligible change fic,Ii, the prioryear, Revenue
increases were due primarily to increases iii propeity and sales taxes, Expenditures are lantely unchanged due to
strong fiscal manageinent.

General Fund revenue increased $4,743,317 due to ati increase in Intergovernmental revenues of 7.42% due
primarily to reimbursements for assistance provided to fight the numerous wildfires that occurred during the
year. Current year General Fund expenditures increased 2020 by $5,741.690. Increases in wages and
benefits accounts for increase.

CDBG & ItOMI & Housing fund increased by $67,486 primarily due to interest earnings.

Revenue in the Capital Grants Fund exceeded expenditures by $(553,458) due to timing of receipts
for reimbursements of 2020-2021 expenditures,

l'he Low and Moderate Income ]Iousing Asset Fund's change iii fund balance consists mostly of loans receivable
received from the Successor Agency to the Chico Redevelopment Agency. Otherwise, there is very little
activity.
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Management's Discussion and Analysis

occurring within this Fund as the revenue is considered restricted as most of it is composed of long-term loan
receivables.

Public Facility Impact Fee funds have been consolidated into one reporting fund. It is reported as a Major Capital
Projects Fund, Fund balance in this fund Auctuates with building activity within the City limits.

Proprietary.funds. The City's proprietary funds provide the same type o f information found iii the government-
wide financial statements, but in more detail.

The following table shows actual revenues, expenses and results of operations of proprietary funds for the current
fiscal year:

IP, 1 Vute

Sewer IParking 1®vel <71}ment Airport . rotal

Openiling revenues

operuting erl)emses

Operating income (InsN)

Noitope,Wmpeve,ii,es

(epenwq), M

howeR/Abelw

contrihutimis and te,slurs

('ontnbull,ins and transfers

$
18.055.204

It,245.802

6.809,402

(91.081)

6.718,121

7.996,101

$
373,192

947,957

(574.765)

2().853

73

$
5.<)98969

4.365.232

733.737

35.621

758,883

$
618,438

2,043,302

(!,424,1164)

31.901

I4251.4'I

$
24.I 45.803

19.(iNIt.391

4.457,412

(2,706)

5,632.223

24,062.646

$

Change in net poxition 14,684,422 (553,839) 1,528,241 3.047.373 18,706.197

• Sewer Fund revenues increased over the prior year due to increased Water Pollution Control Plant capacity
development fees collected.

• Parking Fund revenues decreased by $(573,503) over the prior year as the City halted collection of Parking
fees due to the COVID pandemic,

• The Private ])evelopment Fwid had an increase in net position of' $476,886. Operations in the fund reflected
additional activity in the building industry in Chico during the year ended June 30.2021.

• Airport Fund operating revenues decreased $(522,166) primarily due to additional rental charges for
airport related facilities, The City is working to revitalize the airport and its industrial park.

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

Budget to actual information for the General Fund is presented as part of required supplementary information in
this report, The City Council amended the budget several times during the period. '1hese amendments, generally,
were to adjust for actual beginning balances and carryovers after closing the prior fiscal year and for new sources
and uses realized during the fiscal year.

Overall, actual revenue was over budgeted revenue by $4,124,691. Property tax revenues was over budget by
$534,906 while sales and use taxes revenue exceeded budget by $2,426,531. Other taxes including transient and
occupancy taxes ('rOT) exceeded budget by $1,919,690.

Overall. budgeted expenditures were under budget by $23,295,879. Most departments recognized actual
expenditures under budget.

12



Management's Discussion and Analysis

Amendments to the public works budget were made for capital projects initiated during the year, Fire and Police
had increases in the original budget to account for increases in wages and benefits.

In spite of City Council budgetary amendments, variances between actual amounts and the final budget occur.
Generally, all ofthe variances were positive (i.e., actual revenue exceeded budgeted revenue and actual expenditures
were less than budgeted expenditures) due to tile fact that a conservative budgetary approach was utilized,

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital assets

'The City's investment in capital assets for its governmental and bilsiness-type activities as or June 30, 2021
amounted to $464,818,566 (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital assets includes land,
buildings, improvements, equipment, inft·astructure, and construction in progress. Total current year depreciation
expense was $18,328.979.

Capital assets, net 0[depreciation, for the governmental and business-type activities are presented on the next page
to illustrate changes from the prior year:

Governmental Activities

2020 2021

Business-type Activities
2020 2021

1,alld $31,456,230 $31.561,925 $2,154,341 $2,154.341

Iluildings 9,030,354 8,529.383 4,691,860 4.[87.118

Improvements 6,782,299 8.319.818 109,114,940 107.734,478

9,885,915 8,955,391 599,585 492,863

Infrastnicture 242,636,661 242,601.6[3

Construction in progress 25,936,810 25,660,592 16,308,401 24,621,042
Total, Net $325,728,269 $325,628.722 $132,869,127 $139,189,842

1 kital

Total Dollar Percentage
2020 2021 Change Change

1.and $33,610,571 $33.716,266 $ 105,695.00 0%

Buildings 13,722,214 12,716,501 (1,005,713) -7%

Improvements 115,897,239 116,054,296 157,057 0%

10,485,500 9.448.253 (1,037,247) - 10%

Infrastructtire 242,636,661 242.601,613 (35,048) 0%

Construction in pi·ogress 42,245,211 50,281.634 8,036,423 19%

Total. Net $458.597,396 $464,818,563 $6.221.167

13



Management's Discussion and Analysis

Major capital asset events during the current fiscal year included the following:

• Buildings - Decrease is due primarily to depreciation expense. No significant capitalized construction to
building category occurred.

• improvements -· 1)ecrease is due primarily to depreciation expense.
• Equipment tnereases ireflect acquisitions of safely radios and upgraded software for several departments.

• Infrastructure - Increased as several large street proiects were completed.

• Construction in progress (CIP) - Increase is due to initiation of projects not yet completed and transferred 10
appropriated capital accounts.

Additional information on the City's capital assets can be found in Note 5 of this report.

Long-term liabilities

At June 30,2021, the City had total long-term liabilities outstanding of $35,134,126 an overall decrease of
$6,740,593 from June 30,2020. Additional information related to the City's long-terin liabilities can be found in
Note 6 ofthis report.

Economic Factors and Next Year's Budget

The fiscal year 2022 budget was approved on June 1.2021, with a total Operating Budget of $98.533.966. which is
a $2,354,530 increase from the prior fiscal year's Council adopted budget. The adopted Capital Improvement
Budget totaled $44,354,1386. Total General Fund revenue and transfers iii total of $64.471,002, which is higher
than budgeted expenditures and transfers out of $60.530.039. The City has also assigned fund balance from June
30,2021 of $3,586,641 to cover expenditures in the fiscal year 2020-2021 budget.

During this time of econoiii uncertainty, brought on by the coronavirus pandemic and the associated economic
fallout, the fiscal year 2021-22 budget continues the City's record of strong fiscal management. 1-his fiscal year
budget maintains a well-resoureed City government, which is prepared to respond to the needs of our residents.
Irhe City does not currently anticipate any significant cash flow or liquidity issues in the near term because of
COVID- 19 but continues to monitor that risk. This City cannot predict the extent to which consequences arising
from COVID-19 will impact financial conditions. operations, reserves and liquidity, but management is dedicated
to monitor the un folding impacts to ensure residents at all income levels a safe place to live and work.

Local Revenue Base

Governor Newsom declared a state o f emergency in the State oil March 4.2020 and on March 19,2020 the Goverrior
signed an Executive Order ordering the shut-down ofatl non-essential business and mandated that all employees,
other than essential workers, remain at home. The Chico City Council declared a state o f emergency in the City on
March 25,2020.

The sudden cessation of business activity, travel and tourism resulting from the pandemic had a devastating impact
on the retail and hospitality sectors in Chico. Many restaurants and retail businesses closed, and the hotel occupancy
rates dropped. Employment declined iii the City as many employees were laid off. Noted related decreases in tax
revenue include:

• Sales tax revenue decreased 3%

• Transient occupancy tax decreased 16%

Other key economic factors reflect slow but steady growth for the City. The City is seeing a continiied liicrease in
local construction as evidenced by an increase in building permits issued. planning fees, and sales of new and
existing homes.

I 4



Management's Discussion and Analysis

It is not possible to predict the impact of the pandemic on property tax revenue. 'llie Commercial real estate sector
could sustain losses in value from the pandemic as tenants evaluate density and remote work. A loss in value would
result in lost property taxes.

Subsequent Economic Impacts of American Rescue Plan Act Funds

The City of Chico was awarded $22 million in American Rescue Plan Act of 2021 funds, Hal fofthe funds were
received in May of 2021 and half is expected in May 01'2022. Tlie deadline for spending the funds is I)ecember
31,2024.

Eligible uses include:

o Revenue recovery
o Broadband/fiber projects
o Water and sewer i nfrastructure

o Assistance for individuals, businesses and non-profits
The City's executive leadership is analyzing and priorilizing different options for using the funds.

Requests for Information

Questions concerning any of the in formation provided in this report or requests [or additional financial information
may be reque.sted as follows:

US Mail: or l'hone: or Email:

City o f Chico (530) 879-7300 scott.dowell@chicoca.gov
Administrative Services Director

P.O. Box 3420

Chico. Call fornia 95927
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STATF,MEN I OF NET POS[ [103

.11 INE 30,2112 I

Primary (,overnment Compoiletil l Jnit

('hien 1 trbilli

G ;overnment,1 1 18=ine-type Area Joint Powen

Activities Activitics Total Filiancing Authority

ASSEi'%

Ct,Hen[ Assets

Cashand investmelts $ Ill.918.141 $ 46.234.470 $ 158.152,611 $

IRestricted cash and mves[Inents 2.463,206 - 2,463,206 1.516271

Rece,vables

I,terest Il.702.372 - ll.702,372 103.385

l'Hiperly taxes 600.72 I - 600,721

Accounts 2168.897 2.841,752 5110.649

l il te rgo ve 1 11 Ilk Zi t a l 12.268.812 3.273.733 1123,45

1.uins 62.001.013 - 62.001.013

I'Wm 175.967 - 175.967

( }ther iassets 47.145 47.145

Noncimmt Assets

Cap 11 31 ils.Nets
Nepreemble 57.222.517 26,775,184 83.997.901

1)epreciable. net 268,406,205 112,4 14.460 380,820,665

l'Ottll assets 529.074,998 191.539,799 720.614,797 1,619.656

1)1.11 1{REI) Ot i l l.OUS 01' 14).41)l ln'l S

1)elirrtd (irittl{,ris IL'!Eatd lu Iwilsiot),S 16,966.506 2.144.100 19. I 1 0.606

litol delbn·ed oulll(iwj of lesollice, 16.966.506 2344300 19.110.606

1,IAH!111]ES

Cukieni Liabilines

Accounts payable 3.716.984 3.424.664 7,141.648

Accrued salaries and benefits 1.126.488 1 66.163 1.292.653

Iniergovernniciual payable 1.846,889 - 1.846,889

Interest payable - 70.717 7(),717

28,823 20.012 48.865

tlneurn revenue 11.763,212 568.591 12.331,805

(Mhet acerned liabilities 26,154 26.154

Lung-terin Imbilitle,

Due wili,none yeiti 3.664.087 1.669.680 5,333,767

Dile in mow than one year 9.4 I 8.248 20,182.Ill 29.8(1().359 23.059.478

I ) ue m more I han one yeur net pension habilily 124,975.469 19,674.303 144,649,772 -

[c,tkilli.Iblli112.s 156,566,354 45,976.275 202,542.629 23,059,478

1)El,1.[lltE[) INFIOWN{)1 RES{)1IRCES

lk:I'erred ililli,wh related to pers,ins 949.995 165.246 1,115,241

I olal dereiral intlows of reNource• 949.995 165.246 1,115,241

NE[ 14)411'ION

Net invest,™int In capital asseth 323.630,848 114.5/8.515 4 38,209.161

Remineted for

('apitai pruiecti 45.528,1156 - 43,521.856

110(1!,Ing 63.748,813 - 63,748.813

Mmntenance districts 4,378.909 - 4.378.909

(kher gover,iinent prograitis 2,493.I 242.493.124

Public %81*ty 387.956 - 387.956

1 Ime•,triele,1 (deficit) (51,643.351) 32,963,863 ( 18.679,488) (21.439.822)

[oial net position (deficit) $ 388.525.I 55 $ 147,542,378 $ 536,067.533 $ (21.439,822)

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Governmental Fund Types

Governmental funds consist o f the General Fund, special revenue funds and capital proiects funds,

Maior Governmental Funds include:

• General

The City's primary operating fund. Accounts fur all financial resources of the general government,
except those required to be accounted for in another fund,

• CDBG and HOME Housing
Accounts for the Cominlinity Development Block Grant (C[)13(3) annual federal grant program and
the State and Federal HOME grant programs. The Cl)BG program provides for development of
viable urban community by providing a suitable living environment and expansion of economic
opportunities, principally for low and moderate income residents. The NOME program provides for
the development of affordable housing and mortgage subsidy programs and housing rehabilitation
to benefit low income households. Use of CDBC; and 1!OMEI funding is restricted per federal
guidelines.

• Capital Grants

Accounts for receipts and disbursements of a variety of governmental fund capital grants.

• Low and IModerate Income Housing Asset Fund
The Low and Moderate Income I [Rising Special Revenue Fund accounts for all activities resulting
from the elimination of the Redevelopment Agency's low and moderate income housing function,
Primarily, this Fund utilizes program income from loan payments restricted for the development and
assistance for low-income households. Use of Ilousing Funds is restricted according to the
provisions contained in California State Assembly Bill 1 X26 and California State Assembly Bill
1484.

Proprietary Fund Types

Proprietary funds consist of the enterprise funds and the internal service funds.

Major enterprise funds include:

• Sewer

Accounts for sanitary sewer collection system and Water Pol lution Control Plant operations
including major repair and replacement of the City's Water Pollution Control Plant
facilities.

• Parking

Accounts for parking Facilities operations and improvements and debt service on the 1994
Parking Revenue Bonds issued to finance the downtown parking structure.

• Private Development

Accounts for private development planning and building inspection and subdivision
planning and inspection.

• Airport

Accounts for airport operations and improvements.



FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Fiduciary Fund Type

Fiduciary funds include:

• Private-purpose Trust Fund
Accounts for the assets, liabilities and activities of the Successor Agency to the Chico
Redevelopment Agency.

• Custodial Fund

Accounts for assets held in an agency capacity for parties outside the City. The resources
of this fund cannot bc used to support the City's own programs. The Fund accounts for
assets held by the City as an agent for bonded assessment districts.
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HAIAN(·IC MIll 1<1 - (;(,VI'l<NUI N'[ Al I ll\1,4.

ItiNF'.30.202:

ILove &

Moderale

CIMIC; & Public Incomellousing Noilmajor l'otal

Facilitics Capilat i bumW Asset (kovernmental Governmental

General 1·und Housing Impact Fees Grants 1·und Funds 1;unds

ANNE' 1.N

Cas  mid mvestinents $ 41,958.485 1 766,455 $ 34,287,877 1 . $ 2,802,MI $ 23.015.973 $ 102,toi,131

Restricted cash and investmenls 2,039,030 - . . 124.176 2,163,206
Rece,vables

Interest 210,364 943.476 · 10,548.433 99 11,702,372
Properly taxes 571,107 - · -  27,6M MOO.721
Accori,ils 2,026,095 51.269 2,077.364
Intergo verniii ental 6.749,239 319,638 3,582,660 - I,617,275 12.268,812
1.(Hills 7.415,182 - 54.562,354 23,477 62.001.13

I'repaid items 174,660 - "  174,660
Advances to othe, funds . - 42.205 - - - 42,205

101,11 ndem $ 53,730.980 $ 9.444.751 $ 34.310.082 $ 3.581660 $ 67.913.128 $ 24.859.883 $ 193»1.484

1 1,41111.1'1 IFS. DEFERRILI)

INFLOWN OF RESOURCI'X
\NI}FIND IMIANCES

I.iatilitles,

AEounts i,yable $ 1,097,031 $ 817,7 It $ 114.383 $ 229,842 $ 613,709 5 396,947 $ 3.269.623

Aern•ed q,laries und [rne·fits 939.944 10. litt . 4.824 10!31141 1 057.C)v)

1 )/po A 8.823 - . 20,000 - 28.823
Intergovernmental payable - 26,678 I .820.211 - . i,846.889

Due to other l'unds - - - 2,639,923 - 2.639 923

1 1 :earne LI levenue 11,050.317 - - 712,895 - - 11.763.212
Other Liciled Ilibillties 26,154 26,154

Advances tinin tille, 1-unds . . . . - 42.205 42.205

1 i,tallinbilitie, 13,122,269 854,870 1,934,594 3.582.660 638.533 540,993., 20,763.919

I)el'erred intlows 01' resoulees

Unavullable h#Nwrm li,ni) iiikiest

revenue . 943,476 - · 10,548.433 · 11,491,409
1 Inavailable revenue 1,175,953 - - 834,334 623,754 92,851 2,726,892

1 I,wl delin ((1 Follows of re.%*,iiiws 1.175,953 834.334 I l. I 72. I 87 92,851 14,218.801943.76

I und b,ihinces (delk·,t)

NonspenduMe 174,660 - - . 1 74.660
Restricle,1 2.250,032 7,646.4()5 32.195.488 - 56.102.408 18.274.754 116.669.017
('ommilled 12,328.685 -  12.328,6
A•%18·1ed 9.488.050 - . - 5.951,285 I 5.439.135

1 in,1511:'la 15,191,331 - - (834,334) - . 14.336.997 _

I-utal fund lulamea (deficit) 39,432,758 7,646.405 32395,488 (834,334) 36,102.408 24.226.039 [58,968,764

louil Iliibilities, de!triLY! inllous ,)1
wmwax *d lbd hAmmi $ 53.730,980 ,$ 9,444,751 $ 34,330,082 $ 3.582.660 $ 67,91.1,I 28 $ 24.859.88 1 $ 193.861.484

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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CITY OF('111('C),CAt.]FORNIA

Rl{CONCH,TATION OF Tlll: BALANCE S11141' I - GOVERNM .N I A  1 1 JNDS

1() 1 HE S [ATIi,MENT OF NET POSt'1'ION- GOVERNMIWIAL. AC'!IVI ]'11.S

JUNE 30,2021

rotal fund balances (deficit) - total governmental funds $ 158.968,764

Amounts reported toi' governmental activities in Ille

statement 01 not position are diflbrent because:

Capital assets, net ofaccumulated depreciation, used iii

governmental activities are not financial resources and, therefore,

tire nol repcirted iii the gover,imental ftinds. 325,575.711

1)efurred iniallows 01'resources reported in the Stutement 01'Net Position

Related to Pension 16,021,204

Other long-term lissets are not available to pay for current-period

expenditures and, therelk,re, are reported as unavailable revemics in the

fund 1421 8.801

Interest payable on long-term debt does not require currenl financial

resources, therefure„ interest payable is not reported as a liability in

1®ibrred inllows of resources reported in the Statement of Net Position

IRelated to Pension (877,Ill)

internal service funds arc used by management to charge the

costs of activities to individual [unds. The asset and

liabilities of internal service funds are included in

governmental activities in tlic statement 01'net position. (3,746.658)

Some liabilities are not due and payable in the current period

und Iherefore line not reported in the funds.

Net pension liability

Capital leases payable

Compensated absences

(116,301.348)

(1.997.874)

(3,336,304) (121,635,526)

Net position of governmenlal activities $ 388,525,155

See accompariyirig notes to the financial statementi.
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CH Y OFC!11CO, CALIFORNIA

RrrONCILIA liON OF MIR STATEMENTOF REVENUI:.S. 10(PIF.NDI]Ult[24 ANDCIIANG S ]N FUND
IJAI,ANCI·,f• 4. GOVERNMENTAL FUNI)S TO 'lili.STATEMEN I OF AC OVI III,S

FOR-1111'. Yli.Al{ 1<NI)1.11 JUNI. 30.2021

Nct change in fund hillances · total governmental funds $ 16.729,092

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement ol'activities are
dill'erent because:

Governmental lunds report capital outlay as expetiditures. 1 Iowever, in the
statement ofactivities the costofthose assets is allocated over their e>,tiniated

Lise1211 lives ai,d reported as depreciuition expense.

Capital millay

Depreci}ilibin expense

10,152,893

(12,323,365) (2,17(),472)

l'he iici ellect o['various miscellancous transactions involving capital Assets

Ii.c. disposals, transibrs, donations, etc.) was to increase (decrease) net position:
Capital Contributions 2,072,665 2,072,665

Revenues in dic slateinent ofactivitics that do mit provide curi·ent financial
resources are not reported as revenues iii the funds.

Unavaihible revenues (129,254)

The issuance of long-term debt (e.g., botids, leases) provides current flitanciul
resources to governmental funds. while the repityment „1'[he principal of long-term
debt consumes the current financial resources ol-governmental funds, Neither
transaction, however, Ims any affect on net assels. Also, governmental funds
report the cITed o f issuance costs. premiums, discounts and similar items when
debt is fir,st issued, whereas these amounts :ire dclurred lind umortized in the

statement ofaclivilies.

l'rincipal retirement 527,782

Some expenses,·eported in the watement ofactivitics do not require the use of

current linancial resources End thereforc are not reported as expenditures in
governmental funds.

Change in net pension liability

('Imnge in compensated absences

(4,689,729)

47,907 (4,641,822)

Special Item related to OPER climination that was not included in the

govern,nental activity funds. 145.538

Internal service ['unds are used by management to charge the costs of certain
activities to individual funds. A portion ol'lhe net revenue (expense) of internal
service funds is reported with governmental activities. 1,252,263

Change in net position 01'govenunental activities $ 13,782,792

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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(il)(>I'(IliO{jillit)RNIA

S I A l I &11 N 1 01 NI· I POS: I ION

1'1{(11'RLICIARY FLINDS

.RJNI ·to, 101 I

Bu!:ine-type Activities · F.nlcipils© Fimdm
10(01 ( 10% c 1,1 He,111,1

IF¥,v·ate I·,11:,Pnge Aem[A. - Ill¢cnint

Sewer P/„ki"8 1)evelopniont Airpoil 1·„„ds .Cl VIC¢ imis

AS,!IN

{ iNTern n"elq

(Lih 1,1,1 in jes[,11:imt. $ 37,013,203 $ 2*91.3 $ .1.790.700 1 2.26,1644 $ 46,134.470 $ 9.087.012
Rece,vable.

Acc'Iints 2.557.667 23.986 35,418 2.841.752 191,5132,661

1,110, 9.05&7 11111(11'al 6.903 1.266,1(28 3.273.733

line from other fund. - + 2.639923
Inventories - . 47.145
Ibernic| :Alk·nzes - 1.307

I ,>tal e//le ¢1! 61,/9 ell 39,577,773 2.168.584 3,016,686 5.586.910 52,349,953 il ·964,9.20

No,„01:,mi age,

Casholid Inve,(menliwill, 118(1,1 + - . 300000
C.pl[a| ahheli

1 ned md MIN,ri,(mon iii progroBs 21,467,826 1.138389 + 1.969.169 26,77%,lit,1 30,391

I qu'Cl'.
11 da«11!11!lille(! dfw#m 96,607,280 1.374,679 - 14.432,501 112.414.460 22,620

I'.,0 ./"I'llie'll 'll/ell 118,075,106 2.713,068 - 18,401,670 139.189.844 333,OIl

95&:,8 157,652,881 4,881,632 3.016.686 23.988.380 191,339.799 12.319,931

DH.1-1<Rt'.Dot'Il 1.OWN OFRI.MOURC'ES

I ®fu i,cd ./4:Ih.# , ie h/ed m P/:smns 924,IIN 166,560 924,11% 129,104 2,144,lou 945,302

I „(411 de fi /1ed W Ili:, 4 01' YL,im ws 924,1111 166,560 924.118 129,304 2,144,100 945,302

IIAI;Il lili S

Curren[ 11.,biltries

A-* p*de :73.344 9.311 308.989 1.03 I.020 3.42,1,66,1 4,17.261

AmidrumliesIIn 76,569 9.129 73.167 7.3{)0 166.16 9 69.398
|IlleleN¢ /4/,|0 70,717 - 70,717
lef . 20.042 + 10.{)42 100

{·AN,.i.:Imted,111.71:: - .:Mwcpo.jwn 27,625 482 29.IMZ 2.291 59.680 20.3,12

C '11"1114 | 1111"114 -C,11 WI,1 PO,11011 - . - - 2.1 77.493
1evernie bonds pay:,lile - cutlent portion 1,610,01)0 - . I,61 0,000

ll,noneil king . . 568.591 - 568,591
if,18! CIWI,11,111,lili ici 1,960,233 19,022 1199.973 3,040,611 5.919.861 2,714.394

Nimmlen, 1,61,1,es

R r ,:, Ix h, sil, :,14 able, /1:1 19.970.309 I<,970,109

(49&*d**DR Igu,610 4.{}13 211.16{1 l5.Hll JILHol 140,joe

c'|allil" h,I|M JI 5.409.958
Net pemic.,i luili,litv 8,479,725 1.528,301 8.479.725 1.186.492 19,674,303 8.674.121

|,R,| Ii.HCillie,il |,illi,|ile4 28,640.650 1,3.32,376 8.681.085 1,202,303 40,056,414 14,224,443
1 (*al liabllilies 3000:)05 1.551,398 9,381.CiR 4.242.914 45.976.279 16.939,037

1)11211<1(111) INII()WN{)li RISOLdl<(·lIb

Il:*L :,ed lit LE, % 1 :1.lei 1 1. p nifol, 7 I,222 12,837 71,222 9,963 165.246 72.854

I „£.11 d, le ned I, 41„.I. 01'ws„ ki, 498 71,222 12,837 71,222 9.961 165.246 72,854

NI 1 14>>41 ItoN

Nel mve.lin,il iii empilill unds 96.494.797 2.713,068 - 13,370,650 114,578.515 53JHI

Ilil%111CI 31.410,075 770,909 (3.711,476) 4,494,353 32.961.863 (3,799,669)

I (>lili IW! PWM#U $ 127,904,872 $ 3,483.977 $ (1,7ll.4761. $ 19,865,005 $ I,I7,542.378- $ 0,746,618)

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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('1'M 01'(111('O, (·Al.I[·1)RNI,

hi'Al'I<MEN I'(,4 C A.411 I loU'X

PIt()1'Itil IAN¥ 171[NI),

FOR I'llE YEAIR ENDED JINE jO, 2021

IU,·,inewlype Activilie · 1.meqinge hmds {4:0.Ir,il,il

rocal ACI, :lieN·

linvi,te 11,le,11$11En#pirme
Sewer PArk,1,0 ! ) eve 1,1111,1 9,1 2 Ai,port Funds .Sen·ic. 1 -6

C AS[I FI C)WS I RC]&1 (}Ill IZA IIN(; AC·l IV[l IES"

Reccipts lium ci,Mtomels mid u.el. $ 17.995.26 1 $ 373.191 $ USX.601 5 643.776 $ 24.200.830 $ 1

Receipts fulm Ilile,Iilid sen·,ce prnvided + - . . MUUM
P.4 213:111: (0 .,111,11, 1% :11„1 ¢1411,11111,1, (3.694.314) (266.691) (1.011.100) 2.768.829 (2207.277) (I 5.326.511)
1 '.,Vilielitit„ e,1,1,1,ev (2.467.202) (295.894) (1.60:.454) (237.614) (5,601,16,1 ) 12.614,383)
Pmille.% le:,Mahmd .ru::. I,:d (789,922) (234.374) (660.531) (223,239) .

Nel cawl, pron ided (,i.ed) liv .peti,ling „:livilieR I I,04 I,823 (423.768) 913.516 2,951,752 14,48-3,321 1.482.322

{·AS Il i LOWS FROM NONCAP] VAL I:INANCING

A# 1 IVII'lliS:

(2„179.436)1,•le, h,/1/1 b¢MT,•#'E,lgN .

11;11!NIC. m 15.792 943.740 1,403.493 1.370. 70<3 149,0301.673

1/0 i,fen om (17:,213) (3,600) (186,837) (66.791) (4211,463) (727,199}
Net <:i,·.Ii prm*d UAd) *umqMA

limincinF, m livilles 035.4111 73 758,810 1,1111,704 I,942,237 (2,937,605)

( ' Ax  1 1 1 OWN I·R(}41 CAM 1 Al  AN D 1411.A l ED

1 INANK·ING.W-11\1111-5

A pits,lion und con,tiL[el,0,101'capitil ii.jets (1.1 87.2113) (1208) - 63,079.171) (4,271,862)
pu,1 . . cl.4 Imm lonf Im„ dd,t It 905,792 - . 23,905,292

Iii Illey.I PINI .H I(j,W.Ve,,11 del,1 0.9,591.1641 + - . (29.591.141)

Iliteli W IN,/d {641,!i91] x (611.595 )

(1'pilill iii ilril, I e ©en·©{1 129,310 129.310

Ne, ah „Ned *1 ©dI,Nul vin<1 I:ated Ii,mneitM .2£,1, Rics (7.516.750) (5,2081 - 9.950.060 (10.472.019)

c 'ASI III (>WAIR(,MIN VISI'IN(i Ac lIVIll lit

11,1.Add 20.853 32.05 11 8,931 360,576298.742

Nel ¢i,sh plovided In live,Ii,p, ael, vitioB 298.742 20,853, 32,050 8.93] 160,576

Nle, mer enne/(ditoreirie) m cash und :imli 04 Vi le,1!i 3.668.19/ (408.050) I.70,1 449 I,349116 6.314.117 [ 1.473.210)

('ANIIANI) INVI·NI'MINIS. 8,1.1,•,ii,•gor ¥ m 33,144,811 2,573,973 3,086,231 9:3,318 39,920,353 _ 10,862,295
FAill ANI> INVES I'MEN'l'S. end o f ve;„ $ 37.013.203 $ 2,165,923 $ 4.790,700 $ 2.264,644 $ 46,234,470 1 9.187.01 2

RUCON('11 IATION In

S I ATI·MI·NT{}INI· I 14)XI I ION

('ah|i imil 'In ostmenis 37.01120 3 2.165.923 4.790,700 2.264 6.11 -16234.470 9.087.012

(gislinnil I,ive#,11091:, with agent · · . 300,000
CAN  ANI) IRVIN i .11·NTS. end of wm $ 37.011,203, S 2,[65,923. j 4.790.700 S 2,264,64 $ 46,234.470$ 9,387.011

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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(·11 V (H Cl¢1(·O, C At.11·()1(NIA

Al ATEMEN l Ot ('.thlt Fl.{)511

14«)1'Rll·I,Un I·IEND·Nt{'()Nt,Ntll··D)
1·'OIt 111]. VE.Alt ENI)11) JITNE 30.2021

Bmne'ill·lylie Activities - Enlerprise Funds (Im 0,1.ami

Total .\Clit ilie•i.

11 vate :Tnti'51,lise Ii,le,iial

Sewei· 1'"rkilig Development Airport Funds Scivict· 1·jitids

RECON('11 IAIION OF OPFRAIING INC·(>MI· Il.OSS)

I{ 1 NI: I (·AS I 1 PR(,VII}I 1) (l iS I :1)) HY {)1'ERA I INA i

A<'IIVIIIN:A

Open,¢my. licolliet€,14) $ 6.HI)9.401 $ (574,763) $ 733,737 $ (1.424.864) $ 5,543.510 1 1,736,683

Clianges in nixe!8. defeITed 'tillows of re.iurcei tiabititles

and defened outtlow. 01'reource N:

1)ei,lecimlimi 4.591.7 :9 153.1185 1,3249 6.071.672 1,740

(,Pi lie'pell/'.

12.836 7:214

Ill.902) 15.750) (Cll.902) (4.463) (74.0 17) (32,632)

Pension expense 71.lit 9.96.1 I 65.228 72,8,10

Mise,HIMMils re, e.mie. . · 3,571 22.97() 26. i41 93 749

Fha,71,0 m ziskix i:nd Ilub,Ill,es

A::o u:, I s :.oci\M) le (63.869) - 23.724 2.168 (35.777)

Interpo.·enninci,ialicemables . 3.926 2.0881.926
linentories - · - - (j·126)

1 le Posil. w ilh 01112,7 2,010 - - 2.010

1,1 elw„,1 - 4 - - 114.934
Acco,i„ls payul,le· (384.197) 5.56i 1-3.642 3,019,265 2,684.075 (12,1),1 1)

AM.4 dmb,mdh,eliIN 10.%86 (5611 7,20 1 2.587 19.875 3,526

('01 :,pei,gled .,1,3ei,ces , I .Il 4 (14.978) (70) {1.143) M.021 10,33,1

[Inemned revenue - - 115·914 + 115 914

IlCB''JIIli (55,577) - (55.577) 100

€·lam™ Ii:,biliy - - (3(M.3091

1 „CHI :,ditls!,„unts 4,232,42.1 150.997 179.779 4,376,6:6 8,939,813. (254,361)

Ne¢ casl, P.Ad:d (md) 4 4:inti Rel,¥Ilws $ I 1.0,11,823 $ (423.768) $ 913,516 $ 1951,731 $ 14,483,323 $ 1,4Rl.321

N{) N{ 'Ah] 1 INVIS EING. Al'IIAI ANI)1·INAN(·INC;

AC-I·Ivil·11-4

I 8,1,ful il'ci,illi,li1 $ 8,121,524 S . $ - $ - $ 8,121,524 S

1 01,11 mii:„plittivesting. cup,tal and filinnei,ig activities ,$ 8.121,324 $ . 3 -$ .3 8,121,524

See accompanying roles to the financial statements.
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CITY OF CHICO, CALIFORNIA

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION - FIDUC ]ARY FUNDS

June 30,2021

Private-purpose

Trust Fund Custodial Funds

Assets

Restricted cash and investments $ 6,193,935 $ 571,363

Receivables:

Loans 540.819 26.484

Capital Assets - !,and 1.667.131 -

Total assets 8,401,859 $ 597,847

Liabilities

Accounts; payable $ 472 $
Special assessment deposits - 597,847
1.ong-term liabilities:

Due within one year 4,665,000 -

Due in more than one year 53,360.000

Total liabilities 58,025,472 597,847

Deferred I nflows of Resoui·ccs

Deferred amount on bond refunding 358,932

Net Position

rotal net position (deficit) held in trust $ (49,982,545) $

See accompanying notes to the financial statementb.
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CITY OF CHICO

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2021

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. TliE FINANCIAL It[.PORTING ENTITY

The City of Chico, California (City) was incorporated on February 5. 1872 under tile laws of the State of
California. The City is achartercity and isgoverned by aseven member City Council. The City provides a full
range of services including police and fire protection; sanitation; parking and transportation services; the
construction and maintenance of highways, streets and infrastructure; and recreational activities and
cultural events. The City's reporting entity includes all of the funds of the City, as well as the Chico
Urban Area Joint Powers Financing Authority (JPFA) which is reported as a discretely presented component
unit as the economic resources of the JPFA directly benefit the City and its inclusion is considered necessary to
ensure complete financial reporting,

B.

Discretely Presented Component l]Init

Chico Urban Area Joint Powers Financing Authority
In August 2005, the governing boards o f the Chico Redevelopment Agency, which due to State Assembly Bill 1 X
26 is now known as the Successor Agency to the Chico Redevelopment Agency, and the County of Butte,
established a joint powers agency known as the Chico [Jrhan Area Joint Powers Financing Authority (JPFA) to
facilitate the financing, construction and installation of sewer facilities and improvements in the greater Chico
urban area. The JPFA was formed pursuant to the provisions of thejoint powers laws of the State of California,
as set forth in Article 1, Chapter 5, Division 7. Title 1 of the California Government Code (commencing with
Govei·nment Code Section 6500). Subsequentto dissolution ofthe Chico Redevelopment Agency, thegoverning
Board of' the JPFA is composed of two members of the Butte County Board of Supervisors and two members of
the Chico City CounciL The JPFA is authorized to obtain state or federal loans for the purpose of financing the
construction and installation o fsewer facilities andimprovements. The financialactivity ofthe JPFA is included
in the City of Chico's financial statements as a discretely presented component unit as the JPFA provides a
financial benefit by contributing to the City's Sewer Enterprise Fund. Complete financial statementsofthe JPFA
may be obtained from the Finance Deparlment ofthe City of Chico at 41 1 Mai n Street, Chico, Cali fornia 95928.

C. GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement ofnet position and the statement of:activities) report

information on atl of the nonfiduciary activities of tile primary government and its component 1111 its.
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CITY OF CHICO

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNI·: 30,2021

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements, Governmental
activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from
business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support.

['he statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses ora given function or segment
are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or
segment. Program reventies include I) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit
from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and contributions that
are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes,
investment earnings. and other items, which are excluded from program revenues are reported instead as general
revelilles.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds, even
though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements, Major individual governmental
funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements,

The City reports the Following major governmental fitnds:

The General Fund is the City's primary operating fund. Itaccounts forall financial resources o f thegeneral
government, except those required to be accounted for in another ftind,

The (21)1*G and HOME Housing Special Revenue Flind accounts for the C ommunity Development Block
Grant (CDBG) annual federal grant program and the state and federal I IOME grant programs. The CDBG
program provides for the development of a viable urban community by providing a suitable living
environment and expansion ofeconomic opportunities, principally for low and moderate income residents.
11he HOME program provides for the development of affordable housing and mortgage subsidy programs and
housing rehabilitation to benefit low-income households. Use of CDBG and l IOME funding is restricted per
federal guidelines.

i he Public Facilities Impact Fee Capital Projects Fund accounts for the collection o fand expenditures of'
fees imposed as a condition ofnew developmentwithin the Cily, Impact fees have been established foreach
of the following types of public fucilities:

• Bikeway improvement
• Street facility improvement

• Storm drainage facility
• Sewer trunk line capacity
• Water Pollution Control Plant capacity
• Sewer lift stations

• Community parks
• Bidwell Park land acquisition
• Maior maintenance equipment
• Administrative building

• Fire protection building and equipment
• Police protection building and equipment

• Neighborhood parks

l'he Capital Grants Capital Projects Fund accounts for the receipts and disbursements for a variety of
governmental fund capital grants.
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CITY OFCHICO

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STAl'EMENTS

FOR '1'llE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2021

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

The Low and Moderate Income Housing Asset Special Revenue Fund accounts for all activities resulting
from the elimination of the Redevelopment Agency's low and moderate housing function. Primarily, this
1:und utilizes program income from loan payments restricted for the development and assistance for low
income households. New loans conveyed to the Fund from the Successor Agency are recorded as other
transfers from the private-purpose trust fund. Use of these I lousing Funds is restricted according to the
provisions contained in California State Assembly Bill 1 X26 and California State Assembly Bill 1484.

The City reports the following major proprietary funds:

'1'he Sewer Enterprise Fund accounts for sanitary sewer collection system and Water Pollution Control Plant
operations, including major repair and replacement of the City's Water Pollution Control Mant facilities.

The Parking Enterprise Fund accounts for parking facilities operations and improvements.

['he Private Development Enterprise Fund accounts for private development planning and building
inspection and subdivision planning and inspection.

l'he Airport Enterprise Fund accounts for airport operations and improvements.

Additionally, the City reports the following fund types:

internal Service Funds account for selfinsurance, central garage. municipal bililding maintenance, pension
funding and information services provided to other departments or agencies of the City on a cost-
reimbursement basis.

Ithe Private-purpose Trust Fund is a fiduciary fund type used by the City to report trust arrangements under
which principal and income benefit other governments. This fund reports the assets, defurred in flows,
liabilities, and activities of the Successor Agency of the City of Chico Redevelopment Agency (Successor
Agency) and the Chico Public Financing Authority which is also included within the Successor Agency's
fiscal activity.

The Custodial Fund is custodial in nature and does not involve measurement of results of

operations. The Fund accounts for assets held by the City as an agent for bonded assessment districts.

C. BASIS OF PRESENTATION, BAS[S OF ACCOUNTING, AND MEASUREMENT FOCUS

l'he government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the
accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial statements. Revenues are
recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless ofthe timingof related
cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar
items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement fueus and
the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recogniz.ed as soon as they are both measurable and
available. Revenues are considered to be avai lable when they are collectible within the current period or soon
enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the City considers revenues to be
available if they are collected within 60 days ofthe end of the current fiscal period, except For sales tax true up
payments, which the City considers to be available if they are collected within seven months of the
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CITY OF CI 1 ICO

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR 111[i YEAR EN[)131) JUNE 30, 2021

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

end of the current fiscal period.

Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. 1 lowever, certain
expenditures, such as principal, interest and compensated absences, are recorded as fund liabilities only when they
become due and payable. The City includes certain indirect costs as program expenses, which are reported in the
City's functional activities.

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial
statements. Exceptions to this general rule are exchange or exchange-like transactions between functions of the
government. Eliminations ofthese charges would distort the direct costs and program revenues reported for the
various functions concerned.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues and
expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a
proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. '1'he principal operating revenues of the enterprise and internal
service funds are charges to customers for sales and services. Operating expenses for enterprise and internal
service funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets.
Al] revenues and expenses not meeting this delinition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses,

Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the government, 1·'iduciary
funds are not rellected in the government-wide financial statements because the resources of those funds are not
available to support the County's own programs. Fiduciary funds report the Private Purpose Trust Funds and
Custodial Funds.

Ihe preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported
amounts and disclosures, Accordingly. actual results could differ from those estimates.

D. ASSETS, DEFERRI.D OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES, I.!ABILI'l'IF{S, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCE.S AND NET POSI'nON OR EQUITY

Cash and Investments

Cash and investments (including restricted assets) held in the City's investment pool are reported as cash and cash
equivalents in the statements of cash flows of the proprietary fund types.

Investments are recorded at fair value. Accordingly, the change in fair value of investments is recognized as an
increase or decrease to investment assets and investment income.

Restricted Cash and Investments

Restricted cash and investments represent amounts that are restricted for debtservice, capital projects, and other
amounts held in connection with the City's self-insurance programs.

Receivables and Payables

Balances representing lending/borrowing transactions between funds outstanding at the end of the fiscal year
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CITY OF CHICO

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THIE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2021

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

are reported as either "due from/due to other funds" (amounts due within one year) or "advances to/from other
funds" (non-current portions of interfund lending/borrowing transactions). Any residual balances outstanding
between the governmental activities and business-type activities are reported in the government-wide financial
statements as "internal balances." Advances to other funds are offset by nonspendable fund balance in applicable
governmental funds to indicate they are not available for appropriation and are not expendable available financial
resources.

All property taxes are collected and a l located by the Coutity of Butte to the various taxing entities. Properly taxes
are determined annually as of March 1 and attach as an enfurceable lien on real property as of January 1. Taxes
are due November 1 and February 1 and are delinquent i[not paid by December 10 and April 10, respectively.
The City participates in the County "Teeter Plan" methodofproperty tax distribution. Under the Teeter Plan. the
County remits properly taxes to the City based on assessments, not on collections. Property tax is recognized
whenitis measurableandavailable. The City considers property taxasavailableifit is received within 60 days
after year end.

Revenue from taxpayer-assessed taxes (sales and use, business license, transient occupancy. utility users, gas. and
franchise fees) are accrued in the governmental funds when they are both measurable and available, The City
considers these revenues available if they are received during the period when settlement of prior fiscal year
accounts payable occurs. Historically, the maiority o f these taxes are received within 60 days of the fiscal year
end; therefore. revenue from tarpayer-assessed taxes is accmed if it is received by August 31,
The City records its receivables as follows:

1. Interest receivable represents interest earned by the City's cash and investment pool at year end
and available within the 60 day availability period. in addition. interest receivable also includes
interest from loans recei vable with the portion avai lable within 60 days recorded as revenue and
the portion not available within 60 days recorded as unavailable revenue or deferred intlows o f
resources,

2. Property taxes receivable represents property taxes received from Butte County within the 60 day
availability period.

3. Accounts receivable represents amounts due from non-governmentalentities for revenue earned and
available at year end. These include transient occupancy taxes, franchise fees mid utility user taxes.

4, Intergovernmental receivables represent amounts due from governmental entities for revenue earned
and avai lable at year end and within the 60 day availability period. These include sales taxes, grants,
and other revenue from federal, state and county sources,

Grant and entitlement revenues are recorded as receivables in the funds when they are susceptible to accrual (i.e.,
when all eligibility requirements have been met). The corresponding governmental fund revenues are recorded
when they become measurable and available, with the di fferences recorded as deferred inflows of resources. The
corresponding proprietary fund grant revenues are recorded as nonoperating revenues when the receivables are
recorded.

Jnvintories

Inventories consist of expendable supplies held for consumption amd are valued at cost using the first-in/first-out
(1·1120) method. Tile cost is recorded as inventory when items are purchased and as expenses when the items are
used.

Ceilal Assets
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CITY OF CHICO

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOIt '1'1-11€ YEAR ENDED JUNF, 30,2021

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Capital assets. which include land. easements, buildings, improvements, equipment and infrastructure, are
reported iii the applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in the government-wide financial
statements. The City defines capital assets as equipment with an initial individual cost 01'more than $20,000 and
1111 othercapital assets with an initial individual cost of more than $100,000 and an estimated useful life in excess
of one year. In addition, the City CapitaliNS all capital assets with an individual cost of $5,000 for all assets
acquired with federal funds. Capital assets are valued at historical cost or estimated historical cost if actual
historical cost is not available. Donated capital assets are recorded at acquisition value at the date of donation,
The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value ofthe asset or materially extend assets
lives are not capitalized.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed,

Depreciation is recorded using the straight line method over the following estimated useful lives of the assets:

Buildings 30-40 years

Improvements other than buildings 20-50 years

1(qtlipment, furniture and vehicles 3-30 years
Roadways 50 years
Bridges 30-50 years

Drainage 50 years

Capital leases are recorded as an asset and an obligation at an amount equal to the present value at the beginning
of the lease term of future minimum lease payments during the lease term.

Compensated Absences

Compensated absences are absences for which employees will be paid, such as vacation, sick leave, and
compensatory time. A liability for compensated absences that are attributable to services already rendered and
that are not contingent on a specific event that is outside the control of the government and its employees is
accrued as employees earn the rights to the benefits. Compensated absences that relate to future services or that
are contingent on a specific event that is outside the control of the government and its employees are
accounted for in the period in which such services are rendered or such events take place. All compensated
absences are accrued when incurred in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements. '1'he City's
liability for compensated absences is recorded in various governmental funds or proprietary funds as appropriate.
For all governmental funds, amounts expected to be paid out of current financial resources are recorded as fund
liabilities; as these liabilities represent the matured value due to ret rementor resignations; the long-term portion
is recorded in the Statement ofNet Position.

Compensated absences are liquidated by the fund that has recorded the liability only when matured. The long-
term portion ofgovernmental activities is liquidated primarily by the General Fund.

Long-Term Debt

In the government-wide financial statements, proprietary fund types and fiduciary fund types in the fund financial
statements. long-term debt, along with other long-term obligations are reported as long-term liabilities, Bond
premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the straight line method.
Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as well as
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NOTES TO T[[E FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR T! m YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,202 1

1. SIJMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing
sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt
isstiances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt
proceeds received, arc expensed in the period incurred.

Fund Balang

In the fund financial statements, the City's Governmental Funds report the following fund balances:

Non-spendable fund balances are not expected to be converted to cash within the next operating cycle and are
typically comprised o f long-term receivables, prepaid items and advances to other funds.

Restricted fund balances inciude amounts that can be spent only for the specific purposes stipulated by
constitution, external resource providers, or through enabling legislation. Restrictions are also recorded for
long-term loans receivable that originate from funding sources that are externally restricted.

Committed fund balances include amounts that can be used only for the specific purposes determined by a
formal action of the City Council. Tlie City Council has authority to establish, modify, or rescind a fund
balance commitment through a City Resolution.

Assigned fund balances include amounts thalare intended to be used by the City forspecific purposes. but do
not meet the criteria to be elassified as restricted orcommitted. Ascontained inthe City'sbudgetpolicies. the
City Council has authorized the City Manager to establish, modify, or rescind a fund balance assignment
made within the confines of the budget policies.

Unassigned fund balance is the residual classification for the City's funds and includes all spendable amounts
not contained in the other classifications. The General Fund is the only fund that may report a positive
unassigned fund balance.

When an expenditure is incurred fur purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted fund balance is available,
the City considers restricted funds to Ihave been spent first. When ati expenditure is incurred for which committed,
assigned, or unassigned fund balances are available, the City considers amounts to have been spent first out of
comm itted funds, then assigned funds, and finally unassigned funds, as needed.

Net Position

In the government-wide statements, the City's net position is classified in the following categories:

Net investment iii capital assets - This category groups all capital assets, inclitding infrastructure, into one
component of net position. Accumulated depreciation and the outstanding balances of debt that are
altributable to the acquisition, construction or improvement of these assets reduce this category.

Restricted net position - This category presents external restrictions imposed by creditors. grantors.
contributors or laws and regulations of other governments and restrictions imposed by law through
constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Unrestricted net position - This category represents the net position of the City. which is not restricted or
invested in capital assets net of related debt for any project or other purpose.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City's practice to use restricted
resources first followed by unrestricted resources as they are needed.

Reserve Policies

The City Council has established policies for operating reserves, emergency reserves and compensated
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NOTES TO TIIE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR TI m YEAR KNI)1(1) JUNE 30,2021

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

absence reserves. The operating reserve is targeted at seven and oric. hal f percent of General Fund operating
expenditures. The emergency reserve was established to help buffer the City from issues such as fluctuation in
sales tax, changes in state laws that impact Cily finances and other catastrophic events. The desired level of the
emergency reserve is twenty percent of General I·und operating expenditures. The compensated absence reserve
is targeted at 50% of the citywide liability for leave payouts when employees separate from City employment.
['he City is not meeting the minimum operating or desired emergency reserve and compensated absence reserve
levels.

I)e ferred outnows/intlows of resourees

In addition to assets, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section fur defurred outtlows of
resources. This separate financial statement element, deferredoutflows o/resources, 1·epresents a consumption or
net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an olitflow of resources
(expense/expenditure) until then, The City has one item that qualify for reporting in this category. It is the
deferred outflows related to pensions reported in the government-wide statement of net position, This item
represents pension contributions made subsequent to the measurement date and is discussed in Notes 12 and 13.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position will sometimes reportaseparate section fordeferred inflows
of resources. This separate statement element, deferred in/lows 0/'resources, represents an acquisition of net
position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an in flow o fresources (revenue) until
that time. The government has several types of deferred in flows of resources. Deferred inllows related to
pensionsthatare re flected in the statements of net position. These items are lurther discussed in Notes 12 and 13.
Two items, unavai lable housing loan interest revenue and unavailable revenue, arise only under a inodi fied
accrual basis of accounting. Accordingly, these items are reported only in the governmental funds statement of
net position and are discussed in Note 4. The Private Purpose Trust fund includes deferred inflow related to the
deferred amount on refunding.

li. PENSIONS

1''or purposes of measuring the net pension liability and deferred outtlows/inflows ofresources related to pensions,
and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the City's California Public V.mployees
Retirement System (CaIPERS) Plans mid additions to/deductions from the Plan's fiduciary net position have been
determined on the same basis as they are reported by CalPERS. For this purpose. benefit payments (including
refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms.
Investments are reported at fair value.

l·'. OTHER SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Budgetary Data

The annual operating budget is adopted by the City Council on or be toi·e the first meeting iii July each year on a
basis consistent with accounting principles generally accepted in the 1 Jnited States of America. The appropriated
budget is prepared by fund, departinent, fu nction, and activity. The City Managerisauthorized totransfer budget
amounts up to $50,000 between departments without City Council approval. Any budget transfers in excess of
$50,000 must be approved by City C.ouncil. All City governmentalandproprietary funds have approved budgets.
Original appropriations are adjusted by supplemental appropriations and budget modifications approved during

the year, creating the modified adopted budget.

Budgetary comparisons and reconciliations are included in Required Supplementary Information as Schedules of
Revenue and Changes in Flind Halance - Budget and Actual, f'or the General Fund, CDBO and HOME
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

I lousing Fund, and the Low and Moderate Income [ [ousing Asset Fund. In addition, abudgetary comparison and
reconciliation is included in the Supplemental Budgetary Comparisons section as Schedules of Revenue and
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual. for the Capital Grants Fund. Annual budgets are adopted on a
budgetary basis.

Interfund Transactions

Interfund transactions between funds are retlected as loans, services provided, reimbursements or transfers. l,oans
are reported as receivables or payables as appropriate, and are subject to elimination upon consolidation. The City
transfers resources among funds in thecourse o fnormal operations. Services provided. deemed to beat marketor
near market rates, such as vehicle maintenance, are accounted for as revenues and expenditures/expenses.
transactions to reimburse a fund for expenditures/expenses initially made from it that are applicable to another
fund are recorded as expenditures/expenses in the correct fund and as reductions of expenditures/expenses in the
original fund. All other interfund transactions are reported as transfers.

G, IMPLEMENTATIC)N 012 NE.W GOVERNMENTAL ACCOUNT'ING Sl'ANDARDS

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASH) releases new accounting and financial reporting
standards which may have a significant impact on the City's financial reporting process. New standards
applicable to the year ending June 30,2021 are as follows:

GASB Statemgqt No. 84 - Fiduciary Activities. This Statement establislies criteria fur identi fying fiduciary
activities ofall state and local governments. '1'he focus ofthe criteria generally is on (1) whether agovernment is
controlling the assets ofthe fiduciary activity and (2) the beneficiaries with whom a fiduciary relationship exists.
Separate criteriaare included to identi fy fiduciaty component units and postemployment benefit arrangements that
are fiduciary activities, The requirement of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after
December 15,2020. The City implemented this statement.

Ilhe City is currently analyzing its accounting and financial reporting practices to determine the potential impact
on the financial statements of the fullowiTig CIASB statements:

Statement No. 87, "Leases." The requirements ofthis Statement will take effect for financial statements
starting with the fiscal year that ends June 30,2022.

Statement No. 89, "Accomiting for Interest Cost Incurred be fore tile End of a Construction Period." This
Statement has been implemented.

Statement No. 91, "Conduit Debt Obligations." The requirements ofthis Statement will take effect for financial
statements starting with the fiscal year that ends December 31,2022.

Statement 92, "Omnibus 2020." The requirements of this Statement, rrhe requirements ofthis Statement will
take effect for financial statements starting with the fiscal year that ends Jine 30,2022.

Statement 93. "Replacement or Interbank Offered Rates." The requirement in paragraph 111, willtake effect
for reporting periods ending al-ter December 31,202 1. The requirements in paragraphs 13 and 14 will take
effect for financial statements starting with the fiscal year that ends June 30.2022.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Statement No. 94, "Public-Private and Public-Public Partnerships and Availability Payment Arrangements."
rhe requirements of this Statement will take effect for financial statements starting with the fiscal year that
ends June 30,2023.

Statement No. 96. "Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangements." The requirements ofthis
Statement will take ei'fect for financial statemenls starting with the fiscal year that ends June 30,2023.

Statement No. 97, "Certain Component Unit Criteria, and Accounting and Financial Reporting for Internal
Revenue Code Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plans - ··an amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and
No. 84, and a supersession of GASB Statement No. 32," The requirements of this Statement will take effuet
for financial statements starting with the fiscal year that ends June 30,2022.
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FOR TI IE Y[..AR ENDED JUNK 30,2021

2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS

At June 30,2021, the City's cash and investments at fair value were as follows:

Statement of Net Position

I)iN<Itelely Fiduciary Fund

IPrimary Pre Kelli edi Statement of

Government Coinponent Ililit Net Position l'otal

Cash and investments $ 158.151,208 $ . $ - $ 158.151,208

IRestricted cash and inve,Iments 2.463.206 I.5 I6,27I 6.765.297 10.744.771

In,prest Cash 1.405

rotal cash and

nvestments $ 160,615,819 $ 1,516.271 $ 6,765.297 $ 168.897.387

At.June 30,2021, the City's cash and investments consist o F the following:

C 'ash on nalid $ 1.405

1)eposils willi Financial Institutions 25.241.27()

Invest Ine„ lbs 143,654.712

$ 168.897.387

Authorized Investments

Thetable below identifiesthe investment types that are authorized by the City's investment policy and Call fornia
Government Code Section 53601. The City's investment policy is more restrictive than the California
Government Code, as the City may not invest in derivatives or reverse repurchase agreements. The City's
investment policy limits theamount offunds invested in instruments with maturities overoneyearto 15%, unless
adequate liquidity is available, yield appears favorable and the City Manager approves the investment in advance.
'This table does not address investments of debt proceeds held by bond trustees thalare governed by the provisions
of debt agreements of the City rather than the general provisions o f the City's investment policy.

Maximum Maximum

Maximum Percentage Invest ment Minimum

Authorized Investment Type Maturity of Portfolio in One Issuer Rating

U.S. 'I'rcitsury Securities 5 years None None Nime

U.S. Agency Securities 5 years None None Noik

Money Market Mutual Funds N/A 20% ION AAA

Collateralized Bank [)cposits N/A 30% Nime None

State and Local Agency ilonds 5 years None 5% None

Repurchase Agreements 5 years Nime 5% None

270 days 25% 5% A.1Commercial Paper
Corporate Notes 5 years 30% 5% A

Si,pranin icinals 5 years 30% None AA

I.ocal Agency Investment l·und N/A None N„ne None

Certificates of Deposit 5 years None 5% None

Investments Authorized by Debt Agreements

Investment of debt proceeds lield by the bond trustee are governed by the provisions o[ the debt agreements.
These agreements specify that the eligible investments are those that are permitted by California Government
Code Section 53601 at the time of the investment.

38



CITY oF CHICO

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2021

2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

Custodial Credit Risk

Ihe cuslodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that the City will not be able to recover deposits or will not be able
to recover collateral securities that are in possession ofan outside party. This risk is mitigated in that the City's
bank deposits are insured by Federal 1)epository Insurance Corporation (FDIC). The California
Government Code and the City's investinent policy do not contain legal or policy requirements tha[ would limit
the exposure to custodial credit risk for deposits or investments. other than the following provision for deposits
and securities lending transactions: The California Government Code requires that a financial institution secure
deposits made by state or local governmental units by pledging securities in an undivided collateral pool held by
depository regulated under stated law, The market value of the pledged securities in the collateral pool must equal
at least 110% of the total amount deposited by the public agencies. As o f June 30, 2021, the City's balance in
financial institutions was 25,24 1,270, which was covered by col lateral held in the pledging bank's trust
department in the name of the City of Chico.

Interest Rate

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an
investment Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity its fair value is to
changes in market interest rates. As a means of limiting its exposure to fair value losses arising from rising
interest rates, the City manages its exposure to interest rate risk by investing in the Local Agency Investment Fund
(LA]F), which provides the necessary cash flow and liquidity needed for operations, as well as purchasing a
combination ofshorter term and longer-term investinents so that a portion o f the portfolio is maturing or coming
close to maturing evenly over time, The City uses the segmented time distribution method for reporting its
interest rate risk.

As of 202 1, the City's investments distributed by maturity are as follows:

Romnilii„A Maturity by Fair Vah,u

101:11 1.9,5 11,01 One to IO1O Three 10 I..,r I')

111¥CN/11/:11/ |*p/ Fair' Value ()lie Year rwo Yeurs TKYeal·8 Imr Yomi Five Yeat.

With I·i.cnI Agent:

$ 2,039.OW $ 2.039.010 $ .$ .$ IS

With ( +in /'t·/31,un:

('erlificale „il )elinitil 17.I21.803 38111,31) 1.373.474 2.609.171 3,335,02,1 1.992.902

( Inpor;Ite 11.08.564 2,671,KOHl 8.481.763

Mupuil In )2 wil { 04 IN R 2.96.1.603 · · - - 2.96.1601

Stale & 1.oci,11i.nd 7.732.981 · . - 5,747, IOU 1.98 5.875

I·'e,!er,·il Ap,ency 26.045.:78 - - 7,952.401 IX.092.774

Ah,n: Al.I,Ket M,un,0 1 unds 21.432.320 Il,132,320 .

('1/1/1 1 1// 11$:It]11ell: 4 50.105 50.105

1 <.cal A)Zi.Ii:¥ Invext,iwit I,out
(1 4\11 } 33,Ill,I24 55.Ill.124

Irdal Inveftilky# $ !43.65·MIl $ 8,1.443.MIMI $ 3,173.474 $ 2.609.:71 9 19.70339 $ 33,518:17
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2. CAS11 AND INVESTM F.NTS (Continued)
Credit Risk

Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of the
investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating
organization. [t is the City's policy to purchase investinents with tile minimuln ratings required by the California
Government Code.

IPercentage of
Investment

S & P Rating Portfolio

AAA 5.63%

AAI 35,31'No

AA 3.08%

AA- 5.73%

A 3.31%

A- 3.37%

BBB·· 6.48%

Not Rated 35.65%

The City invests funds in the State '1'reasurer's Pooled Money Investment Account (PM]A) through the l.ocal
Agency Investment Fund (LATI), a voluntary program created by statute in 1977. Tile iMIA has regulatory
oversight from the Pooled Money Investment Board and an in-house Investment Committee. LA 112 has oversight
by the Local Agency Investment Advisory Board. The fair value o f the City's position in the pool is based upon
the City's pro-rata share of the fair value provided by l,AIF for the entire pool.

In accordance with authorized investment laws, I.AIF invests iii various structured notes and mortgage-backed
securities, such as collateralized mortgage obligations. LAW is not registered with the Security and Exchange
Commission and is not rated.

Discretely Presented Component Unit

Restricted cash and investments held by the JPFA total $ 1,516,271.
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2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

Restricted Cash and Investments

As of June 30,2021 cash and investments that are restricted by legal or contractual requirements are comprised of
the following:

Fair Value Measurements

governmental Activities;

General I·und
Amount rotals

Restricted Seution 115 Pension 'trust $ 2,039.030
Ilital Clencral Fund

$ 2,039,030
Non·maior (kivernrlell(lilitinds

Rchtricted bond proceeds
124.176

1 otal Non-iniljor Ckivernmental Funds
124.176

l'otai primary governmental activates restricled cash mui
illveslments 2,163.206

ngetely Presented Coinpotient Unil

Rextricted for capitid projects and diehl Service
1,516,271

['DIal JPFA restrieted cash and investments 1,516,271
IFiduciary Fun(14

Privttte-Durpotie trust fund

Restricted for Successor Agency Recognized Obligations 6.193,935

l'otal Private-Firposc Trust Fund
6,193.935

Re·,Iricled {br debt service
571.362.

Total Custodia[ Funds
571,363

1-otal Fiduciary l·und restricted cash and investments
6.765.298

rotal restricted cash Und investments , 10,444,775

Statement No. 72 of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board ("GASH") Fair Falie Measurements and
Application. sets forth the framework for measuring fair value, That framework provides a fair value hierarchy that
prioritizes investment valuation techniques used to measure filir value. The three levels of the fair value hierarchy
under GASB 72 are described as follows;

Level 1 -Inputs to the valuation methodology are quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities in active markets that
the City has the ability to access.
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1.evel 2 - Inputs to the valuation methodology include:
• Quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets;
• Quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in inactive markets;
• Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability,
• Inputs that are derived principally from or cori'oborated by observable market data by correlation or other

means.

Level 3 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to the fair value measurement.

['he asset's level within the hierarchy is based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value
measurement. Valuation techniques used need to maximize the use ofobservable inputs and minimize the use of
unobservable inputs,

The determination of what constitutes observable requires judgment by the City's management City management
considers observable data to be that market data which is readily available, regularly distributed or updated, reliable.
and verifiable, not proprietary, and provided by multiple independent sources that are actively involved in the relevant
imarket

'1'he categorization of an investment within the hierarchy is based upon the relative observability of the inputs to its
fair value measurement and does not necessarily correspond to City management's perceived risk ofthal investment.
rhe followingis adescription of the valuation methods and assumptions used by the City to estimate the fair value of
its investments. The methods described may produce a fair value calculation that may not be indicative of net
realizable value or rellective of future fair values. City inanagement believes its valuation methods are appropriate and
consistent with other market participants. The use of different methodologies or assumptions to determine the fair
value of certain financial instruments could result in a different fair value measurement at the reporting date.

When available, quoted prices are used to determine fair value, When quoted prices in active markets are avai lable,
investmentsarcclassified within l.evel 1 ofthe fair value hierarchy. 'llie C ity's 1.evel I investmentsconsist ofmitutal
funds that have values calculated from the daily closing prices o f all the underlying assets.

For a large portion of the City's portfolio, the City's custodians generally uses a multi-dimensional relational model.
Inputs to their pricing models are based on observable market inputs ini active markets. '[he inputs to the pricing
models are typically benchmark yields, reported trades, broker-dealer quotes, issuer spreads and benchmark securities.
among others. The City's 1.evel 2 investments primarily consist of investments in certificates of deposit that did not
trade on the City's fiscal year end date.

Tlie City did not have any I.evel 3 investments at June 30, 202 I. The inputs or methodology used for valuing
securities are not necessarily an indication of the risks associated with investing in those securities. Changes in
valuation techniques may result in transfers into or out of an assigned level within the disclosure hierarchy.

Investments in money market funds and guaranteed investment contracts are reported at amortized cost. Deposits and
withdrawals in governmental investment pools, such as LA IF are made on the basis of $1 and not fuir Value.
Accordingly, the City's proportionate share in these types of investments is an uncategorized input riot defined as a
1.evel 1, Level 2, or Level 3 input.
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2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

As of June 30, 202 1, the City has the following fair value measurements:

011(ted Observable

I'lices I I Pllbi

(Level I ) (1 evel 2) 1 Otai

Investments by [hir value:

Corporate II,illings $ „ $ it,158.564 $ 11.158.564

Suprimmbmils - 2.963.60-1 2.963,603

Skite imd I .cical Xecurities - 7.732.984 7.732.984

Fedent[ Agency Securities 26.045.178 - 26.045.I 78

Mimial l·unds 23.471,350 - 23,471350

( 'crti ficates 017 1 kposit 17,121.803 17,121,803

1'01,11 iiivestinents measul·ed

81 1-air value $ 66,638,331 $ 21.855.152 $ 88.493,483

Investments nicasul·ed at anior[i,ed C SIS (,1 liU[ blibjeet to lair vniue hiermely:

CM I RUS'l Fruxt

1.-1 Agency Investment Fund

50.105

55.Ill,1.2,1

1-ottil investments measured at fair valite $ 143,634.712
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3. RECEIVABLF'S

rhe following summarizes the City's governmental activities receivables as of June 30,202 k

Inter-

Interest I'loperty l'axes Accounts governmental 1.oilits i'()tal

(kivernmenlal activities

General l·wild $ 210.364 $ 573,107 $ 2.026,095 $ 6,749,239 $ - $ 9,558,805

CDBC] and [lOMI. I lou,ing Fund 943,476 - · 319,6111 7.4 iiI 82 8,678,296

Capital Grants Fund - · 3.582.660 - 3 582,66()
I .ow und Moderate Income

I lous,IW Asset Iund 10.548,433 · - 54.562.354 65.110,787

Other Nonmajor Governmental Fund. 99 27,614 51.269 1,617275 23,477 1,719,734

Internal Service Funds - 191,533 - - 191.533

l'olal governmental activ1]w $ 1 1.702,372 $ 600,721 $ 2.268.897 $ 12,268,812 $ 62,001,013 $ 88,841,8:5

Loans Receivable

The loans receivable in the Cl)BG and 1 IOME Housing Fund and Low and Moderate Income Housing Asset Fund
of $ 7,4 I 5, I 82 and $ 54,562,354 consist of loans made for low and moderate income housing rehabilitation,
property improvement and small business origination. The loans are collateralized by deeds of trust on the
improved properties and hearannual interest at 0.0 - 7.5 percent. The City considers these long-term loans to be
collectible, and the amounts are included in restricted fund balance. Due to the likelihood of collectability, the
City has not recorded an allowance for uncollectible accounts. Related accrued interest is recorded as interest
receivable and unavailable revenue.

The following summarizes the City's business-type activities receivables as of June 30. 2021 :

Inter-

Accounls governmental ['otal

D-ss.type activities'

Sewer Fund $ 2,557,667 $ 6.905 $ 2,564,572

IParking l' il,Id 2,661 2,661

Privale Developtnent i und 225.986 - 225,986

A [rport 1·und 55,438 3,266,828 3,322,266

total busitiess-type activities $ 184 1,752 $ 3,273,733 $ 6.115,485

Accounts receivable in the Sewer Fund is composed of $ 2,557,667 in sewer service fees billed for services
rendered on or before June 30,2021 and received in the months of july and A itgust of 2021 and $ 6,905 in sewer
development impact fees owed to the City as of June 30.2021.

l'he intergovernmental receivable o f $3,266,828 in the Airport I·'und represents a receivable for an A irport
Improvement Program grant.

Accounts receivable in the Private Development fund are for services provided for community development
services provided to developers.
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4. UNAVAILABLE REVENUE

The City recognized deferred inilows of resources in the governmental fund statements. These items are an
acquisition of fund balance by the City that is applicable to a ftiture reporting period,

Under the modified accrual basis of accounting. it is not enough that revenue has been earned if it is to be
recognized in the current period. Revenue must also be susceptible to accrual (i.e.. measureable and availab]e to
finance expenditures of the current period). Government funds report revenues not susceptible to accrual As
deferred in flows o f resources. The City has two items that are reportable on the government fund statements: the
first item relates to housing loan interest receivable and the second relates to grant receivables and development
impact fees receivables that are not available for revenue recognition.

Deferred intlows of resources balances for the year ended June 30,2021 were as follows:

Unavailable

I lousing Loan Um,vailable

Revenue Revenue 1881

General Fund $ . $ 1,175,953 $ 1,175.953
('DIK; and 11()Mli I lousing Fund 943,476 - 943,476

('upilial (irants l·und - 834,334 831.331

low and Moderate income

I lousing Asset l·und IO,548,433 623,754 11,172.187

Other Nonmajor Governmental Funds - 92,851 92,851

l'otal governmental l'uitds $ 11,491,909 $ 2,726,892 $ 14,218,801
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5. CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital assets for governmental activities for the year ended June 30,2021. was as follows:

1.ndingIleginning

Balance iici eases [ke, eases , I'lanst'ers Ijalulice

Govermnentill Hellvitle•

Capital a·mets. not being depreciated

1 anll $ 3 I .456.230 $ 103.695 $ . $ - $ 31.561.25

('9611 lICM),3 ll, IIA:bvess 25,936,810 4.614,682 (4.890,901) 25,660,592

trolul cup,tul us,eti. not being

dem'ciated 57,393,040 4,720377 - (4.890.901 ) 57,222,317

('ap,WIhetsl,ell#depleelat1
Itulldings 22.360.645 - - 22.360.645

Improvemimbs dhel than bulldingM 20,951.927 I.285, I 85 · 78 1.9 1 1 23,019,024

Iqulptnell lum,Lure and vehicles 23.574.384 446.684 ( 1 .267.487) 116:197 22.940,078

I n ('I.ls<r UL lurr 399.782,032 5,773,310 - 3,922,492 409.477,834

I (ital eapital UNMets. being

depreciated 466,668,988 7.505,179 (1,267,487) 4.890.901 477,797,381,

las accumulated depreciation ful

Bu Ild,1114, (1-3,330.291) OMBM) - (13.8-11.262)

linprovements fittier titan buildings (14,169.628) (529,579) - · (14.699,206)

Equipment. futilitule and vehicles ( 13.688.469) ( 1.548.907) I.252.689 - 019*4.6871

Inlka,truct Wre (157,145,371) (9.730,850) - (166.876.221)

Imill acclmulrlt/J depll'clatmk (198.333.759) (12,310,306) 1,252,689 · (2{)9391,376)

1 otll! Capil ussets bell'

depreciated. nel 268,335.229 (4,805,127) (14.798) 4,890,901 268.406.205

C i<,vern 1111' 14,1 I UL livi t,05 cupiml

a·r•et. net $ 323.72069 $ (84.750) $ (14.798) $ , $ 325,628.722

Reconciliation of Governmental activities capital asset increases:

1 Mal capilill usiels. mit be i,18 dell,related - mere,e·; $ 4.720.377

10(al eupital le,sels. beingdel>leciated - increases 7,505.179

rovernmental activities capital asset Increases $ 12,225,556

Governmenlal l'unds - capital outlaw $
1)0111,11011:4 and eontrlbuted capital'

I'ninsful IMin Internal Service [ mid

I kivernmental actlvilies copital ussel Increases $

10,152.893

2.072,665

12.225356

*Donations and contributed capital represents infrastructure conveyed to the City as a result of completed subdivisions, easements
and initastructure donated through developer agreements.

46



CITY OF CII ICO

NOTES TO TIIE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR Tl IE YEAR ENDED JUNK 30,202 I

5. CAPITAI, ASSETS (Continued)
Capital assets for business-type activities for the year ended June 30,2021, was as follows:

Ileginning Itrid inK

Balance 11/creases Dee,·eases Trmmlers Hulance

Bukilic-npe *Irlivilies:

("pital mmell not te"¥

deplecialed

land $ 2.154.341 $ -$   $ $ 2,154.34 1

C'(,11:11 Ilel!(il ill p,<1694695 16,308.401 11..%142,213 - (3.069.572) 24.(ill.(M.2

1 oml catilt.0 asseb, li,1 hemg

depteriated 18.462.742 1 1.382.213 - (3,069,572) 26.773,383

Capital lissels, beingdepreciated

liulldll 18:s 19.412,388 - 19.412.188

Impmvements (,ther than bilildin 192.787.<061 Im I.I 75 - 3,069,572 196.867.808

1·quipment. luinimre und vehicles 3,024,653 - (40.345) 2,984.308

lola| Capita| .1%!ielb, bellR

del) I ee 1., wd 215,224.102 I,Oll.175 (40345) 3.069,572 219,264,504

I.coace[uleddepadm h

Itulldlitgs (14.720.523) (504,742) . (15.225.270)

Improvements other Ilian bilildings (83.672.1211 15,·161,209) - (89.133.330)

1'4uipment. furniture and vehicles (2.425.068) (106,722) 40,345 (2,491,445)

1 (,tal accilinillated dePre·eli111(111 (100.817.lin (6,072,674) 40,345 - (106,850,046)

l'olal capital as,iets being

depre:wted, iici 114.406,385 (5,061.499) - 3.069.572 112,414,458

litisiliess-type· UL'tivitles ellpitnl

ashet%. Iici $ 132.869.127 $ 6320.714 $ $ . $ 139.189.842

Reconciliation of Business-type lictivilies capit,11 Asset increases:

foull capitul ahset, Ilot heing depreciated - i,rreases $ Il. 382.20

[c,W c.ip,1.0 asset, Iwing deprici.Ued - Ine,cascIA I.OIl, I75

]]usiness-peaivillesgiml ue[ i!WS $ 12.393,388

1lls,]xm#Madda enl)Ilal (,1114 $ 1,576,481

[kNiations and conlribuled cut,imli 8,816,907

Bus,MA typei,elivilii'5 eni,1.il .1set i,icieuse, $ 12.393.388

* Donations and contributed capital represent the conveyance o fsewer infrastructure from the JPFA to the City's Sewer Fund as
well as completed subdivisions, casements and infrastructure donated through developer agreements.
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5. CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued)

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs as follows:
Ciovernmental:,elivilies:

lieneral government $ 414.763

IPublic safely 1.344.337

IPublic works to. 22.1 88

l'arks and recreatioii 4[2.625

('limmunity development 14.654

Capital assets held by the government's internal
service funds are charged lo the i arious functions

based oil theirusage ol-ther *i,Ets 1.740

l'otal depreciation expense - governmental activities .$ 12,310.307

Ili,Aness-type activities:

Newer $ 4.593.719

Parking 153.885

AirpuM 1.325.068

1 02,1 depreciation expense - business-type activities $ 6,072.672
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6. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Changes in long-term liabilities for the year ended June 30,2021, was as follows:

Iteginning 1:nding IDue within

Bulaike Additions Reductions Ilatance 01,e Yet)

Goverimental Activities:

[)iler[ Itt,TH'Wilgi

Capital lei,xes-direct finuncmg $ 2.525.656 1 -$ (527.782) $ 1.997.874 1 444.7148

Compe.,15.,led absences 3,5.34.565 1.964.596 (2.002.149) 3.497.012 442.651

Sell'-inbularice claims & Iettlemenls 8.091,7511 2,530,000 (3,034.It )91 7.587,449 2.777.648

(;uwn,rner,u,1 activities

lulig term Imbilme, $ Id.MI.979 $ 4.494.596 $ (5.564,240) $ 13.082,335 $ 3.664,087

Iltisint,%%„type AetivitieN:

1 ]Irec:t 14(irruwing,

Luens payable $ 27.266.lin $ 19.735.000 1 (29,151.181) $ 17.850.000 $ 1.61(),MO

Compen.4.,ted absenees 456359 255,117 (240.IF)4) 471,482 59.68()

lotul before premnim 27.722.740 19.990.117 (29391.375) 18,321,482 1,669,680

Preinium - net - 4,170,292 (439.982) 3,730,309
Itusille»l>·pc Het:Vlties

long-lerin liabilitieq $ 27.722.740 $ 24,160.409 $ (29.831,-337) $ 22.051.791 $ 1.669,680

fhe City's outstanding capital leases fi·om direct borrowings, secured by equipment, related to
governmental activities of $ 1,997,874 contain provisions that in an event of default, outstanding amounts
become immediately due if the City is unable to make a payment, if the City is unable to pay the full
balance all equipment is to he returned at the expense of'the City,

rlie City's outstanding loans from direct borrowings related to business-type activities of $ 1 7,850,000
contain a provision that in an event of default, the timing of repayment of outstanding amounts become
immediately due,

[)riginill Outstanding
|illerest Alinual 1,Sle Ht June 30.

Type of Indettednexs (Dirpose) Mati,rity Rates Instnliments Aniount 2021

gUy.grnmental Activities:

C'Wi.illl| |.ettNes

C )slikosli Capital 7/25/2()24 2.46% $ 136.868 $ 1,200,359 $ 5[4.892

Oshkosh Capital 4/25/2025 2,80% 224332 1.93 l.551 837.119

Motorola Solutions. lue. I l/I/2{}25 4.06% I 45.322 870.306 645.863

Ikital governmental activities capital len:c 4,002,216 1.997.874
total governinental activities $ 4.002,2 I 6 $ 1,997.874

At).siness-1'¥ne Activities:

J ·1'1102.£El|*
Itank of America 12/1/2029 2.60% $ 2.276.673 $ 33.613,142 $ 17.850.000

1 1,1111 business-type activities Inans payable 33.613.142 17.850,000

l'otal business-type activities $ 33.613.142 $ 17,850,000
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6. LONG-TERM LIABII.ITIES (Continued)

(iovemniclital Activttlil

UE·€t DRIBL·1111 Am„•int 33/ti Is

01*14 ke,SCS

I.enT payable 1,1 ()Jlkost, Capiml. IM·,1 14,·rce Arrow XI Oumt Aclial 1-ruck lorthe Fire
[®partment, mterest al 2.46%. duc in 1111,1118| inst,illinents on July 25. in the uinount oil 1 16,868.
meluding inlciest. ihrough July 25.2024 originul le'ase mnounl wus $1.200.359. Ityments lo
be mvde Fr<M (ie,iecal I und $ 514.%92

[ ease payable 10 C )Ill kosh ('ap i 101 . 12 ir three Pierce Veloeity l'unipers for the Fine lk·partment,
mteral al 2 80%.due in annual mstallments on April 22. m the amount of$224.1.32, meluding
interest. through April 25,2025 Originnl leaxcininount mis $ I.93 I.55 I ['aymenth to be made
l'rom (ie,ienil I 1111(1 837.119

I casepi,yahle to Molurola. Ine. 130 All Hand Digital Ponable RadioN fortlie pollet·deparment
Interest ui 4060%. payments are m minual installinents un Noveinlier I, in tlic aniount o f
$ I 45,121 Original lease amount was $ 870,305 76 l'Hyments ki be made from the (icneral
I tlikl 645.863

1·omt governmenti,I activities cupital leases 5 1,997.X74

lutal governmental activities long-term liubilities $ IT997,874

Upy-ug™lype Activities
Pltect ber Fil)41
1.oinis Puy,ible Amount 11*111

1.oan pi,yable to tile 140 IA Securities. Inc . for the Sewer Revenue Refunding Builds. Merle.
2020. interest ail 5%. due in minual initallments 01, Ikeember I and June I. unctud ing Ii,wiest.
through Ikember 1. 2029 ( ritunal loan umount was t 19,735,(*}0 $ 1 7.trioJ)00

1-ou,1 heiniArrtype activines k4*ns payable $ 17.850.(}(JO

roml bils:,11·fs-type net-[les|ong-Wrin liabilities $ 17.850,000
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6. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (Continued)

In September of 2020, the City entered into a [lond Purchase Agreement with Bank of America Securities
to issue $19,735,000 in Bonds. Proceeds from the sale of the Bonds were used to prepay, iii full, amounts
due to the California State Water Resources Control Board for tile Sewer Fund, pursuant to a state
revolving fund loan agreement from 2008 and to pay the costs of issuing the Bonds.

rhe refunding was undertaken to reduce total debt service payments by, approximately $ 1,799,136 over
the term and resulted in an economic gain of $1,741,109.

1)ebt service requirements at June 30,202 l are as follows:

Cioverninental Activities 11_usiness- I'VIAutixities
, Capital 1.eases from !}irect Irinatne'ing Loans from Direct BorrowingL

Yettlitidj,ig June 30 PIii,Cipal_ Interest princip.LI - Interest

2022 $ 443.788 $ 62,534 $ 1,610.000 $ 852,250
2023 457,343 48,979 1,695,000 727.250

2024 471,329 34.993 1,780,000 638.250

2025 485,760 20,562 1,870.000 544,750
2026 139,654 5,670 1,965,000 446.500

2027-2030 . - 8.930.000 697,250
l'olal $ 1.997,874 ,$ 172,738 , 5 _17,85.0,000 3 p,906,24L
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6. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (Continued)

l'he City has entered into certain capital lease agreements under which the related equipment will become
the properly of'the City when all terms of the lease agreement are met.

nterest Present Vallie at

Rate June 3(). 2021

Government,11 Activities:

IFire l)epartmenl l'ilker Truck 2,46% $ 514.892
2.80% 837.[19l ire Departmenl Punipers (3)
1,06%Radios 645.863

$ 1,997,874fotal Clipill,11.ease Obligations

Rqllipmelit and related accumuluted wmortization under
capital lease are as fullows:

Governinelital

Activities

Equipment $ 4,474.788
1.ess: accumulated depirci,ilic,11 ('_944. 1 0 8 )

Net Vallie $ 3.434.680

As 01'Junc 30,2020. capital lease annuill amortization ate ns
fillio'vs:

Gover,111entill

Year ending June 30: Activities

2022 $ 506.321
2023 506,322

2()24 5()6.322

2025 506322

2026 145.324

Folill requiruments 2.17{),612

1,ess interest (172.738)

I'lesent valneorreinaini,g: payments $ 1,997.874

Amortinition or leased equipment under capital assets is
included with depreciation expenxe.
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7. INTERFUND ACTIVITY

Due From/To Other Ful*

Amounts due from/to other funds al June 30,202 1

Receivable Fund IPayable Fund Amount

Internal Service Funds Capital Grants 1:und $ 2,639,923

l'otal Due From/Due $ 2,639,923

Due from/to other funds typically result from the time lag between the dates that (I) interfund goods and services
are provided or rein*ursable expenditures occur. (2) transactions are recorded in the accounting system, (3)
payments between funds are made, or (4) revenue earned by the Fund is not received until just at'ter the end o flhe
fiscal year, normally 60 days. All ofthese due from/lo balances are anticipated to be paid back completely within
the next fiscal year.

Advances To/From Other Funds

Advances from ho other funds at June 30,2021

Receivable Fund Bilyable Fund Amount

Public Infrastructure Impact Fees Nonmaior Governmental Funds $ 42,205

Subtotal 42,205

lotal Advances $ 42.205

All advances are due to cash deficits as listed for each payable fund. In addition, no formal borrowing
arrangements exist. Finally, all payable funds may be unable to repay the advance within the next fiscal year.

53



CITY OF CHICO

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THI·. YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2021

7. INTERFUND ACTIVITY (Continued)

Transfers From/'1'o Other Funds

The following is a schedule ofinterfund transfurs from/to other funds as of June 30.2021 :

Tran,fer From Transfer To Amount

General Fund 1,ow & Mod Income Housing Asset $ 4,667

Nonmajor (lovernmental Funds 4,264,443

Enterprise Funds 2,24 1,583

11)ternal Service Funds 149.030

Subtotal 6.659,723

IPublic Facilities Impact F.nterprise Funds 79,262

Xii btotal 79,262

Low & Mod Income

Housing Asset Fund ('DBG and HOME [ lousing Fund 16,158

Subtotal 16,158

Nonmajor Governmental General Fund 2,169,430
Subtotai 2,169,430

Enterprise Funds General Fund 160,500

Public Facilities Impact Fees 1.204

Nonmajor Governmental Funds 216,904

1(nterprise Funds 49.855

Subtotai 428,463

Internal Service Funds General Fund 687,119

Nonniajor Governmental Funds 39,880

Subtotai 727.199

l'otal Transfers $ 10.080.235

Transfers are indicative of funding for capital projects, lease payments or debt service, subsidies of various City
operations and re-allocations of special revenue,
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8. RESTRICTED NET POSITION/FUND BALANCES

A. FUND BALANCES

Fund balances arc presented in the following categories: nonspendable, restricted, committed, assigned, and
unassigned. The following is a detailed schedule ofthe Governmental Funds fund balance classifications as of
Julie 30,2021:

I (,i' & &1(HICI,Ile Nollinn,lr l'Hal

(.!)1*i & 11(}NII Publ,9 1 ue,lilles C '4,11"1 11.'..".1, (k}vernmental (joverinknull

Cielictul 11041$1141 linpa¥1 1·ecs Gr;,¢11. A.MI·i,iwl Funds Fun,6

I'lil,d I.!In,ce, {delicil)

Nong,c, id.ble
Preplid al,11 $ IN.660 $ .$ -$ 1 . $ . $ 174,660

174.660 - · . . 174.660
1(e"©,cl

(1„all„„its · - 32,9,1<.4M . - 2.(,63.(,4,9 35.059.1*7

11/,1/.P 7 4 M.405 - - 56 8.1.,108 . 6.3,748,813

1,1, lispoitalio,1 ielated pio,ects . . . lo. 0,),669 10,14,9,669

Nim,le„ai,ee dis!,ic[*  .4.378.¢*9 1,378,909

{ iho j.m gr.ws 762.477 76).477

I.nt ce #.Ificer sahirv grnm 211002 2!1,002
501,10 115 Trug 2.039.010 - - - 1.039.010

2,250.032 7,646.405 32,395,488 - 56,102,408 18,274,754 116.669,087

('O,11/nit,#.(1

('..$10,19*<id abenwm I.5:3.521 - . - I,ill.DI
I)¢,I}i' io,1 ' 4.19.71¤1 - 429.788
1·meyp.4')AB' -I,LY)viel lo.3115,371 - . - 10385.373

12,328.685 - . . Il,,128,685

A.hIP.ned

Equipmen[ replacement - . - 2.7.0.59f 1,716.594
Cap»lai Pulecl 5.(Hol,409 - - 2,7 1.666 R.6 I 5,071

Red#w . . . 50 I.02,1 Sc) 1 0.14

%1 ':11':Ii# i,1.1" hi'Ely:I Alit»41 - I . 3.586,6.1 19,488"0 - . - 3,931.283 15.4.1,335

tu,=SH,tmed
(knernl I'lind 15.191.111 - - . . 15.191,331

('al„1111 14{,icets  unds - . (83431,11 - (834.311)
15,101.331 - - {834.134) . - 14,356.997

I 0% fillid ballices (defic,t) $ W.,142.758 $ 7.646.405 $ 32.395.488 $ (8 34,3 34) 1 ;6. I 02.408 $ 24.226.039 $ 158.968.764
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8. RESTRICTED NET POSITION/FUND BALANCES (Continued)

B, DEFICIT FUND EQUITY

The General Fund departments listed below reported deficit fund balances or net position on June 30,202 ]:

1 "In(1

I'rivate L)evelopment Fuiwd

Capital Gronts Fund

Central (Joirage I'llixl

Municipal Ruilding Maintenance Fund
Infurniation Services Fund

Ic,1.111)erick Funds

Ikfieit |·tmd |311|11!lce-
$ (3.711,476)

(834.334)

(2,340,956)

(1,721.155)

0,540.4188)
.$ (12,148.009)

Prjvate Development Fund

The Net Position of the Private Development Fund has a deficit largely due to the recording of the net pension
liability under GASH No. 68.

Capital Grants Fund Deficit

l'he Capital Grants Capital Projects Fund deficit represents grant expenditures that had not been reimbursed by
granting agencies within the 60-day period of availability for which corresponding revenues have not been
recognized. The deficit amount is recorded as a deferred inflow of resources on the Fund's Balance Sheet.
Projects are invoiced at completion and expenditures are subject to audit by the granting agencies. Collection o f
reimbursements can take several years.

Central Garage, Municipal Building Maintenance, Sclf Insurance and Iii formation Service Internal Service Funds

The Net Position of Internal Service Funds have a deficit largely due to the recording of the net pension liability
linder GASH No. 68, Actuarial estimates for future claims reserve contributed to a deficit in the Self Insurance
Fund.

Other Deficits

The remaining fund deficits represent development impact fee funds that have constructed infrastructure projects
prior to the collection of impact fees. These funds by their nature are created in a way that total fees
collected/earned over thelife of each fund should be adequate to cover total expenses. As a result. future revenue
should cover the deficits over the life o f each impact fee fund. I lowever, failure by each fund to recover future
revenue necessary to reduce each fund deficits may result in remaining deficits becoming an obligation of the
(}eneral Fund.
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8. RESTRICTED NET POSITION/FUND BALANCES (Continued)

C. OTHER FUND DISCLOSURES

The following funds had an excess of expenditures over appropriations on June 30.2021:

1<xtiendili,rer over

ligneral Fund I)epartment Api),ciprialions

Community developn,0111 department 67.7()7

Community· Maintenance Dislriet 1 inds 77,843

I olal Deficit Funds $ 145,550

D. RESTRICEED COMPONENTS OF NET PC)Sl'1'ION

The restricted components ofnet position are assets thalaresubject to constraints either (1) externally imposed by
creditors (such as debt covenants). grantors, contributors. or laws or regulations of other governments or (2)
imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation,

1{estricted fol·Capital Pritiects
IPublic 1·'acility Impact Fees $ 32,395.488

IBond Proceeds 124.275

Public Inllastructure 4.590.841

I ransponation 5.878.828

l'ublic Inl'rastructure 2.539.424

1(}tal $ 45.528,856

IRestricted fur I [ousing

Affordable housing loans 7.646.4{)5

Cl)8(i housing loal™ 56.102.408

1 +)tai 63.748.813

IRestricted lor Maintemmee I )ixlriets

Maintenimce distriels 4.378.9(19

Restricted le,r Otlier (iovertinient Piligi·ki,its

Retirement Funding. 2.()42.842

I elecommunications equipment 45().282

|uta| 2.493,124

Restricted for Public Nalety

Grants and Itimtions .364.001

Asset 1·orleiti,re 23.955

lotal 387.956

lomt restricted component or net position - governmental activities $ 116337,658
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9. RISK MANAGEMENT

Ille City is exposed to various risks of loss relaled to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; errors
and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The City established the general liability and
workers' compensation liability funds (sel f-insurance funds) to account forand finance its uninsured risks of loss,
tJnder this program, the general liability program provides coverage fur up to a maximum of $500,000 for each
general liability claim, and the workers' compensation program provides coverage for up to a maximum of
$750,000 for each workers'compensation claim.

Workers' Compensation Insurance

The workers' compensation program provides coverage for Lip to a maximum of $750,000 per occurrence. The
City purchases excess insurance to cover losses over $750,000 up to State statutory limits.

r he claims liability reported in the self·insurance fund at June 30.2021. is based on the requirements of C}AS B
Statements No. 10 and No. 30, which require that a liability fur claims be reported if information prior to the
issuance of the financial statements indicates that it is probable that a liability has been incurred as ofthe date of
the financial statements and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. The City's provision of
$5.595,194 for insurance losses through June 30,2021 represents the estimated cost of settling self-insurance
liability claims. '1'he provision for insurance losses was established by an outside actuary using accepted actuarial
methods. These methods consider case„basis reserves established by the City. the rate of loss development on
older claims, the effects of I BN R claims and the effects of inflation and other economic factors to determine
ultimate cost.

Changes in the workers' compensation claims liability are as follows:

Current Year

Claims I.iability Claims and Cur'ent Year Claims Liability Current

July I Changes in Payments June 30 Por·tion

2019-20 5 6,119,471 $ 1.187.268 $ (1.713,767) S 5,592,972 $ 1,318,521

2020-21 5,592,972 1,765,000 (1.762.778) 5,595.194 I.793,378

General Liability Insurance

l'he City is a member of the California Joint Powers Risk Management Authority (Authority) fur liability
insurance purposes. The Authority is comprised ofCall forniamembercitiesand special districts organized under
ajoint powers agreement pursuant to the California Government Code, The purpose ofthe Authority is to arraiige
and administer programsofself-insuranceand insurance forthe poolingo f losses and to purchase excess tHiability
coverage. The Board of Directors consists of representatives from each member entity, with an Executive
Committee consisting ofthe President and Vice President elected by the 1 )irectors every two years, and Executive
Committee non-o fficer positions filled by a permanent rotation list every two years. Annual deposits are paid by
member entities and may be adjusted retrospectively to cover costs. The City self-insures the first $500,000 of
each loss.

Participating entities share in loss occurrences in excess o f $500,000 or $ 1,000.000 and upto $5,000,000, and
purchase insurance to provide additional coverage up to $40,000,000. The auto/general liability program of the
Authority provides coverage for comprehensive general liability. personal iniury. employment practices liability
($6,000,000 sublimit). contractual liability, errors and omissions. and auto liability. The City also participates in
the Authority's auto physical damage program which provides property damage coverage for vehicles, with a
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9. RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

$10.000 deductible fur vehicles. and in the Authority's property insurance program which provides property and
boiler & machinery coverage with a $25,000 deductible per occurrence.

Premium payments by member entities are planned to match expenses of insurance premiums for coverage in
excess of the sci ftinsured amount, estimated claims resulting from self-insurance programs and Authority
operating expenses. Total premiums paid to the Authority during the year ended June 30,2021, were
$500,942.

The claims liability reported in the Sel f Insurance Internal Service Fund at June 30,2021, was also based on the
requirements of GASH Statement No. 10, as described. 1 he City's provision of $ 1,992,255 for insurance losses
represents the estimated cost of settling self-insurance liability claims.

Changes in the claims liability are as follows:

Curent Year

Cllum, 1.mbility ('Imms and Cuirent Year Claims 1.,ability Current

July 1 Changes in Pitynients June 30 Portion

2019-20 $ 1198.114 $ 2,488.650 $ 0,188.048) $ 2,498,786 $ 638.875
2020-21 2,498,786 765,000 (1.271,531) 1,992,255 984370
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10. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

Litigation

The City is a defendant in a number of lawsuits and has other claims pending, some of which seek substantial
monetary dainages. Some claims may not be covered under the City's excess liabil ity insurance policy: however,
management is of the opinion that the potential liability would not have asignificant adverse effect on the City's
financial position.

Grant Programs

't'he City participates in a number of federal and state-assisted grant programs. These programs are subject to
financial and compliance audits by grantors or their representatives. Any disallowed claims, including amounts
already collected, may constitute aliability ofthe applicable funds. The amount, if any, of expenditures which
may be disallowed by the grantor agencies cannot be determined at this time, although the City's management
does not expect such amounts, if any, to be material.

Construction and Other Commitments

The City has commitments of $ 11,874,708 in the Capital Grants Find for contracts awarded but not completed as
of June 30, 2021. The major contracts outstanding are $4,750,890 for S!199/Eaton Road Rehabilitation,
$2,148,812 for Road Rehabilitation, $447.000 for Annual Bikeway Improvements, $4,515,043 for Airport
Improvements ariel $ 12,963 for Traffic Safety Improvements.
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11. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN

Summary of Pension Plan Balancea

Pension related balances presented on the Statement of Net Position as of June 30. 2021 by individual plan are
described in the following table:

1)el'erred 1)clbrred

C)utllows· Ne[ Pension IltlloWS. l'ension

Pensioli liability Pension lixpense

('Al.PERS Miscellaneous Agent Multiple
Hmployer I'lail $ 7.305,276 $ (67.033,398) $ (563.017) $ 9.407.520

('Al.PI.RS Sal-ely Agent Multiple
1(mployer lil,in 11.805.330 (71616.374) (552.224) 8.589.906

1,(>lili $ 19.110.606 $ (144,649,772) , (1.115,241) $ 17,997.426,

General Information about the Pension Plans

Plan Descriptions - All qualified permanent probationary employees are eligible to participate in the City's
separate Safety (police and fire) and Miscellaneous Call other) Plans, agent multiple employer defined benefit
pension plans administered by the California Public Kniployees Retirement System (CalPERS), which acts as a
common investment and administrative agent for its participating member employers. Benefit provisions under
the Plans are established by State statute and may be amended by City resolution. Cal PERS issues publicly
available ireports thal include a full description ofthe pension plans regarding benefit provisions. assumptions and
membership information that can be l'ound on the Cal PERS website.

Benefits Provided - CalPERS provides retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living adjustments and
death benefits to plan members, who must be public employees and beneficiaries. Benefits are based on years of
credited service, equal to one year of full time employment, Classic and PEPRA safety CalPERS imembers with
five years of total service are eligible to retire at age 50 with statutorily reduced benefits. PEPRA Cal PERS
imiscellaneous members with five years of total service are eligible to retire at age 52 with statutorily reduced
benefits. All members are eligible fur non-duty disability benefits after 10 years of service. The death benefit is
one of the following: the Basic Death benefit, the 1957 Survivor Benefit, or the Optional Settlement 2W Death
Benefit. The cost of living adjustinents for each plan are applied as specified by the Public I .mployees' Retirement
Law,

61



CITY OF CHICO

NOTES TO TH E FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNK 30,2021

11. DEFINED HENEFIT PENSION PLAN (Continued)

The Plans' provisions and benefits in effect at June 30,2021, are summarized as follows:

3 liscellaiteouw

PI.PRA -on ciri,Iter

llire Date Classic Classic Jani'ary 1.2013
1 Hi'inula 2% rat 55 3% @ 60 2% MA 62

Ilene[it vesting schedule 5 yours ofservice 5 years olscrvice 3 years of service

Belierit payments limilthly forlite monthly for life monthly thi· li fe

Rctiiument age 55 60 62

Monthly benefits. as a % of annital stilitry 2.()0()% 3.0()0% 2.m)(1 9.0

Required employee contribiltion mles 8.()(*% 8,000% 6.75()%

Reqi,ired employer contribution rates 13.500% 13.500% 13.5()()%

Nafely

1'1.1'MA - on or after

I Ma/ 1)./( Classic Janutiry 1,2013

Formula 3% 4450 2.7% @57

Ilenelit vesting Eledule 5 years oiservice 5 years ofserviee

Itenellt payments monthly for life monthly for liRe

Retirement age 50 57

Monthly benellts, 11,; a % al'annual salary 3.00(}% 2.700%

Required employee colitribution rates 9.()0(K!4, 12.750%

Required employer contribution rates 22.42(}% 22.420%

Employees Covered - M June 30,2021, the following employees were covered by the benefit terms for each
Plan:

Misc elit,iteouy Safety

Inactive employees or benelicipiries currently receiving benefits 366 237

Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benclils 199 66

Active employees 202 155

1'01111 767 458

Contributions- Section 20814(c) ofthe California Public Employees' Retirement law requires that the employer
contribution rates fur all public employers are determined on an annual basis by the actuary and shall be effective
on the July I followingnoticeofachange inrate, Thetotal plancontributionsaredetermined through Ca]Pl(RS'
aniiual actuarial valuations process. The actuarially determined rate is the estimated amount necessary to finance
the costs of benefits earned by employees during the year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded
accrued liability. The employer is required to contribute the difference between the actuarially determined rate
and the contribution rate of employees, Contributions by the City for the Miscellaneous Plan were $5,299,890
and for the Safety Plan $6,289.265.
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11. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (Continued)

Net Pension Liabilitv

l he City's net pension liabil ity for each plan was measured as of June 30,2020 and the total pension liability was
determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2019, rolled forward to June 30,2020. Pension I iabilities are
paid out of the operating funds based on a percentage of covered payroll.

Actuarial Assumptions - The lota\ pension liability in the June 30,2019 actuarial valuations was detennined
using the following actual·ial assumptions:

MiscCllalielitiN S"fety

Valimtion I)n[C

Meast,irmen! Date

Achmrial (1-1 Method

Actimrial Admiptions:
Discaunt Rale

Innwhm

|Pavroll (irinwlh

June 30. 2019 hine 30.2019

June 30.2020 June 30,2020

lintry-Age Normal ('us, Metli,id

7.15% 7.15%

2.50% 2.50%

2.88% 2.88%

Prnjected Nolary Increase

Invesmiclit Rule of Re'turn

3.30% to 14.20% .1.30% 1014.20%(1)

7121% 7.250%

The underlying mortality assumptions and all other actuarial assumptions used in the June 30,2020 valuation
wei·e based on the resu lts of a Cal PERS experience study for the period of 1997 to 2007. Pre-retirement and Post-
retirement mortality rates include 5 years of projected mortality improvement using Scale AA published by the
Society of Actuarics.

'Tile long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block method
in which best-estimate ranges of expected future rival rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan
investment, expense and inflation) are developed Breach major asset class.

In determining the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments, CalPIIRS took into account
both short term and long-term market return expectations as well as the expected pension fund cash flows. Such
cash Ilows were developed assuming that both members and employers wi Il make their required contributions on
time and as scheduled in all future years. Using historical rates of the funds' asset classes, expected compound
(geometric) returns were calculated over the short-term (first 10 years) and the long-term (11 -60 years) using a
building-block approach. Using the expected nominal returns for both short-term and long-term, the present value
of benefits was calculated for each fund. The expected rate of return was set by calculating the single equivalent
expected return that arrived at the same present value of benefits for cash flows as the one calculated using both
short-term and long-term returns. The expected rate of return was then set equivalent to the single equivalent rate
calculated above and rounded down to the nearest one quarter of one percent, The target allocation and best
estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class are the same for each Plan and arc
summarized in the table on the next page.
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11. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (Continued)

A s<timed Real Return Real Return

A.Ret ('13.0 Allocation ¥/1,1·% 1 -10 Ve»,·% 11+

Global fquity 50% 4.HO% 5.98%

Global Fixed Income 28% 1.00% 2.62%

Inllation Sensitive ()% ().77% 1.81%

IPrivate I:quity 8% 6.3()% 7.23%

Real 1:state 13% 3.75% 4.9.1 ./

Liquidity 1% 0.()()% -0.92%

1 otal 100%

Discount Rate - 't he discolint rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.15%, unchanged from the
June 30,2020 measurement date. To determine whether the municipal bond rates should be lINed in the
calculation of adiscount rate for each plan, Call'ERS stress tested plans that would most likely result in a discount
rate that would be different from the actuarially assumed discount rate. Based on the testingorthe plans, the tests
revealed the assets would not run out. Therefore, the current 7.15 percent discount rate is appropriate and the use
of the municipal bond rate calculation is not deemed necessary. The long-term expected discount rate of 7.15
percent is applied to all plans in the Public Employees Retirement Fund. The stress test results are presented in a
detailed report called "GASH C.rossover Testing Report" that can be obtained at CalP[ERS website under the
GASB No, 68 section. 'l'he long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a
building-block method in which best-estimate ranges ofexpected future real rates of return (expected returns, net
of pension plan investment, expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class.
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CITY OF CHICO

NOTES TO'r[IE FINANCIAL STA'IEMENTS

FOR TIll·: YEAR ENDED J[JNE 30,2021

11. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (Continued)

Changes in the Net Pension I.iability

tile changes in the Net Pension Liability for each Plan for the measurement date of Julie 30, 2020
are as follows:

Increi,Ne (Deireaxe)
rotill Pension IPlan liduc y Net Ne[ Pen,ion

Wheemmemis Phm: [Infulity I'(}slt,{m 1.,ubililA As,w t)
lialana· 4 June.H}, 2019 $ I 95.971.947 $130.782.050 $65.189.897

Chwitte, in the year:

Servic· C .r»il 2.739.169 - 2.739.169

Interest on tlic total perk,lon licil,lity 13.MI.442 13.6bl.442

[), fferelices betwee ii :litil:,I itid er peeted experie lice (938.36 l) - (938.360

Contribution - employer - 5.721.757 (5.721.757)

Contribution - employee - 1,550,839 (1.550,839)

I'roiected ear,11118% on investments - 6,530.524 (6.531.524)

Admmistrnlive expenses - (IN 171) 184.371
Ilencfit payments. i,icludisig rel'unds ofemployee contributimis

(10.668.087) ( 10.668.087)

Net changew 4,794,163 2.950.662 1.843.501

Balance nt.1„ne 30, 2020 $200.766.110 $133.732,712 $67.033,398

Inermic (Der rinse)
holal Pen%,on Plan Fiduciary Net Net Pension

*G pi",1. IPosition 1 }ability/(Asset)1.unhllity

Ibitance Ht Junc.30,21)19 $233.382.276 $161.632.776 $71.749,500

Changes in the year:

Service ('tht 4.499719 · 4.499.719

ilite.reN cni the lotil pemic,Ii liability 16.551.359 10.55 I359

1)11'ferences between aclual and Apected expel lence 1.473,679 - 1.473.679

('(intribution - empluyer . 7.052.348 (7.052.348)

CoittribLit,(,11 - employee - 1,760.356 ( 1.760.356)

I'miected ear,imgs oil Investment, - 3.1,71.042 (8.07.1.()42)

Administrativeexpel™er . (227,146.0 227.863
Menelit poymems. meluding refunds of employee Contributions (11.236.546) (11.2.16,546)

INet chill]Mes 11.288,211 5,421,337 5,866,874

*Umm .Ilint· 30, 21120 $244,670,487 $167,054.113 $77,616,374

1£'181 orall pimm $445,436,597 $300.786.825 $144,649.772
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CITY OF CHICO

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR 11116 YEAR ENDED JUNK 30, 2021

11. DEFINED HI'.NEFIT PENSION PLAN (Continued)

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate - The U\\owing presents \he net
pension liability of the City for each Plan, calculated using the discount rate for each Plan, as well as what the
City's net pension liability would be ifit were calculated using a discount rate that is 1 -percentage point lower or
1-percentage point higher than the current rate:

Mi,rell,Ille,)11% safety '11)111

PLL B )(Crel,St! 615% 615% 6 15%

Net l'ension l.!ability $ 9 1 601.835 $ 111.711.615 $ 203.31 3.480

Corrent I)<scount Role 715% 715% 715%

Net Pension I Infulity $ 67.033.308 $ 77.616.374 $ 144,649.772

1% Inern•le £ 15% 815% 8 15%

Net Pens»n 1 whility $ 46.526,861 $ 49.757.781 $ 96,284.642

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Detailed information about each pension plans' fiduciary net position is
available in the separately issued Cal PERS financial reports.

Pension Expense and Deferred Outtlows/Innows of Resources Related to Pensions

For the year ended June 30,2021, the City recognized pension expense of $ 17,997,426. At June 30, 2021,
the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from
the following sources:

Miscellaneous l'Inn

Deferred Outllows of Deferred Ii,tlows of

IteSull'CeS Resouires

Penficill contribitions sulaequent 1,1 meni,irement date $ 6,123.997 $

I )11'1 (1 I e lite s belit ee n ac l.1 I an d e x pee le d eMpe ric' i ice 242.060 (5610 t 7)

Nel dll rele,ice betwi:en rroject,xl und Ret mil earning,9 on plan m ve tments 939.219rolal $ 7.305.276 $ (563.017)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR TI 11( YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2021

11. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (Continued)

Safety Plan
I}efurred Outtlows of

Resources

Deterred Inflows of

Res,wirces

l'ensM,n eontributions st,hf,Vuent to measi:feme,11 date $ 7,675,945 $
1),nerences between litial and expected experience 1.617.896 (33 I.2:3)

C|lalites Ill usemlill{,I 1,155,41X (221,OIl )

Nel difference beluwn proweled und uctual carningi on plan Investmencs 1056,07: -

1 otal $ Il,805,310 $ (552.224)

l'ouil Bl'%111 plans $ 19,1 IO.606 $ (1.115.241)

l'he amounts of $6,123,998 for the Miscellaneous plan, and $7,675,945 for the safety plan reported as
defurred outllows of resources related to contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized
as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended June 30,2022. Other amounts repoi·ted as de ferred
inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized as pension expense as follows:

Year Ended June 30 Miscellaneous Saluty Tomi

2022 $ (708.382) $ 666.499 $ 666.499

2()23 129.101 1.026.165 1.()26.165

2024 660.071 1.208,229 1.2()It.229

2()25 537.472 676.268 676,268

$ 3.577.161 $ 3.577,161 $ 3.577.161
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C.ITY OF C.'111€.0

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR TIII.Y YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,202 1

12. SUCCESSOR AGENCY TRUST FOR ASSETS AND OBLIGATIONS OF THE FORMER

REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY

On December 29.2011, the California Supreme Court upheld Assembly Bill X1 26 ("the Bill") that provides for
the dissol ution o f al  redevelop ment agencies in the State of Cali fornia. This action impacted the reportingentity
of the City that previously had reported a redevelopment agency within the reporting entity of the City as a
blended component unit.

Due to the dissolution of the City's Redevelopment Agency, successor agencies will only be allocated revenue in
the amount that is necessary to pay tile estimated annual installment payments on enforceable obligations ofthe
former redevelopment agency until all enforceable obligations ofthe prior redevelopment agency have been paid
in full and all assets have been liquidated.

The fullowing components of this footnote document the Successor Agency's capital assets and long-term
liabilities as of June 30,2021.

CAPITAL ASSETS - LANI)

As of June 30,2021, the Successor Agency owns six pareels ofland withacost of$ 1,667,105. The land willbe
utilized for a public purpose at a time to be determined by the Successor Agency's Oversight Board.

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

As of June 30,2021, the balances o f the Successor Agency long-term obligations are presented below:

Iteginnin; 1·Inding
11,10:jee [julance IDue willim

Julie 30.2020 1) ed oct Kins June 30,2021 One Year

2(}I 7 Sue.492) Al:<'Ii:Y iA, lhe
Chico Rl)A Ta, Allocation

Reliinding I]on(Is Series A $ 62.885.000 $ (4,860.0(JO) $ 58.025.(100 $ 4,665.000

21)Il Success<,I Aticacy m the

Chico 1<IM lax Allocation

Refunding Bond Sci ie·, 11 2, I 45,000 (2.145,(JOO)

Succe,s<,r Agelicy lolig-le,In liabilities $ 63.030.000 $ (7,005,000) $ 583}251(}00 $ 4,665.000

Successor Agency Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds

A deferred amount on refunding of $475,793 was recognized with the issuance of the bonds. The unamortized
balance at June 30, 2021 was $358,932 and is reported as a deferred inllow o fresources.
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CITY OF CHICO

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

11'OR '1'1117, Yl·.AR ENDED JUNE 30,2021

12. SUCCESSOR AGENCY TRUST FOR ASSETS AND OBLIGATIONS OF THE FORMER

REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY (Continued)

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Successor Agency Long-term I.iabilitics

Direct plaggmenli

Revenue Bonds Amount 12101&

2017 Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds Series A (2017 TABS Series A )
were issued in the amount of $65,475.000 for the pul·pose of refunding the
outstanding 2001 Tax Allocation Revenue Bonds, the 2005 Tt·tr Allocation
Bonds, and the 2007 Tax Allocation Refimding Bonds. Interest rates for
the term ofthe 2017 TABS Series A is 2.82%. Payments are due in semi-
annual installments on October I and April I thrntigh April 1.2032. $58,025.000

Total Sticcessor Agency long-term liabilities $58.025.000

The following isa schedule of total debt service requirements to maturity as ofjune 30,2021 torthetaxallocation
bonds:

Year Ending June JO Principal Interest Total

2022 4.665.000 1.636.305 6.301305

2()23 4.79 5.0(10 1.5(N.752 6.299.752

2024 4.925,000 1.369.533 6.294.53.3
2025 4.830,000 1.230.6411 6.060.048

2026 5,095.000 1.094.442 6, I 89.442

2027-2031 27.695.00() 3.234.963 3().929,963

2032 6,020,000 169.764 6.189.761

1(,tal $ 58.025,000 $ I 0.240.407 $ 68,265,407

The Successor Agency's outstanding bond debt from direct placements includes a priority pledge of "Tax
Increment Revenues" allocated to the Successor Agency by the Bitte County Auditor Controller. The Successor
Agency is prohibited from entering any new enforceable obligations which are secured by a lien on this pledged
col lateral,

6g



REOUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Schedule of Changes in Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios - Miscellaneous

Schedule of Changes in Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios - Safely

Schedule of' Contributions - Miscellaneous

Schedule of Contributions -Safety

Schedules of Changes in Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios

Schedules of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances, Budget to Actual,
(General Fund and Major Special Revenue Funds):

• General l'und

• CDBG and I IOME Housing Fund

• Low and Moderate Income 1 lousing Asset Fund

Notes to Required Supplementary Information
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CITY OF CHICO

NOTES TO THE REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
FOR THE Y EA R EN 1 )1 :.1 J JU N E 30, 2021

Irhe annual operating budget is adopted by the City Council on or before the first imeeting in July each year on a
basis consistent with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America as noted below.
The appropriated budget is prepared by fund, function and activity. The City Manager is authorized to transfer
budget amounts between departments within any fund; however, any revision that exceeds the appropriated
expenditures on any fund requires approval by the City Council. The legal level of budgetary control is at the
department level. Outside ofthe General Fund, all funds are one department.

Original appropriations are adjusted by supplemental appropriations and budget modifications approved during
the year, creating the modified adopted budget.

rhe General 14'und does not budget for non-cash transfers including transfers of loans and transfers used to cover
other Funds' fund balance deficits and capital lease transactions.

Budgetary comparisons and reconciliations are included in Required Supplementary Information as Schedules of
Revenue and Changes iii Fund Balance - Budget and Actual, for the General Fund, CDBG and HOME I lousing
Fund and the Low and Moderate income Housing Asset Fund.

77



(48£'Litil'611) $ (,ff-'1,€HT $(£1,9'690) $'(16L'LRE' I) $111«10 1)113 '0311ult!{1 Pull:.1

(26£'LRE't)-rfbraf'T (266'LHE' 1 )milo aujuu!·2104 '0011•piq pun,1

(LHL'£8$1'61 1)8517'€gg(1 98, 1 88) 1 0:,UNliq pun.1 t,! 0'81:liti) 1014

UNL'Litll'61 1 )Rglp'Egg(198'liB) 1 NOU!11!pundx 0(fopult)
.IjAO sonuoA).1 jo (K:,un!01;op) %%2ar:1

its' 199'09HOL'51,6'[991209'49NUA)08'01MA!11,indxo i,!10.1

DEF'L56'65goo'gig'Eget''ELK'£9RE6'0011'01KNI,no Inild. )

11 1 1 4 10)LFOL'OEDIES€1'1 - IuouluiOAL,9 ploil'!)
:111:Jin. 1

%'12101.1.1(IN:I,IX,1

(6£/9465)991'660504'GIL'£96E6'008'01S.OF1110AO.1 810 .

(000'00 - 18661%110™11:1100%!A

(6 EZ'91 E'6 9) $991'66t7 $501;'dIL'[9 $ba'008'01 $ommH FUOU,U.loAD'3Joll,1

£:Ifl NrIA,1 11

p**IMWImtinoutv11,11!:11.!WHO

411* DounmA[unloV

sitinoutv polotipnfl

INIZ '(lf )1Al'(1)1(1>1 }IV>IA >1111}10.1

9.1.NV}ID'lV 1.1.IV.)

'I V LL. )V (INV .1.)I DC] Ilil - 3,)NV' IVH (I NIL 1.1 R] %01:)NIVI I. ) (1 KV

NIN ]LICIXHI\4 '*'11£,I:\'.'IN .103'Inall].)%

VIN}]O.'11'IVJ '0,)[ll.) .'10 1,|,1.1

9£



NES' 61.01'LI80 98,'56£'ZE $099'glz'§ 1 $£61'910'ZE $'.moK.W puo '™,unpiq Pun:l

NLS' 1 96' I EBL¢196'lERLS'156'1£,111040 litt!UU!7oq 'ootmtiq pti,1,1

HEW'61.1'LI016'€It/(Al 6'OL'91 )619't):10[tuluq pullt 11! 00ttltlp loN

Ito'HZ(290'84)(660'901)(UO'69)(Nosn) %03.inos 911!3Ul,UL} .loilio imo i

t.£6'LZ(ZQZ'64)(961'LOI)(UO'69)1llo S.IRISItul.I L

LO Itoe 1L60'1 - u! 5.10.15UU.1.1.

:(SHS[l) Sil:)MAOS DNIONVN].1 11711 Li.0

LRL'lEi'LI896'IES(618'666'91)869'EE ISoin 1!puod xo (.topun)

1 OA 0 SOn 110,%01 j <1 (/(O UO!,1 U OP) SSOOXH

688'£92'91DLK'Z09'L61 §'LON'£ZBOO'PLL'9sailm.pumix: [,40,1.

- ££991££9'1££9'1NOWJUip IHONLI l'Ilt! 1%310]UE

- LOE'LQLOE'LSLOE'Ldlutual!10.1 [id!00!·41

:00!AJOS 1!441

1.11'£90'ZEgot''t,SL' 1619'LORTEBOO't'LL'9Killine Flide)

(GLE'68CQ)SEE'611L'f - - 1,'uidoi#Aip X1!untuu,0-1
:luauil)

®1 M 1.1.1 (]NA+IdX,1

lEN'9168£6'1711'8OOL'LOU00L'L06'9SallUOAOU 1110.1

Et,0'61 £EDO'61 f. · - 4,odold pull K.motil .jo :041
96L'L66 $964.908'L $OOL'LOU $0(}L'L06'9 $ 903!Ains toi 0,11.11?11,1

:S)1(ZN':IA'.[}1

10'Pntl luu!:1slunoU[Vluu!.411!t,!WIK)

41!m :out,!+1,!AFn]OV
Slunou,V Poloilplitl

NOE '00 .™Ar (101(1.]MVIA I'll[.1. 210.1

SCIN 1.1 T,1.,1 .1.)V.I K I Sri l.1.I' H. )1.1 .)1 ' Iti nd

'1,/11,1.:)V (INV.1.)1'1(111[1 - [,I.)NV'IVE[ CIAJ!11 ,1 %>1')\VII.) (11V

%51}1!1.1.1(1,9'•1]X)] '%01!lk)1AVM .[0 01'Ill(1'21[l )%

VINNO.It'tV.)'(DIll.).10 A.I.1.)

62.



NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

SPECIAL REVENUE 1(UNDS

Operating Grants
Accounts for a variety of governmental operating grants, including law enforcement grants,
Iliese funds are restricted to be used only for the purpose of the grants.

Community Maintenance Districts

Accounts for maintenance and operation of specified publ ic improvements. These funds are
restricted to be used only for the maintenance districts.

Transportation

Accounts for Transportation Development Act (TDA) funding for the planning, development,
construction and maintenance of street/road and bicycle/pedestrian projects, These funds are
restricted to be used only for allowable TDA activities.

Gas Tax

Accounts for revenues and expenditures apportioned under the Streets and Ilighway Code,
Sections 2103,2 105,2106,2107 and 2107.5 for administration, maintenance, and construction
which is sureet-related and Transportation Congestion Relief monies. Also accounts for federal
funds allocated for street maintenance and rehabilitation, and right-of-way acquisition,
maintenance, construction, street sweeping, and improvement ofstreet facilities, from the
liansportation l':quity Act for the 2 INt Century. All gas tax funds are restricted to be used only
as allowed within the Streets and 1 lighway Code and federal regulations.

Other Special Revenue

Accounts fur comparatively smaller special revenue funds including u·affic safety, asset
forfeiture, private activity revenue bond reserve administration and assessment district
administration fund, 'rhese funds are restricted to be used for allowable activities as listed.

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

Capital Improvement<

Accounts for various capital improvements - building/facility improvements, passenger facility
charges. in lieu offsite improvements, Liberator Street remediation and sewer main installation.

Bond Proceeds Fund

Accounts for the transfer of bond proceeds from the 2001 Chico Public Financing Authority
Tax Allocation Revenue 13onds and 2005 Chico Redevelopment Agency Tax Allocation liond
that are to be used by the City for purposes fur which all bonds were sold. Tile transfer and use
of the proceeds is allowed by provisions of AB 1484 (Redevelopment Dissolution).

Fleet Replacement and Facility Maintenance

Accoutits for accumulation of reserves and expenditures for major equipment replacement and
major building and facility maintenance.

Remediation

Accounts for transactions related to clean up of various remediation sites within the City.



C 7 7 '¥ 01 ( 111 CO, C . ALI [, 011 N I A

COMBINING IJAIANCIC S]114•'1'

NONMA.1(lit (;OVERNMEN'! At. 11'NDS

JUNE 30,2021

1'(,tal

Nonmaior

Special Capital (Rovernmental

Revenue lunds Projects Funds 1:ul,{Is

ANSI'I'S

Cash and investments $ 14,233,902 $ 8.782,07 I $ 23,015,973

Receivables:

Interest - 99 99
1-axes 27.614 - 27,614

Accoutits 53.269 - 5 I,269

Intergovernmental 1,617.275 - 1.617.275

1.06"is 23,477 23,477

Restricted casli und investments - 124,176 124,176

rotal assets $ 15,953,537 $ 8,906,346 $ 24,859,883

1,1Aill.ITIES. DEI,ERREI) 131+OUS OF

RES<)11«'ES, AND 171'ND IMLANCES

[.iabilities:

Accounts payable $ 174,241 $ 222,706 $ 396,947

Accrued salaries and benefits 33,185 68.656 101,841

Advances from other funds 42,205_ - 42,205

lotal liabilities 249,631 291,362 540,993

Det'erred inllows ol'rest,tirce,4:

Ikfer,·ed liousing loan principal payments

development impact Ibes and grlints 92,851 - 92,851

l'otal deferred infloWS of res«,„rces 92,851 - 92,851

Restricted 15.611.053 2.663.699 18.274.754

Assigned - 5,951,285 5,951.285

rotal fund balances 15.611.055 8,614,984, _ 24,226,039

lotal linbilities, delurred injlows of resources.

and lund bal,inces $ 15,953,537 $ 8,906,346 $ 24.859.883
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( 11'] '¥ O E C ] I l a), CA [.1110 It N I A
SCHEDITLE OF RE.VENUES, EXPENDI'IURIES

AND (VIAN(;ES IN FljNI) IJAI.ANC'F. - lili)(;El' AN[) AC'['tiAL

OVERA'1'INC; GRANI'S St'F.('IAL REVENIJE HIND

1,OR THE YEAR IENDED J[INIC. 30,2021

13.udgeted Amounts
Acttial Variance with

Original 1:Inal Amounts Final Budget

RI.VI<Nt Il.S:

Intergovernmental $ 1,001,085 $ 1.927.714 $ 1,076,602 $ (851.112)

Other · 19.450 29,450 10,000

rotal revenues 1,001,085 1,947.164 1,106.052 (841,112)

EXPI,N])1'11]RF.S:

Current:

(ieneral government 4.750 (4,750)

IPublic saftly 1,086,056 1,423,954 871.263 552,691

l'arks and recreation 45.526 124,311 (124,311)

Capital outlay - 129.346 5,463 123,883

Itotal expenditures 1.131.582 1,553,300 1,005,787 547,513

IExcess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures (130,497) 393,864 100,265 (293,5991

C)'1111{11 FINANCING SOURCES:

Imnifers in 130.497 184,333 184333

14{)tal other financing sources (uses) 130,497 184,333 184,333

Net change in fund balance - 578,197 284.598 (293,599)

IFund balance. beginning of year (131.599) ('·11,3,4 (131.599)

I·'und balance, end ofyear $ (131,599) $ 446,598 $ 152,999 $ (293,599)
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CITY OF ('111('0, A 1,11''ORNIA

a)MmNING HAI.AN< F. SIIEET

NONULK)[{t'j\19'1'.Al. 1'11().IIi( 1·S 121INDS

.JUNE 30.2021

Fleet lulal

Capital IH{Ind Replace merit IPublic Nonniauor

impri)vcments 14·oceeds und bacility Remediation Infrnstnicture Capital

Fund Fund Muintenance Fund Replacement ProJects Funds

ANNE+IS

('i,Ali and investments $ 2.827.679 $ - $ 2,907.143 $ 504.066 $ 2.542.963 $ 8,782,071

Rece,vables

Interest 99 . I

Restriciedcashand investments - 124,176 - - 124,176

I'Dial lisse.1% $ 2,827,679 $ 124,275 $ 2.907361 $ 504,066 $ 2,542,963 $ 8,906,346

LIAH]11'111(S, DFI·F.R]41<1) INIFI,OU'S 01,

RES<)1·12(·1(t, ANI) El,NI) Ii,tl,ANC-1,3,

1.inbilitnes

AccoInts payable $ 45.157 $ . $ 170.768 $ 3.042 $ 3,539 $ 222,706

Accrued salaries and benefits 68.656 - - 68,656

rotalliabilities 114.013 170,768 3,042 3,539 291.362

I und balunces

Restneted - 124,275 - - 2,539,424 2.66 1,699
Assigned 2,713,666 - 2,736,595 Sol,024 - 5.951.285

total tund 1,%1nree• (deficin 2.713.666 124,275 2.736,595 501,024 2.539.424 8,614,984

1-011111 Iabil illes. deferred mflm,s of

re>ourees amd kind bal.inces $ 2,827,679 $ I 24,275 $ 2.907.363 $ 504.066 $ 2.542.963 $ 8.906.346
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(1-1'¥ OF t[ 11('0, C 'Al .1 17() RNILA

S<'111(1)11[.1. OF REVENUES, EXPEND]'I'lilli(S

AND CHANGES IN FIJND BALAN('F - 11[ 11)(11'.'1' AND ACrtIAL

REMEDIA'1'ION FIJNI)

1;011 'THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2021

Budgeted Amounls

Actual Variance with

()riginal Final An",unts Final nudget

REVI·NtJES:

Use ormoney and property $ · $ - $ 2$ 2

1-otal revenues - - 2 2

1.XPIWINT[JRIES:

Clurrent:

Public works - 84,077 (84.077)

Capital otillay 247,725 585,100 - 585.100

1-otal expenditures 247,725 585,100 84,077 301,023

Excess (deficiency) Airrevenues over

Cumier) expenditures (247,7251 _ (585.[00) (84,075) 501,025

OT[IliR FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

Fransfers in 247,725 585,100 585,100

['otal other financing sources (uses) 247,725 585.100 585,100

Net change in fund balance - - 501.02.5 501,025

Fund balance, beginning 01'year (1) (1) (1)

$ (13 $ (1) $ 501,024 $ 501,0251:und balance. end of year
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INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

Self Insurance

Accounts fur liability, property and related insurance program activities; workers'
compensation insurance program activities; and unemployment insurance reimbursement
transactions to State Unemployment Insurance Fund.

Central Garage
Accounts for central garage operating costs which are subsequently distributed to user offices
and departments.

Municipal Building Maintenance
Accounts for municipal buildings operating costs which are subsequently distributed to user
offices and departments.

Information Services

Accounts for information and communications systems costs which are
subsequently distributed to user offices and departments.

Retirement Funding
Accounts fur annual payments of CalPERS Unfunded Liability.



(Tr¥ (Mr ('111('C), CALIFORNIA

C OMI; ININC, S'I'A'I IiMEN'l' C li NErl PC)% 1.1 'ION

INTER NAL SERVIC F. FUNI).S

.It IN E 30,202 1

Municipal
Self ('entral Ilitilding Information Retireincnt

Insurance (iarage Maintenancc Services punding '1 otal

ANSI./11%

('urrent Fissets:

Cash and investments $ 5.335.786 $ 50.579 $ 123.666 267.721 $ 3.309.260 $ 9,087.012
Receivables:

Accounts 191.533 - - - - I91,533
IDue from other funds 2.639.923 2,639,923

Inventories - 47.145 - - 47,115

I'repaid items 1.307 - - 1,307
Irolal current assets 8,168,549 97,724 123,666 267,721 3,309,260 11,966,920

Noticurrent assets:

(asli and investments with agent 300.000 - - - - 300.000

1.and and construction in progress 4. 30.391 - - - 30,391

Dther capital assets,

net oraccumulated depreciation - 22.620 - - - 22,620
I otal tii),1current assets 300,000 53,OIl · - - 353,Oil

l'otal assets 8,468,549 [50,735 123,666 267,721_ 3.309,260 12.319.931

DEFERRED OIl I FI.OWS 01

Ikfurred amounts related to pensions - 290.750 208.2()() 446,352 - 945.302

['otal deferred outllows orresources - 290,750 208,200 446,352 - 945,302

1.1 £1*11'I-TIES

Current liabilities:

Accounts payable 13·1.8 19 29.749 59.388 23.305 - 447,261
Accrued salaries and benefits 17.83,1 18.950 32.614 - 69,398

Deposits - too . - . too
Compensated absences - current - 5.621 6.()99 8,620 - 20.342

Claims liability - current portion 2,177,493 - . - 2.177,493
ITotal current liabilities 2,512.312 53,306 84,437 64,539 - 2.714,594

Noncurrent liabilities:

Compensated absences - 38.798 42.087 39,481 - 140.366

Claims liabilih 5,409.956 - . - 5,409.956

Net pension liability - 2.667.929 1.910.451 4,093.741 - 8,674.Ill
rotal tioncurrent liabilitics 3,409,956 2.706.727 1,952,538 4,155,222- - 14,224,443

total liabilities 7,922,268 2.760,033 2,036,975 4,219,761 - 16,939,037

DEFERNED INFLOWS OF

Deferred amounti related to pensions - 22.408 16,()46 34,400 - 72,854
total deferred inflows ofresources - 22,408 16,046 34,400 - 72,854

NEI' POSI']'1(n

Net investment in capitul assets - 53,Oil - - 53,011
Unrestricted 546,281 (2,393.967) (1·721,155) (3,540,088) 3,309.260 (3.799,669)

1 otal ret position (dencil $ 546.281 $ (2,340.956) $ 0,721,155) $ (3,540,088) $ 3,309,260 $ (3.746,658)
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NTATISTICAL SE(11'ION NANAOINTEm

l'his part of the City of Chico's comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed
information as a context fur understanding what the information iii the financial statements,
note disclosures. and required supplementary information says about the government's overall
financial health.

Contents: Page

Financial Trends 100-104

These schedules contain trend in®rmation to help the reader understand how the
government's financial per#irmance and well-being have changed over time.

Revenue Capacity 105-109

These schedules contain infbrmation to help the reader assess the government's
most significant local revenue source, the properly tax,

Debt Capacity liD-113

These schedules presem infbrmation to help the reader aNNess the a/fbrdability of
the government's current levels of outstanding debt and the government's ability
to issue additional debt in the future.

Demographic and Economic Information 114-118

These schedules olle· demographic and economic indicators to help the reader
under.stand the environment within which the government's jinancial activities take
place.

Operating Information 119-120

These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader
understand how the infurmation in the government 's financial report relates to the
,services the government provides and the activities it per#)rms.

Sources: 1 Jnless otherwise noted. the information in these schedules is derived from the comprehensive annual
linailcia] rep,iris Rir the relevHnl year.
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City of Chico, California

Ge·ne, al {;tive, 11,1,intal Tak Revi·,11]cs Hy Muu,·ec
Li,st Ten Fiscal ¥'cars

(modified accrual linviN of accounting)
(amountH expressed in thousands)

Other Taxes

l'iral Snles Utility Buvinew Traniienl Micument

Ye,Ir il·operty and t]•e Am 1•'rlinchiMe license (*CupH ney Transfer ·rotal

2012 m 25,991 16,502 6,655 1.293 515 1,970 197 53,123

2013 m 11,589 17.044 6,241 1,480 319 2,049 230 38,952

2014 12,311 18,542 6.305 1.548 311 2,219 245 41381

2015 13,649 19,409 6,203 2,927 304 2.362 288 45,142

2()[6 14,564 19,9()9 6,553 1,877 295 2,522 312 46,032

2017 15,169 21.134 6,895 1,998 298 2.712 386 48.592

2018 15,410 21,832 7,052 2,943 296 2,835 441 50,810

2019 16.750 25.174 7,200 3,441 326 3,569 531 56,990

2020 18.616 24,435 7,317 3,737 292 3,000 454 57,851

202 1 19,1(96 28,177 7.360 3.429 386 2,747 532 62,526

Notes General Governmental Revenmes includes General, Special Revenue, Debt Service and Capital Projects Funds.

{1) Decrease was due to the dissolution ofthe City Redevelopment Agency 0,1 Jammry 31,2012

(2) Decrease was duc to the first full year subscquent to the dissolution oithe City Redevelopment Agency

Source C.ity 4,<C.hkt), Filiance i®partment.

General Governmental Tax Revenues By Source

Bus,Ileg I.le'ense

A 1 I'nuisient (*cupancy [glculnent'Im#ful
-10.

1·ranchlse.

Utility Users.
14.4

l'HipefIV

3€)%

S. k·: und Use
435.
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City o f Chico, C}ilifornin

Property Tax Rates - Direct and Overlapping Governments
Last Ten Fiscal Years

City of Chico Overlitpping Rates

('hico

Unified 'Total Direct

Basic School and
Fiscal Counlywide City Total Direct District % Butte College % Overlapping
¥ ear Levy % % Tax Rate % 0) (2) Rates %

2011 1.00 0.00 1.()0 0,0115 0.0209 1.0624
2012 1.(){) 0.00 1.00 01)211 ().0209 I.0420

2014 1 +0() 0.()() 1.00 0.0401 0.02()9 1.0610

2()15 1,00 0+00 1.00 0.0451 0.0209 1.0660

2016 1.8) 0.00 1,00 0.0291 0.0209 1.0500

2017 1.00 0.00 1.00 0,0817 0.()466 1.1283

201 8 1.00 0.00 100 ().0874 0.0413 1.1287

2019 1.00 0.00 1.00 0.0616 (10413 1.1029

2021 1.00 0.0() LOO 0.0843 0.0414 1.1256

On June 6, 1978, Califurnia vote,7 approved an amendment tothe Article X1IiA of the California
Constitution. Theiamendment, commonly known as Proposition 13, limits the taxing power of
Calilhrnia public agencies. The Cali fornia 1 .egislatui·eenacted legislation to implement Article
X11!A (Statues of 1978, Chapter 292, as amended) providing that local agenciex may not levy any
properly lax except lo pay debt service on indebtedness approved by voters prior to July 1, 1978,

und that each county will levythe maximum tax permitted of $1.00 per 100 of full assessed
value.

(1) Chico [Jnified School District: 1998 Series 11,2012 Chico Refundingand 2012 Measure It
Series A.

(2) Ilutte-Glenn Community College District: (ieneral obligalion bonds, Refunded Series A and 11,
and Series B and C,

Source; Butte County Auditor/Controller'% Ollice.
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C 'ity lifC·hico, California
Principal Secu,·cd Property 1·Miniyers

June 30,2021

('urrent Yeili·,inil Nine Yean Ago

0,moni,1% evire#Ned In thouiands)

2021 2012

Percentage of Percentage of
·lotal·1·,ixal}le total'I'axable

Taxable Assessed Ailiessid '1.x"ble Asse,sed

Taxpayer Value Itank Vi,luntion A,sesicil Value Rank Vatualion

Sie, m Nev,ida iliewi,ig ('{ i,pany $ 101400 1 () (,8 24.017 4 038

Mei ie A Webb and Sons [ P 93.884 2 () 9(I

Anwal Chico [.Ir 58,376 1 00 -

MP Con: Chico llC 98.315 4 056

Chic,1 Crogsrolids 1.1' 43.322 5 042 20.914 2 0.40

Nonh Chico L[.C 41,384 6 040

Comeast 38,717 7 0.17

ECP ·11'131 1.1.(' 31,249 8 032

(·hicil Sen!,irliving[.P 31,950 9 031

Ai, »ay I JSA Inc 30,828 10 0.30

Chie(}Mall LI' 35,583 1 0 88

Carwood Skypark TIC 24,535 3 019

Calili,rma Water Scivice 21,lal 5 0.37

('„flen Wholexate Gm 6 0.31

Evergreen Orchard I.].C Itt,fi'It 7 029

1.owes 1 [IW 15.154 8 () 24

(irei,pry I . ami Joi,11 R Webb 14.334 9 011

W,11„,alt Re.al l.jitale 1$119111(11% Tn,!It I 4,047 10 0.22

1.argest Secured Propelly Valcalion 532,428 237,912

Other Secured Inipliye, s 9.896,278 6,064,619

!·cil Al Seeure,11'roperty Valuation - Net of Exemptioils $ 10,428,706 100 00% $ 6,30>,531 100,00%

Soilice H litte County Auditor/Controller·,Oillce

Ildes " 2017/18 rop Property lax,mym - Secured."
2009 Comprehensive Animal 1·'mancial Report StatistiC!; rubie X
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City of Chico, Californin

Property Tax Levies and Collections
Last Ten Fiscal Years

(amounts expressed in tholisands)

Percent of I,evy 1,©reenti)[ 1'011,1

Fical Current'lai ('ollected Delinqui'"t  "* lot#,11 #x ('01!ection» to

¥Mr '1'01,111'ax Levy Coltections (1) Collection, ('111[Cetiolls Tax Levy

2012 $ 25,991 (2) $ 25,991 100 - 25,991 1()0

2() 13 $ 11,589 (3) $ 11,589 100 - 11,589 100

2{) 14 $ 12,311 $ 12,311 100 - 12.311 too

2015 $ 13,649 $ 13,649 100 - 13,649 1 00

2016 $ 14,564 $ 14,564 1()() 14,564 100

2017 $ 15,169 $ 15,169 too - 15,1 69 100

2018 $ 15,410 $ 15,410 100 - 15,410 1()()

2019 $ 16,750 $ 16,750 100 - 16.750 100

2020 $ 18,616 $ 18,616 100 - tX,616 100

2021 $ 19,896 $ 19,896 100 - 19,896 1(m

Source: Butte Counly Auditor/Controller's Office.
City of Chico. Finance Department

Note: Amounts shown are nel of property tax administration fee. The aitiounts prosented include City

property taxes and former Chico Redevelopment Agency tax incremen[ This schedule also
includes amounts collected by the City and Ibrmer Chico Redevelopment Agency thal were passed
through to other taxing agencies.

( 1) The City participates m the County "Tecter Plan" method of propeny tax distribution. 1 Jnder the
['eeter Plan. the County remits properly taxes lind assessments to the C'ity based on levy, not on
collections.

62) Tax levy decreased substantially in 2012 duc tothedissolution ofthe
City's Redevelopment Agency on January 31,2012. Included tax increment for the
first hall'ofthe fiscal year.

(3) Tax levy decreased substantially iii 2013 due to the dissolution of the
City's Redevelopment Agency on January 31.2012. Notax increment in tile fiscal year.
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city of Chico, california

Ratio* of out*ta„ding I)cbt by Type
Laxt l en Fis¢91 Years

(amotints expres,ied in tliousl,nds. except percentage of personal income)

Governmental Activities 111,Niness·Type Activities
IN# Perrentage

Fiscal Reveni,e ('H pital lieve,lile Primary of Personal Per

Year Bonds 1.00115 I.ma 8011{IN I.oani (;overnment ,„<„,"i Lauilll

2012 - 46,364 - - 13.072 59,436 0.81 679

2013 - - · - 55,746 55,746 0.76 636

2014 - - - 51,966 51.966 0.66 588

2015 - - - - 48,093 48.093 0.58 537

2016 - - 2,852 - 2.851 0,03 31

20[7 - - 2,568 · 40,063 42.631 047 457

2018 - - 2,559 - - 2,559 0.03 23

2019 - . 3,038 31,635 34,673 0.35 314

2020 - - 2.526 - 27,266 29.792 0.29 323

2021 - - 1.998 . 31,635 33.633 0.32 364

Note: Details regarding the City's outstanding debt call be found in the notes to the linancial statements,

Revenue bonds arc no longer mi obligation o[ he City's. but rather orthe Successor Agency u, Ihe Chien Iledevelopment
Agency due lo Ihe dissolution of the City Redevelopment Agency on January 31,2012

In 20 3, existing [oans were moved from Governmental Activities to Business-Type Activities to more accurately
rellect the 1·'mids respi,ilsible for the debt.

Source: (Jity of('lilco, I inance Ikpartnient.
U.S. Census Itureau

State or €'alifbrnia, 1 kparlinent of Finance. lkmographic Research Unit.
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City or ('hieo, Catiforniv

Direct and Overlapping Government Activities Debt
June 30,2021

(amounts expressed in thouland.i)

Net Genetail

f)bligation F,cruentlige
Bonded Debt Applicable City Share

Jurisdiction Outstanding 10 City * of Ikbt

Overlapping [)cbt Repaid with Properly '1'ax:
Chico Unified School District $ 159,750 75 58% $ 120,732

Butte-(ile,in ('ommunity Ciftlege I )islrlot 136,445 45.87% 62,590

Subtotal. overlapping debt 183.322

City oil Chico direct dcht

l'0181 direct and overlapping debt $ 183,322

I·he percentage O[overtapping dcht applicable is estimated using [axable assessed properly values. Applicable percentages were
estimated by delermining Ihe cily's taxable assessed value and dividing it by the Chico linificd School Distric['s and Butte„Glenn
Community College Distric['s taxable asse,Ned value.

Chico t Inified School District

Butte Community College
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4 ily 01 C hico, ( 'nlifornio

1,,2/1 1061.M,truln Informnlion

NA li, Fi."I VM,s

(/1,„11„714 ,·1 1,1 ·9/,1 iii IliI,ii,Hi,ili)

Fls€91 Yinr

aU Zil13 Nia Mil# Ell Nia 1#12 mu 221

1 01«IA,e#ed Val,„,nion (le%s odier exemplioii,) $ 7,003,363 £ 6,852,229 $ 7,03,1.093 $ 7,343.176 $ 7,769,1116 $ 8.124.147 $ 11,193.694 $ 9,Ill.12,1 $ 9.le!.59,1 $ 10.59.970

Dubil mm 16 Porcenlof A,seszed Vohml,0,1 (1) $ I.050.104 $ 1,027.RAA $ I.045.714 $ I.lol,tofi % I.IM.178 $ 1,2Ill.682 $ I.ZIW.Im# % I.166,999 S I 4111.71') b 1.316!.947

Amouniol Debt Applicable to Debt 1.imil · - ·

I e,wi Debt Mnin,ii $ I .050,5(14 WI,017»l 31,053,23,1 $ I,IOI,506 El,thS,378 $ 1,28,682 $ I,289,MO,1 S 1,366999 $ I,4813,739 $ 1,582,947

rinnli,ci debi ip,ilic,1,1, ,illic Ii,nil
„ 1, Ii:i./iII:,gs: i,I debl lii,i,1 0 (*,56 (1(ion, 0 00% 000% 000% 000% 0 00% 000% 0 Ulwa 0,10%

So.K B. 1,/Coll/Awdiloi/('unli,ill/$(111'e,1

(Il » 41675 01 [Ite ( 2,1,1,inur Qi,ir"inent ('ed: provide' that

A elly *11,11 13<,1 litwil, 4,1 it,ileble,11:eia ror public Improvelilcill, i,1,1.· h excceds Inthe n,Inre,Inte 15 porcont or·die
AN ,/d i alue of :ill will nrul IN: 1.,1,1,1 pf itile:ly „r ihe Ci¢% Wilhin Ilie /13/ Mig .,1 11,6 .a,in 'indehied,1/i' melin'
bonded Mdclnedne,5 /1111/ cm pa) able froinllie procced, of lax ci 1/,$'Ird i *Ma, 1, pitblip,uperly ,i, 11,0/11 4 "
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('ity of Chico,  Alifornia

Pledged-Revenne Cloverage

1,1,91 l'en Flical Years

Parking Fund 11{,mt (1) '1'ax Allocation Bon<14 (2)

Ne! Revenue

l'ise,11 (.ros, Operating Availabte for [otal '96. 'Iral Debl Service %

Year Revenue Eipensa Delit Service Deb,Service Coverage Increment Interest Coverage

2012

2011

2014

201%

2016

2017

2018

2()19

2020

2021

Source (Hy of (hico, 1:inance 1)<pmtment

Note (I) 199,1 l'arkinp, Revenue Itonds

Operating I (xpenscs exclude [keprcclation and one-time non-recurring items

Parking 13onds were relired In Aup,ust 2009

(2) 2001,2005 and 2007 Inx Al]0{milan [A{inds lt<,11(ls weie no longer an obligation of [lie City due to the'
dissolution of the Chico Redevelopment Agency on Junwary 31,2012
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City of C hien, California

Principal Employers

Current Year and Nine Years Ago

zozof 21)111

pereentage Perce,itage

(,flk,tal CIty ofTotal ('ity

F.mi,lover Emptovee Rank Employment EmuioveeN Rank Emplovment

lint,ie Medical Center 1,03 I 869% 2,275 1 5 10%

£'hico Ilnified School I)istrict 1,494 2 3.64 1,400 3 3.14

Cal,forma State Unlverbity, Chico 1.106 3 27() 1,825 2 4.09

Iluild.com 543 4 0.01

Sierra Nevada Brewer, 485 5 1.18 325 6 0.73

United Ilealth Care 425 6 0.01

City of Clici 369 7 () g() 402 4 (1 90

Costco 350 8 0.85 -

Walmar 276 9 0.67 400 5 0.90

1.ulu's Fashion I.ounge 217 10 00i

Sun third Hi- tech - 200 7 0.45

Aero Union Culporation 175 8 0.39

Chico F.merprise Record · 150 9 0.34
Smuckers - 125 10 02.8

Total 8,828 21.53% 7,277 16.31%

' No elin·ent <Inta avallable for this %10  stic, therefore 2020 statisliestirc earned forward from 2019 except for (.hty 01'Chico. which represents
representsthe actual 2020amount

' No current da lavaitable i kir this statistic, therefore 20l l slatistle N are carried from the l iscal Your 2010 except the lily ol'Chico. which

representstheaclirt[ 2011 amount All munlieisiweestimatesexcept the City of Chicoamormis

Source CilyorChicostaff
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City of Chico, California

Full-time and Part-time City of C hico Employees by Function
1.ast Ten Fiscal Years

1('ull-time and Part-time Employees

2012 2013 2014 2015 20[6 2017 2018 2019 2020 21!21
F"ne ti(,n

General government 45 42 29 29 31 30 30 31 31 37

Public safely

police 148, 1431 131 1 136 4 143 4 143 i 148 1 153 4 154, 157

Fire 70 67 74 74 74 59 59 59 60 62

Public works 59 67 i 69 69 72 73 73 76 81 87

Parks mid recreation 21 21 12 13 13 14 14 13 14 18

Community development I 8, 36, 20 21 22 22 22 24 27 30

Sewer 16 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Iiarking 2000000000

Private development 24 0 0 0 0

Airport 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 2 2
rotal 393 376 334 342 355 343 346 356 369 393

Note: Numbers shown rollect hudgeted ]·ull- 1 mic I:quivatent positions Budget to actuals variance

at anytime is immaterial. The number of employees mily not agree with the l'rincipal Employers
lable duc to timing mid inethodology di[Ibrences Imployees per ftmetion arc rounded to the nearest

1 - Represents a reclassification orthrec posilions from Irivale Ilevelopment to Community l)evelopment in Fiscal Year 2011-12.

2 - Functions for Sewer and l'arking were moved to Public works in Fiscal Year 2012-13

3 - Functions Air Private development were moved to Community development in Fiscal Year 2012-13.

4 - Full Time (Contractual Services) for the AnimMI Shelter employees are not included

Source: ('ity o[C hico, Am,ual [Audgets
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL

REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN

AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE

WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Chico
Chico, California

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental
activities, the business-type activities, the discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Chico (the City), as of and for the year ended June
30, 2021, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City's basic
financial statements, and have issued our repor·t thereon dated December 7, 2021

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City's internal control
over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we
do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A materia/ weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
that is less severe than a material weakness yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material

weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

*Alexia
nionberof

Intninltion.il

CLA 11 an independent member of Nox ia International. o leading, Rlobal network of Indmpenden[
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The Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Chico

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City's financial statements are free from
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on
the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an
objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests
disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported Linder
Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly,
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

%1444_«All„_LLy
CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

Roseville, California

December 7, 2021

(2)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL

PROGRAM; REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE; AND REPORT ON
THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

The Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Chico
Chico, California

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program
We have audited the City of Chico's (the City) compliance with the types of compliance requirements
described in the OMB Comp/iance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of
the City's major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2021 The City's major federal programs
are identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and
questioned costs.

Management's Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and
conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor's Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the City's major federal programs
based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above We conducted our audit
of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America,
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal

Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirernents, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements
for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance) Those standards andthe Uniform Guidance requirethatwe plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal
program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the City's compliance
with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances,

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major
federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the City's compliance.
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The Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Chico

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, the City complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for
the year ended June 30,2021.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over
compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our
audit of compliance, we considered the City's internal control over compliance with the types of
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine
the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over
compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on
the effectiveness of the City's internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance \s a deficiency,
or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will
not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control

over comphance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with
a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in
internal control over compliance yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance,

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies, We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,
material weaknesses may exist that that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of ourtesting
of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the
Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

(4)



The Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Chico

Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by the Uniform Guidance

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the
discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of
the City, as of and for the year ended June 30,2021, and the related notes to the financial statements,
which collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements. We have issued our report thereon
dated December 7, 2021, that contained unmodified opinions on those financial statements. Our audit
was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise
the basic financial statements. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is
presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by the Uniform Guidance and is not a required
part of the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived
from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial
statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial
statements orto the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of
expenditure of federal awards is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements
as a whole.

U.LUU.ully

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

Roseville, California

December 7, 2021

(5)
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CITY OF CHICO

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

NOTE 1 BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented in accordance
with the requirements of Title 2 U S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform

Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards
(Uniform Guidance), and presents the activity of all federal awards programs of the City of
Chico for the year ended June 30,2021.

NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Expenditures reported on the schedule are reported on the modified accrual basis of
accounting. Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in the
Uniform Guidance for all awards with the exception of Assistance Listing 21.019, which follows
criteria determined by the Department of Treasury for allowability of costs. Under these
principles, certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement.
Negative amounts shown on the Schedule reporesent adjustments or credits made in the
normal course of business to amounts reported as expenditues in prior years.

NOTE 3 CATALOG OF FEDERAL ASSISTANCE LISTING NUMBERS

The program titles and federal assistance listing numbers were obtained from the federal or
pass-through grantor or the 2021 Cata/og of Federa/ Domestic Assistance. When no CFDA
number had been assigned to a program, the two-digit federal agency identifier and the federal
contract number were used. When there was no federal contract number, the two-digit federal
agency identifier and the word "unknown" were used.

NOTE 4 INDIRECT COST RATE

The City did not elect to use the 10 percent de minimis indirect cost rate as covered in 2 CFR
§200.414.

NOTE 5 PASS-THROUGH ENTITIES' IDENTIFYING NUMBER

When federal awards were received from a pass-through entity, the schedule of expenditures
of federal awards shows, if available, the identifying number assigned by the pass-through
entity. When no identifying number is shown, the City determined that no identifying number
is assigned for the program or the City was unable to obtain an identifying number from the
pass-through entity.

(7)



CITY OF CHICO

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

NOTE 6 LOANS WITH CONTINUING COMPLIANCE REQUIREMENTS

Outstanding federally-funded program loans, with a continuing compliance requirement,
carried balances as of June 30, 2021 as follows:

Outstanding Federal Aw am

ILoans Loans New Expended

Federal

Assistanc

e Lisitng

No

14.239

Federal Program June 30,2021 July 1,2020 Loans Junie 30, 2021

Home Investment Partnership Program 5,521,983 5,323,003 638,553 5,961,556

(8)



CITY OF CHICO

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Section 1 - Summary of Auditors' Results

Financial Statements

1. Type of auditors' report issued Unmodified

2. Internal control over financial reporting:

• Material weakness(es) identified? yes x no

• Significant deficiency(les) identified? yes x none reported

3. Noncompliance material to financial
statements noted? yes x no

Federal Awards

1. Internal control over major federal programs:

• Material weakness(es) identified? yes x no

• Significant deficiency(ies) identified? yes x none reported

2. Type of auditors' report issued on
compliance for major federal programs: Unmodified

3. Any audit findings disclosed that are required
to be reported in accordance with
2 CFR 200.516(a)? yes x no

Identification of Major Federal Programs

Assistance Listing Number(s) Name of Federal Program or Cluster

14.239 HOME Investment Partnerships
21.019 Coronavirus Relief Fund

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between
Type A and Type B programs: $ 750,000

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? x yes no

(9)



CITY OF CHICO

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Section 11 - Financial Statement Findings

Our audit did not disclose any matters required to be reported in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards.

Section Ill - Findings and Questioned Costs - Major Federal Programs

Our audit did not disclose any matters required to be reported in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a).

(10)



CllftonLarsonAllen LLP

CLAconnect.com

To the Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Chico
Chico, California

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the
discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of
City of Chico as of and for the year ended June 30, 2021, and have issued our report thereon dated
December 7, 2021.We have previously communicated to you information about our responsibilities under
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, Government Auditing Standards,
and T\Ue 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations PaA 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance), as well as certain
information related to the planned scope and timing of our audit. Professional standards also require that
we communicate to you the following information related to our audit.

Significant audit findings

Qualitative aspects of accounting practices
Accounting policies

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant
accounting policies used by City of Chico are described in Note 1 to the financial statements.

As described in Note 1, the City changed accounting policies related to fiduciary activities by adopting
Statement of Governmental Accounting Standards (GASB Statement) No. 84, Fiduciary Activities, in
2021. The City has determined there is no material impact to the financial statements.

We noted no transactions entered into by the entity during the year for which there is a lack of authoritative
guidance or consensus. All significant transactions have been recognized in the financial statements in
the proper period.

Accounting estimates

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are
based on management's knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions
about future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance
to the financial statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ
significantly from those expected. The most sensitive estimate(s) affecting the financial statements was
(were):

• Management's estimate of the net pension liability and related deferred inflows/outfows of pension
resources is based on actuarial valuation reports obtained from CalPERS.

• Management's estimate of the other post-employment benefits (OPEB) liability and related
deferred inflows/outfows of pension resources is based on actuarial valuation reports obtained
from experts,

• Management's estimate of the claims liability is based on actuarial reports obtained from experts

We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop these accounting estimates in
determining that it is reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.

*Alexia
monitor of

Irilen.Illel}al

ELA 1$, an Hid,·pel id,·1111 1 101111) 4 ¢)[ Nexla liller]1,111)11.11,,; ier,(Illig, gl obal network a mdependz?fil

tictolin!1141 andionSultwIR firm, Spenexia iom/,nember firin flittlaliner lor detallf



To the Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Chico
Page 2

Financial statement disclosures

Certain financial statement disclosures are particularly sensitive because of their significance to financial
statement users. There were no particularly sensitive financial statement disclosures.

The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear.

Difficulties encountered in performing the audit

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our
audit.

Uncorrected misstatements

Professional standards require us to accumulate all misstatements identified during the audit, other than
those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management.
Management did not identify and we did not notify them of any uncorrected financial statement
misstatements.

Corrected misstatements

None of the misstatements detected as a result of audit procedures and corrected by management

Disagreements with management

For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting, or
auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial
statements or the auditors' report. No such disagreements arose during our audit.

Management representations

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management
representation letter dated December 7, 2021.

Management consultations with other independent accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting
matters, similar to obtaining a "second opinion" on certain situations. If a consultation involves application
of an accounting principle to the entity's financial statements or a determination of the type of auditors'
opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require the consulting
accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge,
there were no such consultations with other accountants,

Significant issues discussed with management prior to engagement

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing
standards, with management each year prior to engagement as the entity's auditors. However, these
discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a
condition to our engagement



To the Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Chico
Page 3

Other information in documents containing audited financial statements

With respect to the required supplementary information (RSI) accompanying the financial statements, we
made certain inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the RSI, including whether the
RSI has been measured and presented in accordance with prescribed guidelines, whether the methods
of measurement and preparation have been changed from the prior period and the reasons for any such
changes, and whether there were any significant assumptions or interpretations underlying the
measurement or presentation of the RSI. We compared the RSI for consistency with management's
responses to the foregoing inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge obtained during
the audit of the basic financial statements. Because these limited procedures do not provide sufficient
evidence, we did not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the RSI.

With respect to the schedule of expenditures of federal awards (SEFA) accompanying the financial
statements, on which we were engaged to report in relation to the financial statements as a whole, we
made certain inquiries of management and evaluated the form, content, and methods of preparing the
SEFA to determine that the SEFA complies with the requirements of the Uniform Guidance, the method
of preparing it has not changed from the prior period or the reasons for such changes, and the SEFA is
appropriate and complete in relation to our audit of the financial statements. We compared and reconciled
the SEFA to the underlying accounting records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial
statements themselves. We have issued our report thereon dated December 7, 2021.

With respect to the combining and individual nonmajor fund statements and schedules (collectively, the
supplementary information) accompanying the financial statements, on which we were engaged to report
in relation to the financial statements as a whole, we made certain inquiries of management and
evaluated the form, content, and methods of preparing the information to determine that the information
complies with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, the method of
preparing it has not changed from the prior period or the reasons for such changes, and the information
is appropriate and complete in relation to our audit of the financial statements. We compared and
reconciled the supplementary information to the underlying accounting records used to prepare the
financial statements or to the financial statements themselves. We have issued our report thereon dated
December 7,2021.

The introductory and statistical sections accompanying the financial statements, which is the
responsibility of management, was prepared for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part
of the financial statements. Such information was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the
audit of the financial statements, and, accordingly, we did not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on it.

***



To the Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Chico
Page 4

This communication is intended solely for the information and use of the City Council and management
of City of Chico and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified
parties.

4*6.,d_0,*44-- LLP

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

Roseville, California
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON SCHEDULE OF

PASSENGER FACILITY CHARGES

To the Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Chico
Chico, California

Report on the Schedule

We have audited the accompanying Schedule of Passenger Facility Charges (Schedule) of the City of
Chico (City), for the year ended June 30, 2021, and the related notes.

Management's Responsibility

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of this schedule in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
the schedule that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the schedule based on our audit We conducted our audit
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller

General of the United States, and the requirements described in the Passenger Facility Charge Audit

Guide for Public Agencies (Guide) issued by the Federal Aviation Administration. Those standards and
the Guide require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
schedule is free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the schedule. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the schedule, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the City's preparation and fair presentation
of the schedule in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Airport's internal control. Accordingly,
we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the schedule.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.
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Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Chico

Opinion on Schedule of Passenger Facility Charges

In our opinion, the Schedule referred to above presents fairly, in all material respects, the passenger
facility charges received, held, and used by the City for the period and each quarter during the period
from July 1,2020 through June 30, 2021, as defined by the Federal Aviation Administration of the U.S.
Department of Transportation.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
December 7, 2021 on our consideration of the City's internal control over financial reporting and on our
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and
other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control
over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on
the effectiveness of the City's internal control over financial reporting or on compliance, That report is an
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the
City's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

U.fu_lLy

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

Roseville, California
December 7, 2021
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CITY OF CHICO

SCHEDULE OF PASSENGER FACILITY CHARGES

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Beginning PFC Ending PFC

Program Description Asset Balance Revenues Expenditures Asset Balance

FEDERAL AVIATION ADMINISTRATION

Passenger Facility Charges (PFC)
Application No. 10-05-C-00-CIC $ 361,225 $ 7,730 3-$ 368,955

Total S 361,225 5 7,730 5 -5 368,955

See accompanying Notes to Schedule of Passenger Facility Charges,

(3)



CITY OF CHICO

NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF PASSENGER FACILITY CHARGES

JUNE 30, 2021

NOTE 1 PROGRAM DESCRIPTION

The Schedule of Passenger Facility Charges presents only the activity of the Passenger
Facility Charges (PFC) Program of the City of Chico.

PFC are fees imposed by the City on enplaned passengers for the purpose of generating
revenue for City projects that increase capacity, increase safety and/or mitigate noise impact.

NOTE 2 BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The Schedule of Passenger Facility Charges is prepared using the accrual basis of
accounting. Under this basis of accounting, revenues are recorded when earned and
expenditures are recognized when the related liability is incurred.

(4)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS
APPLICABLE TO THE PASSENGER FACILITY CHARGES PROGRAM AND

ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE

To the Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Chico
Chico, California

Report on Compliance for Passenger Facility Charges

We have audited the compliance of the City of Chico (City) with the compliance requirements described
in the Passenger Facility Charge Audit Guide for Public Agencies (Guide), issued by the Federal Aviation

Administration, for its Passenger Facility Charge program for the period from July 1, 2020 to June 30,
2021.

Management's Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws and regulations applicable to
its passenger facility charge program.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the City's compliance based on our audit. We conducted
our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America; the standards applicable to the financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,

issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the Guide. Those standards and the Guide
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance
with the compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on the
passenger facility charge program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about
the City's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered
necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal
determination of the City's compliance with those requirements.

Opinion on Compliance

In our opinion, the City of Chico complied, in all material respects, with the requirements referred to above
that are applicable to its passenger facility charge program for the year ended June 30, 2021.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over
compliance with the requirements of laws and regulations applicable to the Passenger Facility Charge
program.
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Board of Supervisors
City of Chico

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City's internal control over compliance with
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on the Passenger Facility Charge program in
order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of City's internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of the
passenger facility charge program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over

comp/iance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies in internal control over compliance, such that
there is a reasonable possibility that a material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of
the passenger facility charge program will not be prevented or detected and corrected on a timely basis.
A significant deficiency in internal control over comp/iance is a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of the passenger
facility charge program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance,
yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies
may exist that have not been identified. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, we did identify certain deficiencies in
internal control, described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as items 2021-
001 and 2021-002 that we consider to be significant deficiencies.

The City's response to the findings identified in our audit is described in the accompanying schedule of
findings and questioned costs. The City's response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied
in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of ourtesting
of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Guide,
Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. However, this report is a matter of public
record and its distribution is not limited. It also serves to disseminate information to the public as a
reporting tool to help citizens assess government operations.

tlxill..L_lP

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

Roseville, California

December 7, 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF THE SCHEDULE
OF PASSENGER FACILITY CHARGES PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING

STANDARDS

Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Chico
Chico, California

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards

issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the Schedule of Passenger Facility Charges
(Schedule) of the City of Chico (City), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2021, and the related notes
to the financial Schedule and have issued our report thereon dated December 7, 2021.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial schedule, we considered the City's internal control
over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial schedule, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control. Accordingly, we do
not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A maten'El/ weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the entity's financial schedule will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may
exist that have not been identified. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance
that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, we did identify certain deficiencies in internal
control, described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as items 2021-001
and 2021-002 that we consider to be significant deficiencies.
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Board of Supervisors
City of Chico

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Schedule is free from material
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts,
and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial Schedule amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

City of Chico's Responses to Findings

The City's responses to the findings identified in our audit is described in the accompanying schedule of
findings and questioned costs. The City's response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied
in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards \n considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly,
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

.U.u_l_Ly

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

Roseville, California
December 7, 2021
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CITY OF CHICO

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
JUNE 30, 2021

2021 - 001

Type of Finding:
• Significant Deficiency in internal control over Compliance
• Significant Deficiency in internal control over Financial Reporting

Condition: We noted the City was not able to produce the SOAR reports for the 2021 audit period.

Criteria: Section 158.63 requires that the public agency provide quarterly reports to carriers collecting
PFC revenues for the public agency, with a copy to the appropriate Federal Aviation Administration (FAA)
airport's office. Per the Passenger Facility Charge Audit Guide for Public Agencies, data from the
quarterly reports should reconcile to supporting documentation and accounting records maintained by
the public agency.

Context: Without the SOAR reports, we are unable to compare the City's records with the FAA's records.

Effect: By not submitting the SOAR repor·ts, the City is at risk of noncompliance with section 158.63

Cause: Based on our discussion with City management, the City has reached out to the FAA several
times to discuss obtaining and reconciling reports from the SOAR system. The City is awaiting a solution
from the FAA on how best to correct the SOAR accounting in order to obtain accurate reports from SOAR
to submit by the deadline.

Recommendation: This is a repeat finding from the fiscal year 2020 audit. We recommend that the City
continue to work with FAA representatives to obtain accurate reports from the FAA SOAR reporting
module that reconcile back to the City's accounting records,

Views of responsible officials and planned corrective actions: The City has continued multiple
discussions with the FAA regarding the status of the FAA SOAR system and the reconciliation differences
that occurred in prior years. The City will continue to work with the FAA to adjust the SOAR reporting.

(9)



CITY OF CHICO

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
JUNE 30, 2021

2021 - 002

Type of Finding

• Significant Deficiency in internal control over Compliance
• Significant Deficiency in internal control over Financial Reporting

Condition: During our testing of the quarterly reporting requirements, we identified that the City did not
submit the fiscal year 2021 quarterly reports timely (within the period stated in Section 158.63).

Criteria: Section 158.63 requires that the public agency provide quarterly reports on or before the last
day of the calendar month following the calendar quarter or other period agreed by the public agency and
collecting carrier.

Context: The conditions noted above were identified during our testing of the quarterly reports. We found
that none of the fiscal year 2021 quarterly reports were submitted on or before the last day of the calendar
month following the calendar quarter end.

Effect: By not submitting the quarterly reports by the required dates, the City is at risk of noncompliance
with section 158.63.

Cause: The City's procedures do not ensure that the quarterly reports are submitted in compliance with
Section 158.63 and the City does not have procedures in place to prevent or detect errors on the quarterly
report.

Recommendation: This is a repeat finding from the 2020 audit. We recommend that the City ensure that
the quarterly reports are submitted timely in accordance with section 1 58.63. In addition, we recommend
the quarterly reports are reviewed by a member of management outside of the preparer prior to
submission to the FAA.

Views of responsible officials and planned corrective actions: The City is exploring options to submit
reporting annually since there is no activity in the PFC other than interest earnings.

(10)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Board of Directors

Chico tJrban Area Joint Powers Financing Authority
Chico, California

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities and the major fund
of the Chico Urban Area Joint Powers Financing Authority (the "Authority"), a component unit of the City of
Chico, as of and for the year ended June 30,2021, and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise the component unit's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for tho preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the

Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assiirance about whether the financial statements are free froni material misstatement

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. Iii making
those risk assess,nents, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal
control Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinions.
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Board of Directors

Chico Urban Area Joint Powers Financing Authority

Opinions

In our opinion, the financjal statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the governmental activities and the major fund of the Authority at June 30, 2021, and the
respective changes in financial position, thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting

principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Management has omitted the management's discussion and analysis that accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America require to be presented to supplement the basic financial

statements. Such missing information, although not part of the basic financial statements, is required by
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers It to be an essential part of financial reponing
for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. Our
opinion on the basic financial statements is not affecled by this missing information.

Other Information

Oiir Aitdit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the Authority's basic financial statements. The supplemental budgetary comparison schedule Is
presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The supplemental budgetary comparison schedule is the responsibility of management and was derived
from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, In our opinion, the information
is fairly stated, in all material respects, iii relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
December 7, 2021 on our consideration of the Authority's internal control over financial reporting and on
our tests of Its compliance with certain provisions of lawsl regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and
other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control
over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Authority's internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards \n considering the
Authority's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

84#42.-,04 42-2
CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

Roseville, California

December 7, 2021
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('111('01!11HAN AREA JOIN'I POWERS l'INAN('INC; All'I'[IORI'I'¥

(A ('limptinent I lnit of tile City of Chico, Ca lifornin)

Sttitement of Net POSition and

Government,11 Fundi Ba lance Sheet

June 30, 2021

Statement

Capital Projects Adjustments of Net

Fund (Note It D) Position

A,Net%

Current assets:

Restricted cash and investments $ 1,516,271 $ -$ 1,516.271
Interest receivable 103,385 - 103.385

lotal assets $ 1.619,656 $ . 1,619,656

1.inbilitie,

Noncurrenl liabilities:

1.oans payable $ - 23,059,478 23,059,478

I otal non„currenl liabilities - 23,059,478 23,059,478

fotal liabilities - 23,059,478 23,059,478

F.nd 8.1.ce/Net Position

IFund balances:

IRestricted for sewer projecis 1.619,656 (t,619,656)

l'otal l .iabililies and Ftind 1111!ance $ 1.619,656

Net Positiun:

Unrestricted (21,439,122) (21,439,822)

Total net position (deficit) $ UN,439,822) $ (21,439,822)

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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CHICOI.RHAN AREA JOIN'I POW+ 14% LINAN(ING 1111'HORITY

(A Component Unit of the City o f Chico, Califurnia)

Statement of Activities :ind

Governmental Fund Revenues, Expenditurex and

Chuinges in Fund 1*Hlance

For the ¥eni· Ended June 30, 2(121

Capital Projects Adjustinents Ntate,nent

1:und (Now 11 D) of Activities

E?,penditurix:

Administrative expenses $ 39,804 $ - s 39,804
('onslructicin expensch 8,394,728 (8.394.728)

Conveyiince il'capital assets - 8,394,728 8,394,728

1'01211 expenditures/expenses 8,434,532 - 8,434,532

Progrlm revenues:

Intel+guvernmentai revenue 1.900,000 C 1 19001(j<)(4

Capital grants mid contributions - 1.900,000 1.900,()00

I olal program revenues 1,900,000 - 1,900,000

Nci progrt,in (expe,se) revenue (6.534,532) . (6,534.532)

C;eneral revenueN:

Inveslmenl elimings 59,016 - 59,016

fotal general revenues 59,016 - 59,016
Excess (derick:ncy) 01-revenues

over expenditures (6,475,516) - (6,475,516)

Change in fund balluice/net position (6,475,516) - (6,475,516)

F,ind balance/net position (deficit):

13eginning of the year 8,095,172 (23,059,478) (14,964306)

End of the year $ 1.619,656 , $ (23,059,478) $ , (21,439,822)

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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C/Ila) URBAN AREA JOINT POWERS FINANCING AUTHORITY

(A Component Unit of the City of Chico, California)
NOTES TO THE FI NANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR KNI)ED JUNE 30,2021

[. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. T] IE FINANCIAL REPORTING ENTITY

In August 2005, the governing boards of the Chico Redevelopment Agency, which due to State Assembly
Bill 1 X 26 is now known as the City of Chico, Successor Agency to the Chico Redevelopment Agency
(Agency) and the County of Butte established a ioint powers agency known as the Chico Urban Area Joint
Powers Financing Authority (JI'FA) to facilitate the financing, construction and installation of sewer
facilities and improvements in the greater Chico urban area, The JPFA was furmed pursuant to the
provisions ofthe joint powers laws of the State of Cali fornia, as set forth in Article 1. Chapter .5, Division
7, Title l or the California Government Code (commencing with Government Code Section 6500). The
JPFA is authori/.ed to obtain state or federal loans for the purpose of financing the construction and
installation o rsewer facilities and improvements. The activity o f the JPFA is included in the City of Chico's
financial statements as a discretely presented component unit due to the close relationship and financial
integration with the City.

B.GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The government-wide financial statements (i.e. the statement 01'net position and the statement of activities)
report information on all of the activities of the JPFA. Governmental activities are normally supported by
taxes and intergovernmental revenues.

'The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses are offset by program
revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment.
Program revenues include: ( 1) charges to customers who purchase, use. or directly benefit from goods,
services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment and (2) grants and contributions thal are
restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Investment
earnings and other items which are excluded from program revenues are reported instead as general
revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for the JPFA's major governmental fund and are reported as a
separate column in the fund financial statements.

C. BASIS OF PRESENTATION, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING, AND MEASUREMENT FOCUS

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement locus
and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when
a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of the related cash flows.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement
focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both
measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when collectible within the current

period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the JPFA
considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days ofthe end ofthe current fiscal period,

[Yxpenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting.
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CIIICO URBAN ARICA JOINT POWERS FINANCING AUTIIORITY

(A Component Unit of the City of Chico, California)
NOTES TOTH n FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THI·. YEAR liNDED JUNE 30,2021

I. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Investment earnings are considered to be susceptible to accrual and have been recognized as revenue oftlic
current period. Other revenues are considered to be measurable and available only when cash is received
by the .1 PFA.

The activities of the JPFA are accounted for in a capital projects fund.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the JI'FA's policy to use restricted
resources first, then unrestricted resources as they :re needed.

Irhe preparation of financial statements in con formity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain
reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly. actual result.s could differ from those estimates.

D. ASSETS, LIABI lili'IRS, AND NET POSITION OR EQUITY

Capital Assets/Construction lixpenses

Although the JPFA's sole purpose is to construct infrastructure to facilitate the installation of sewer
connections for residents located iii the benefited area, the infrastructure is ultimately conveyed to the City
of Chico, and as a result, the construction costs of the sewer infrastructure are shown as construction

expenses (not capital assets) in these financial statements. As the construction occurs, the infrastructure is
conveyed to the City of Chico's Sewer F.nterprise Fund as capital assets.

Long-Term Liabilities

In the government-wide financial statements, long-term debt and other long-terri obligations are reported
as liabilities and, in the fund financial statements; the face amount of debt issued is reported as other
financing sources.

Fund E.Quity

Restricted fund balances include amounts that can be spent only for the specific purposes stipulated by
constitution or external resource providers.

Net Position

Net position is classified as unrestricted net position which is not restricted for any project or any other
purpose. Negative net position occurs when liabilities of the JPFA exceed the assets. In the case of the
J PIA, it is assuming the debt of the project, but does not own the assets which can create a negative net
position.
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CH]CO URBAN AREA JOINT POWERS FINANCING AUTHORITY

(A Component Unit of the City of Chico, California)
NOTES TO TIE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR Tin. YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2021

11. DETAILED NOTES (Continued)

A. CASI 1 AN D I N VESTM ENTS

Cash and investments held for the JPFA are included in and inseparable from the City's pooled cash and
investments. See Note 2 of the City of Chico ACRFR for more information on the investment policies of
the City as well as the related credit, custodial credit, concentration credit, and interest rate risk applicable
to the City's pooled Funds.

June 30,202! equity in pooled cash and investments is $ 1.516,271.

B. CONSTRUCION EXPEN!)1'1'URKS

During the current pei·iod, the JPFA constructed sewer related infrastructure totaling $8,394,728. The
infrastructure is annually conveyed to the City of Chico's Sewer linterprise Fund.

C. PROGRAM REVENUES/ANNUAL CONTRIBUTION

After formation oftlie JI'FA in August 2007, it obtained a loan (the Loan) from the California State Water
Resources Control Board (SWRCH) to finance the construction and installation of sewer facilities and
improvements in the Greater Chico Urban Area Redevelopment Project Area. The Agreement with the
State obligated the Chico Redevelopment Agency to repay the loan, in the amount of $1,900,000 per year
for each year commencing with the efTective date ofthe Agreement and ending with the fiscal year in which
the last payment is due on the I .oan, Neither the City northe County have any obligation to make the loan
payinents under the Loan Agreement. Tlie I.oan Agreement provides that the sole soiirce of contributions
to the J PFA is the pledge by the Redevelopment Agency which, post-dissolution is the obligation of the
Successor Agency. On December 17,2013, the State 1)epartment of Finance confirmed that the annual
$1,900,000 payments were considered an enforceable obligation. As of June 30, 2021, $20,900,000 has
been received by the J PFA from the Redevelopment Agency and Sticcessor Agency to the Redevelopment
Agency.

D. RECONCILIATION OF TH 1% GOVI(RNMEN'I'A[. 1''UND BALANCE SHEETTOT] IE

STATEMENT OF NET l'OSITION

1 (ital guvernmental fund balance $1,619.656

Amounts reported for governmental activities in Ilic Eltilemen[ 01 ict posili,in mt

dille,·ent becuuse:

1.oans payable are not due and payable in the current period mid. therejure

81·c mit reported iii [lie I\,nds. (23,059,478)

Ne{ po„ilion ofgovernmental activitics $(21,439,822)

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUND STATEMENT OF REVENNES,
EXPEN[)1'1'URF.S, AND CHANGES [N FUND BALANCE TO THE GOVERNMENT-WIDE
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
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CillCO URBAN ARMA JOINT POWERS FINANCING AUTHORITY

(A Component Unit of the City of Chico, California)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR TII[i YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2021

It. DE'l'AmED NOTES (Continued)

Net cliatige in fund balances - total governmental fund $(6,475,516)

Change in net position of governmental activities $(6,475,516)

F. LONG-TERM DEBT

Loans Payable

A loan in the amount of $38,000,000, has been approved by the SWRCB for the Jl'FA's Nitrate Compliance
I}rogram. 1)uring the life of the project, the Loan Program allows the JPFA to make loan draws at 83.33%
of the project cost, while requiring the JI'l·'A to recognize 16.67% as a local match to be included as an
additional loan amount payable to the State. The Jl'FA records the additional loan amount as acereted
interest in the Statement of Activities due to the cost of obtaining the 0% loan from the SWRCB. As of
June 30,2021, construction draws on the loan were $23,059,478, while the local match totals $3,843,323.

No payments are due on the loan until proiect completion, currently estimated in fiscal year 2020-21. The
Jl'FA will use the $1,900,000 received annually from the Agency to pay the debt when it becomes due.

Changes to the JPFA's long-term debt for the year ended June 30,2021 were as follows:

July 1.2020 June 30.2021

1.tim™ Pay,ible:

Slate Revolving Fund Loan $23,059.478 $23,059.478

Total accumulated accreted interest as o f June 30, 2021 was $3,843,323.

G. RISK MANAGE.MIINT

The JPFA is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets;
errors and omissions; pollution; and natural disasters. The JPFA participates in the City insurance

programs to insure against these losses. Additional information on the City's risk management program

can be found iii the notes to the City's financial statements.
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CHICO URBAN AREA JOINT POWERS FINANCING AUTHORITY

(A Component Unit of the City of Chico, California)

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and

Changes in Fund Balance- Budgenind Actual

Capital Projects Fund

For the Year Ended June 30,2021

Budgeted Amounts

Actual Variance

Original Final Amounts Final Budget

Expenditures:

Administrative $ 39,804 $ 39,804 $ 39.804 $

Construction 2,582,997 2,582,997 8,394,728 (5,811,731)

rotal expenditures 2,622,801 2,622,801 8,434,532 (5,811,731)

Program revenues:
1,900,000 1,900,000 1,900,000Intergovernmental revenue

Net prograin (expenditure) reveline (722,801) (722,801) (6,534,532) (5.811,731)

General revenues:

Investment earnings 200,000 60,000 59,016 (984)

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

over expenditures (522,801) (662.801) (6,475,516) (5,812,715)

Fund balance:

Beginning of the year 7,572,371 7,572,371 8,095,172

End of the year $ 7,049,570 $ 6,909,570 $ 1,619.656 $
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CliftonLarwonAllen LLP

CLAconnect,com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Directors

Cl loo Urban Area Joint Powers Financing Authority
Chico, California

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
Issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental
acuvities and the major fund of the Chico Urban Area Joint Powers Financing Authority (tile "Authority"), a
component unit of the City of Chico, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2021 and tile related notes to
the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Authority's basic financial statements, and have
Issued our report thereon dated December 7, 2021.

Iniernal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Authority's internal
control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority's internal control.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management
or employees, in the normal course of performing theirassigned functions, to prevent, ordetect andcorrect,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's
financial statements will not be prevented or detected and corrected oil a timely basis. A
defia'oricy is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that Is less severe than a
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for tile limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to Identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses

may exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Authority's financial statements are free from
material rnisstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an
objective of ouraudit, and accordingly, we donot express such an opinion. Theresults of ourtests disclosed
no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing
Standards
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Board of Directors

Chico Urban Area Joint Powers Financing Authority

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on tile effectiveness of the entity's internal
control or on compliance. This report is an Integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Giwer,imetit Aitditing Standards in considering the entity's Internal control and compliance. Accordingly,
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

U,d.4"LA16-_ Lly

CHftonLarsonAllen LLP

Roseville, California

December 7, 2021
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INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT

ON APPLYING AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES

Honorable Mayor and Council Members
City of Chico, California

We have performed the procedures enumerated below on the Appropriations Limit calculation of
the City of Chico as of and for the year ended June 30, 2021. The City of Chico management is
responsible for the Appropriations Limit calculation.

The City of Chico has agreed to and acknowledged that the procedures performed are
appropriate to meet the intended purpose of presenting the Appropriation Limit calculation in
accordance with the requirements of Section 1.5 of Article XIII-B of the California Constitution
and Proposition 111. This report may not be suitable for any other purpose. The procedures
performed may not address all the items of interest to a user of this report and may not meet the
needs of all users of this report and, as such, users are responsible for determining whether the
procedures performed are appropriate for their purposes.

The procedures and the associated findings are as follows:

1. Obtain the completed Appropriations Limit calculation and compared the limit and annual
adjustment factors in the calculation to the limit and annual adjustment factors that were
adopted by resolution of the City Council.

Finding: No exceptions were noted as a result of our procedures.

2. Compute current year adjustments based on selected population and inflation options,
using information provided by the State Department of Finance.

Finding: No exceptions were noted as a result of our procedures.

3. Compare the prior year appropriations limit presented in the Appropriations Limit
Calculation to the prior year appropriations limit adopted by the City Council for the prior
year.

Finding: No exceptions were noted as a result of our procedures.

4. Add the results of step two (2) to the prior year Appropriations Limit and compare the
resulting amount to the current year approved limit.

Finding: No exceptions were noted as a result of our procedures.
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Honorable Mayor and Council Members
City of Chico, California

We were engaged by the City of Chico to perform this agreed-upon procedures engagement
and conducted our engagement in accordance with attestation standards established by the
AICPA. We were not engaged to and did not conduct an examination or review engagement
the objective of which would be the expression of an opinion or conclusion, respectively, on the
Appropriations Limit calculation of the City of Chico. Accordingly, we do not express such an
opinion or conclusion. Had we performed additional procedures, other matters might have come
to our attention that would have been reported to you.

We are required to be independent of the City of Chico and to meet our other ethical
responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements related to our agreed-upon
procedures engagement.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the City of Chico and management
of the City of Chico and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than
these specified parties.

I4Uk-L_ly

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

Roseville, California

August 3,2021
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TO:

FROM:

RE:

Finance Committee Agenda Report Meeting Date: 12/22/21

Finance Committee

Barbara Martin, Deputy Director - Finance

Budget Modification Approval/Authority Review

REPORT IN BRIEF:

The goal of the budget approval process is to establish the programs, projects, personnel, and funding levels for the
coming fiscal year. Industry-wide, the common authority level of city councils/governing bodies is at the Fund level.
We recommend a variation of this concept moving forward.

Recommendation: Consider change from category level approval to Fund level by Department approval for budget
modifications.

FISCAL IMPACT: N/A

DISCUSSION:

Currently, the City Council must approve all budget modifications at the category level that are above certain
limits as outlined in Budget Policy D.1.f. This process provides expenditure controls but also requires less
efficient operations under some circumstances. This new concept acknowledges the need to keep ultimate
appropriation approval at the City Council level while providing the day-to-day operation flexibility needed within
the City departments. Along with moving the approval level to Department within a Fund, the following
parameters would be in place. Any changes that include the following would be presented to City Council for
approval:

• New Programs

• New Personnel (Any change to the B Appendices in the budget)
• New Capital Projects

• Budget modifications from capital to non-capital and vice versa
• Any appropriations affecting Fund balance

The ultimate goal is to streamline processes so that departmental operations can continue efficiently while
maintaining transparency and providing City Council members with the information and decision-making abilities
they desire.

Submitted by:
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Reviewed and Approved Approved by:

I --- - - -.
Scott Dowell, Administrative Services Director
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